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Established in 1994, the China Development Bank (hereinafter referred to as CDB or the Bank) is a state-
funded and state-owned development finance institution. As an independent legal entity directly overseen
by the State Council, it is dedicated to supporting China’s economic development in key industries and
under-developed sectors.

To anchor its mission of supporting national development and delivering a better life for the people, CDB
aligns its business focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic development strategies.
Leveraging its strength as a leading bank for medium- and long-term financing and comprehensive financial
services, it mobilises economic resources and channels them towards eight key areas: (1) Socioeconomic
development, such as infrastructure, basic industries, pillar industries, public services and management;
(2) Urbanisation, urban-rural integration and balanced regional development; (3) Programs essential
for national competitiveness, including the transformation, upgrading, and restructuring of traditional
industries, energy conservation, environmental protection, and advanced equipment manufacturing; (4)
Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student loans, and inclusive finance; (5)
Areas of strategic importance, including science and technology, culture, and people-to-people exchange;
(6) The Belt and Road Initiative (BRI) and other international cooperation programs in industrial capacity,
equipment manufacturing, infrastructure connectivity, energy and resources, and for Chinese enterprises to
“go global”; (7) Initiatives in support of development and economic and financial reforms; (8) Other areas
encouraged by national development strategies and policies.

Placing a strong premium on reform and innovation and tapping into its strengths as a development finance
institution, CDB keeps closely to national development strategies, operates on market principles with the
backing of sovereign credit, and ensures principal safety and modest profitability. Its vigor, influence and
risk resilience has been growing continuously, putting it on track to be a world-class development finance
institution and a steady force of support for China’s economic and social development.
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IMESA (BHREBESNK) 23 REFENEREITAENRT, FHETELTREBERL
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The Board of Directors reviewed and approved this report at the fifth meeting in the 2021 financial year
(the calendar year as adopted by the Bank) on 23 June 2021.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are prepared in accordance with
Chinese Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). BDO China SHU
LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP has audited these financial statements in accordance with
Auditing Standards for the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and International Standards on Auditing,
and has issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.

BERBER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EEFSLER ERFFAIRIT (BR - FRIBIT)
D CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (485 : CDB)
EEREFEAN: AR

JEAR R ARM4,212.4812 7T

SEMR b - IEEHEBXEXITAARE18S

R B4R RS - 100031

B : 86-10-6830 6688

=% 86-10-6830 6699

WY 3 www.cdb.com.cn

Registered Name in Chinese:

Registered Name in English:
Legal Representative:
Registered Capital:
Registered Address:

Post Code:

Telephone:

Facsimile:

Website:

ERFF 4487 (shortened to FF&RIT)

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (abbreviated as CDB)
Zhao Huan

RMB421,248 million

18, Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
100031

86-10-6830 6688

86-10-6830 6699

www.cdb.com.cn
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(B - ARM101Z2TsE 4 bt Billion RMB or %)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BHE
= 16,504.6 16,179.8 15,959.3 14,340.5
Total Assets
BARBRRI
Gross Loans and Advances to Customers 12,200.5 11,678.9 11,036.8 10,318.1
TREHRE o o o o
Non-Performing Loan Ratio ekt et Ok s
BB ER o o o o
Allowance to Total Loans Ratio 4.24% 4.87% 3.57% 4.11%
Bk
Total Liabilities 15,110.8 14,879.1 14,718.8 13,177.8
ERITRFZIES
Debt Securities Issued, Gross 9,735.8 9,108.4 8,446.6 7,898.5
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂf}ﬁ 1,398.7 1,300.7 1,240.5 1,162.7
Total Equity
RAFEE 9 9 ? ?
Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.71% 11.81% 11.57% 11.57%
A F
Profit for the Year [ U2 iEe e

g A\

FIBAEN 173.9 182.9 180.3 136.1
Net Interest Income
TR A EIRE
FHRRER 0.73% 0.70% 0.75% 0.81%
Return on Average Assets
N7 A . 2'4""\% A—L;‘Z
TR 8.80% 8.82% 9.45% 9.82%

Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity

N

1 AFEERSE (BRMRIN) FAEOMSBIELIERET(PECYHENY RS, BRESNRMAN, NRTEMBFAIFTHHRE,

UARBARRo

A2 ERFBAREEXZRBREBS(BURITEAEEDE (RIT))VEBEXMAETE. BRENRAN, AEEREMBAEREE

HXEEAAEHOREZ.

Note 1: All the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards and, unless

otherwise specified, the consolidated data of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Note 2: The capital adequacy ratio in the above table has been calculated in accordance with relevant regulations including the Provisional Rule on Capital
Management of Commercial Banks issued by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC). Unless otherwise stated, the capital

adequacy ratio is a consolidated figure.
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2020F B P EHE LRMAFAN—F. FRRITHEUSIEFE TN
BONRPRBEBEAS T, LRSS AEESREHENETEIRE,
MAGEREBOE, FEARZFRBZFTER, £ARS 717K
R, RANEEEENTERTHNEEMTETT, RIREEHBRRE,
RARELRIEES, SMTERIERIFAN .

X—F, ZNEILENTERRME, EHBRRREFHRES, ARELRRREMSIMF
o MEMIBIERER, BERMEXLIEFLPILEEETIM RN PRRREETE
LB, BORME RN FERBUERERR, RAZINSIEFFHATEREHL
SEXBR, RERUE A0, BiLfEn" TREERR, HZRESHAREN.
EREXERARTME, ENEREMERRAR, REBUATERBTEE, BT
IR FIELFIEN. BREABHEE T RKREZRMNRBYR 5, HERE TR L0 I0ERE
E, FREHEE, RERAFLARITEERE.

X—&F, BRNRBRRSEBHEXR, RELFHATER, ARSI KB “FRKR . »
XFEEENEISFMERTESE, RNARFREXRXE, RITRBHFBBERELL
BENRAMETT R REA0ZHH, BIIRRENIMEBETS YR IISAMH. F—
NEZZZRERENRREARSIG, BAXBERESHFYRLETSXE. EE4E
NRRESTHNER L. IBEXFRBEBHENEFHLERE, RINREERE
W, eEFBARPEARIALZT, MOARSETIEFE™, BAITRRAKEBE, RIR
RET REYKRE, RFEREAREBLR, XAZFTNMIbLL, 2HRZBIME. B
T, FEIIREEELTFIULEFNAE, EEFLRESHIEIEIERN.
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X—F, ZNFEK RS, BHEB A" BFM, BEABREARNKYEKRSEEN
BRMAR RMNBLFEMANRIBERABLE. BIAHENREFRBRITIINESSR
BRROBMEREM.2020F, BIVAERMELIRPR. BSRXTIHEMEHABREAR
O REAVRREE, REEEFENRUBLE, BIRFEN KL ST IMEH AR
BROTAENRK, X EENGZER, AUXNREEDELR, IEEFEXNKLEZI.
M RBIEXG SN FAERR, NEES MG ENHE. R =FHER, FRR{THFE
REEEERRR, BENKRBYES, 2RANEBRESER, BRUSFSLAROEMENSE
o B E 2020F K, FRRITAREAAEKO0.79%.

BR—F, BRNRFEASEH, RUKELH, GEERMGEENMEUKERERA. B
FRENEBRNASESELTEELE LR, HENHIERFEFERUNEENEE. 2EX
HRER" +HNA"MXAM2035F B, REEHMABNLYES, RARIRRKRSRER
R ENGERENERBRNE, BEYTREFMAFNE. 2EXRVEREN ZER"TE
EENE, B EAREAR. REFARTHFLNREITREERYIG . 21T
NMENMAEMETEUNE, BYERLSS2TERELERR MEEARNZANE
BN, T AENAMMRERC AR BEAFINEHXE, FRRITEEKREMNTE,
WERIZEMREAL, REEREBHRIHE—T RS-

—FkR, RIWIESIHSERTZINY, EFRERARMN ARBUMESFER FEDL
W, WCERMIMMITFA "FEKE R AR RSRIT . RERGHRERZAS, £
TR, BERREBASHNER, BREXIE. KEMI]. BRERRMU. T AEFIMSERAKRS
XFNER, REEFTABNHBNER, EURTRORS!

2021FREE+HA" MY FREHZRMESEXIARKERFERNE —F. M
BUSHEFHERTESEHSENTENES BRERDRATELSER, Y EHLR
ME, RMARER REMEFTREER, BHEERAUAS, BREETHFTE I, MAMER
ERdg. EXEBRNEFHSRRESANE, BN RB" AR, 8" +0A"FEF
B EREFSIEHERTHR, URFREARRPE LA 100FF!
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The year 2020 was an extraordinary one in the history of the People’s Republic of China. Under the strong
leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at its core, CDB worked hard to support
pandemic response and economic and social progress, increasing credit supply to boost the real economy in a
targeted way, contributing to the goal of advancing stability on six fronts and security in six areas (“double-six
goals”), strengthening Party discipline, managing risks, and improving internal governance. Good progress was
made across the entire group.

Enhance Party discipline and strengthen Party building to guide CDB’s reform and development.
Focusing on political development, CDB improved mechanisms for implementing the instructions of General
Secretary Xi Jinping and the decisions of the CPC Central Committee, which ensured that CDB resolutely
upheld General Secretary Xi Jinping’s core position in the CPC Central Committee and the Party as a whole,
and unswervingly upheld the CPC Central Committee’s authority and its centralised, unified leadership. To
deepen theoretical understanding, CDB organised learning sessions on Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with
Chinese Characteristics for a New Era. The Bank consolidated the results achieved during the education
campaign to entrench the Party’s founding ideals, make sure that the results of learning were translated into
actions on the ground. Ownership of responsibilities for Party governance was made clear; primary-level Party
organs were strengthened; political standards were given prominence for Party officials to encourage greater
ambitions and a sense of responsibility; and a culture of integrity was fostered. Corruption was fought with
renewed vigor, a four-pronged integrity mechanism was introduced, and integrity supervision was enhanced.
These efforts greatly strengthened CDB’s Party building efforts.

Support pandemic response by playing a counter-cyclical role to deliver the “double-six goals”. To
support China’s fight against COVID-19 and the international cooperation against the virus, CDB procured and
donated more than 4.5 million pieces of critically-needed supplies and medical equipment from around the
world, and donated 1.13 million pieces overseas through diplomatic channels. CDB created an emergency
financing mechanism, giving strong support to the leading enterprises producing and procuring key medical
and protective materials, and ensuring important daily supplies. To render targeted support for pandemic
response and socio-economic development, CDB stayed focused on delivering its mandate. The Bank
increased RMB loans by RMB1 trillion. It leveraged its expertise to facilitate economic reopening and recovery;
financed poverty-reduction programs; boosted effective investment; supported the national strategy of regional
development; propped up small and micro businesses; and helped to stabilise foreign trade and foreign
investment. By cutting its own profit margin, CDB stepped up support to the real economy, demonstrating its
responsibility as a development finance institution.

Combine prevention and defusion to tackle major risks. CDB was keenly aware that to achieve high
quality development, it must be fully prepared for worst case scenarios as it sought to prevent and control
risks. In compliance with the decisions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council, CDB made steady
progress in disposing of existing risks in 2020, with a clear understanding of where risks might emerge. With a
view to coping with the risks stemming from external challenges, CDB enhanced risk management mechanisms
and tools, and introduced a new system to manage concentration risks. CDB developed risk surveillance and
early-warning systems based on big data and intensified risk monitoring in critical areas. After three years of
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intense efforts, existing risks were almost all neutralised, potential risks kept under control, and risk awareness
of the entire staff heightened, thus laying a strong foundation for CDB to grow in a healthy and sustained way.
At the end of 2020, CDB’s NPL ratio stood at 0.79%.

Deepen reform and innovation and address problems to modernise governance. CDB improved
corporate governance in sync with the consolidation of the Party’s leadership, so that the strength of the
Chinese political system could be turned into good results in governance. CDB made its own strategies in
line with China’s 14th five-year plan and the long-range objectives through the year 2035 to promote high
quality development. Comprehensive credit line and credit review systems were reformed, which saw special
positions created for the review of credit, and a differentiated authorisation system and a three-tiered credit
limit management system established. A standing mechanism was established which takes into consideration
the features of credit review and the Bank. The structure of CDB headquarters was optimised as befitted the
Bank’s status as a business entity; international business operation and management was centralised to the
headquarters; the internal control and compliance structure was set up; internal audit structure was adjusted,
and its function was improved. These institutional reforms delivered more efficient governance systems and
management procedures for CDB, enhancing its capacity and performance in promoting national strategies.

CDB earned extensive recognition for its accomplishments in the past year, winning the “People’s Social
Responsibility Award” by People.cn for the 15th consecutive year and “Best Bank of the Year for Implementing

’n

‘Double-six Goals’ by Financial News. These achievements could not have been possible without the
strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council, the support of ministries, regulators,
shareholders, clients and people from various sectors, and the dedication of its entire staff, to whom CDB is

deeply grateful.

In 2021, China begins to implement the 14th five-year plan and embarks on the new journey towards the goal
of building a modern socialist country in all respects. CDB will continue to follow the guidance of Xi Jinping
Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era and make steady progress in implementing
the new development philosophies for the new era. Staying true to its mandate, it will promote the new
development paradigm with a holistic approach, supporting the crucial areas, key national strategies, and
weak sectors in the economy and society, and delivering the “double-six goals”. CDB is ready to make more
contribution as the 14th five-year plan takes off and strive for more achievements in celebration of the 100th
anniversary of the founding of the CPC.

= 19
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20204, F&BTENTERAE RO EHRZEAST, T
SEBEES, BIFLAUSRIOES, RELABATER, 2
NRE A XR, BENBEEEE, EARTRTIOES,
ERERZHABES, BE 20205 K, FEBTAERTI71HZ
5T, SLHUS RIS, 1881278, BAR R K12.03% , REHEEK0.79%.

BAEFR/HEeEReE, ERMATERRS RE. RNLEaRERE. ETE. XEFH
MERRENORTER, EFELABRERNARDREAR2.85512T, AXFREZFHFLER
EEERRTAM. REEBEHENEIEFEF, RBEIE~TIEHR4,681{2T. &
B RERRE, FEMREXRMEXFAE, AR WHF—F"TWARK1.8H1ZT. &
BRI RRIMNE, RIUIMCEIMER, REFILE. #HYRHEEE

BESESHMBRE, ILFSTELFTABRE. SHEEKDY . KA BREARE, 2FRT
ERHR2.38F1ZT, REMRCALH S, EXAREAUTAERNHLTHR. REZ RIS
FMR A K . TR, & E6K22TNE T ET A R M BEEBR . & LR R ILF 2648,
FERAEKREER, MANZREBEMRAGYNERERNEANE. SHEAXBIEE
IR, 2 F@ELT. S FAEEILR S35,

BEAAEREN, IFERESBESY. Z2EEXERABNERBRARLS, B
FERESHMTR, TUBEEHE. BEIHF. REFSEISHRERR, AAOXFREKE
¥, BARAFLEMEBENN~ W EIRRUKFE, BRKOIEFT. EE. BBRXE
KETNERRE, BYRSERERXIGAR NG H#—FxEE R SZIEITERS,
ENHE —H B BREAR, XFeKF EHE".
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RIRHEHEX N, BIRERBENEERA NS REFTRBR AL R, QIFERXX
FRNEMRE. U SIELR, RNZFHEMBERARAERRBXRAKE, flE" —8
—R"EMRFZIH R RRT AU THERBEA TS EH, RIRENREZIBNX K
&, BENAXFRELEFEIR. REEFNBEWEFHER, TINHEWFEEFZIBE . BN,
T BINITHF SRR B, HEEA RSB EENETEE, FeERRIEL2.3
Az, BERRTIVEN.

MELENKEE, BHEUBRREINGEERR. MAXNKRKBELENE, MN2HIEEK
, SEEAZMFR, EHEXNKRIFNERRER. BEAEEXNEERERRZR, RN
SERENEHMERNE, RESTXEHEEREEIEER. XEEEANKKBRTE
B, RANEAEXKERGCR. FREEFHNERRE. SHAEFPEEERRKXETR. WEEH
NIZEMEERNE, HHRAREERMNBRESAEREARER, BIHKESGNEEKTF.

BUARANER, SESMEARFEE N2V SRRRAZEE, TR AR KEEFTE
MY S THFENZ BIRFE. BUERMRIE, R ORATARFLNL, 2EET
AFEEBETHIRNEREREEN . RASENES, PFRIE" TER . R DML KL
WHFATINERE, EHNMERRENFFELIBR.

2021 FEAPERKUBRARTEAERHKRERNE, 2EERUESIMIARUERGH B
E2. BIPBUSIEFFNRPEFELEXERNES, BRtak. RERNEZE
B, RETRRE. HEHRNEI, A" +THOL"FEE. BEFLIELHRKITEK, U
MR ER P E K ML 100F F.
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In 2020, under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at its core, CDB
played a counter-cyclical role and improved its management to support the “double-six goals” and mitigate the
major shocks of the pandemic, thus fulfilling its mandate and mission as a development finance institution to
promote national development. Desirable results were made in a year of formidable challenges. At the end of 2020,
CDB’s total asset reached RMB17.1 trillion, profit for the year RMB118.8 billion, capital adequacy ratio 12.03%,
and NPL ratio 0.79%.

Facilitate economic recovery with counter-cyclical policies. CDB adopted more than 110 timely measures
to support pandemic response and economic reopening and recovery in Hubei. It issued RMB2.85 trillion loans on
the Chinese mainland, contributing greatly to economic recovery; RMB468.1 billion special loans were granted for
reopening of businesses; RMB1.8 trillion loans were disbursed to projects in the areas of new infrastructure, new
urbanisation, and major projects, which boosted effective investment; a foreign currency special lending scheme
was created, which helped to keep industrial and supply chains open and running and stabilise foreign trade and
foreign investment.

Cut down comprehensive financing costs to benefit the real economy. CDB mobilised long-term funding in large
amounts and at lower costs, issuing a record RMB2.38 trillion financial bonds at the lowest cost in 15 years. It rolled
out 22 preferential interest rate polices for special loans in six categories to support the regions, sectors and businesses
hardest hit by the pandemic. CDB strictly regulated the management of fees, reduced fees for businesses and deferred
loan repayments for businesses most affected by the pandemic. With these measures, CDB cut costs of RMB33.5 billion
for the key industries, sectors, and clients over the course of the year.

Improve credit structure to promote development strategies in a targeted way. CDB directed its valuable
resources where they were most needed in implementing national strategies and policies to produce a maximised
impact on the real economy. CDB supported high quality development of the manufacturing sector, scientific and
technological innovation, in order to strengthen basic industrial capacity and the development of modern industrial
chains. Seven regional strategies were given support through dedicated mechanisms, including the Yangtze River
Economic Belt, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration program, and Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
CDB enhanced its international business operation to support major high quality projects under the BRI and Chinese
companies as they go global.
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Innovate business models to help improve people’s life. CDB introduced innovative models to finance rural
infrastructure and industrial programs and supported poverty-alleviation in the poor counties on the national priority
list and those deeply mired in deprivations with tailored financial strategies for each county. CDB experimented with
market-based, sustainable financing models for urban renewal, rehabilitation of old housing blocks in cities, and
construction of affordable housing units. CDB helped to ease financing difficulties for small and micro businesses,
with more companies benefiting from its lower-cost on-lending loans. CDB supported environmental protection
programs and promoted environmental rehabilitation in key areas, with RMB2.3 trillion in the balance of green credit,
an unmatched record in China’s banking sector.

Enhance comprehensive risk management and deliver real progress in risk prevention and disposal. CDB
made considerable progress in neutralising existing risks through a full set of interconnected measures. It enhanced
comprehensive risk management system, further reformed the systems for comprehensive credit line and approval,
and increased risk awareness of the whole group. CDB managed its risk appetite strategies from a group-wide
perspective, continuing to reform risk management, credit management, and group client management systems.
It developed the structures and systems for internal control and compliance, anti-money laundering and sanctions
compliance, thus strengthening compliance with laws and regulations.

Refine management to keep operations on a stable and healthy track. CDB regulated its financial resources
for the multiple purposes of promoting national strategies, preventing and managing risks, and maintaining financial
sustainability. Aware of the importance of information technologies, CDB completed the development and testing
of a new generation of system for core business, which improved its operations and internet security. Operation
support was strengthened to ensure zero accident and zero financial loss. CDB subsidiaries continued to undergo
comprehensive reforms to create greater synergy within the group.

In 2021, a year of special significance in China’s modernisation drive, China embarks on the new journey towards
the development of a modern socialist country in all respects. CDB will follow the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought
on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, work with a greater sense of mission, responsibility and
urgency, and stay motivated and resilient to contribute to a successful start of the 14th five-year plan and the
celebrations of the 100th anniversary of the founding of the CPC.
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EE. SAEEERRMRIIER
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

24 RE 51 HEEFR {EERET 8]
Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
2PN BEEK NTES = 1963128 2018%11A
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963 November 2018
MALR RESK. ITES 3 1963401 H 201951248
OQUYANG Weimin Vice Chairman, Executive Director M January 1963 December 2019
EEE MITES 3 1962409 H 2017410A8
ZHOU Qingyu Executive Director M September 1962 October 2017
EHER BEES ES 1962128 20174104
LIAN Weiliang Government Agency Director M December 1962 October 2017
EgINLE HEES ey 1963506 B 2019405H
Z0U Jiayi Government Agency Director F June 1963 May 2019
=30k HEES 2 19674028 20174108
LI Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017
BN HEES e 19584058 20174108
ZHANG Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1958 October 2017
KAES RAINE S 3 1966403 2017%10AR
ZHANG Shenghui Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
TR BEE E 1964504 B 20184068
BIAN Ronghua Equity Director M April 1964 June 2018
%k 5 RANES E 1968406 B 20194014
ZHANG Yong Equity Director M June 1968 January 2019
e BNESE 5 1963404 B 20204084
WU Zhenpeng Equity Director M April 1963 August 2020
EE BINEE -3 19634 05H
CUI Hanzhong Equity Director M May 1963

= 4 & = ﬁi =

SREEEMRR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
®a B 51 HEFER 1EER Y ]
Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
MAER T e 19634018 20194124
OUYANG Weimin  President M January 1963 December 2019
BAEE BT 5 19624098 2016407 A
ZHOU Qingyu Executive Vice President M September 1962 July 2016
Al %4 EIERS B 19634018 2020404 A
HE Xingxiang Executive Vice President M January 1963 April 2020
REF 2R RERK L 1962408 3 20194014
SONG Xianping Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision M August 1962 January 2019
BZER BT 2 19675024 2020114
ZHOU Xuedong Executive Vice President M February 1967 November 2020
KO BT -3 19725048 202140248
ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President M April 1972 February 2021
x| EIERRS 3] 1976404 8
LIU Jin Executive Vice President M April 1976
B R EESUP B 1962507 B 20084128
CHEN Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008
etk EEELE kg 19655118 20204097

F

YANG Baohua

Chief Audit Officer

November 1965

September 2020

ERBEREFRRESZE.
*Pending confirmation by the CBIRC.
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£

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#& M ZHAO Huan
EEK WTES

Chairman, Executive Director

EXPHEER OUYANG Weimin

BESK HITES

Vice Chairman, Executive Director

AiEE ZHOU Qingyu
HITES

Executive Director
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£

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EHR LIAN Weiliang

HNEEE
Government Agency Director

4RANtE  ZOU Jiayi

HEES
Government Agency Director

ZER4W LI Chenggang

HEEE
Government Agency Director

KARE  ZHANG Xiaohui

HEES
Government Agency Director
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3k4E4L  ZHANG Shenghui

RANES
Equity Director

% BIAN Ronghua

BiNES
Equity Director

3k B ZHANG Yong

BiNES
Equity Director

ZIRMEE WU Zhenpeng

BiNES
Equity Director

£iXHE* CUI Hanzhong

BiNES
Equity Director

MEIRBREHFREEESZE.
*Pending confirmation by the CBIRC.
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SREEAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXPFHEER OUYANG Weimin
7K

President

AEE ZHOU Qingyu
BT
Executive Vice President

{a3%#¥ HE Xingxiang

BT
Executive Vice President

R%FE  SONG Xianping

eRERARK
Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision
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A%% ZHOU Xuedong
BT
Executive Vice President

Bk #E ZHANG Hui
BT
Executive Vice President

X @##* LIU Jin

BT
Executive Vice President

B E CHEN Min

EESWH
Secretary of the Board of Directors

#EE YANG Baohua

BEEITE
Chief Audit Executive
MEIRBREHFREEESZE.
*Pending confirmation by the CBIRC.
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EE. . SAEEERRREMN

PROFILE OF MEMBERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

=4=-35107]

Profile of Members of Board of Directors

BRELE AEERARBTEEK AITES. EATERRRORIUSHASELE, BENHAHTETK, 251LE
HEEE, EEBHATOK, PERRRITEITK, PFEXKX (£H) 228 FEXREARND A DRNITERFRILKRIT
MITESE. 7K, PERLRITRIZESEK. 7K.

Mr. ZHAO Huan is Chairman and Executive Director of CDB. Prior to joining CDB, he held various positions successively in China Construction
Bank, including Deputy General Manager of Corporate Business Department, Deputy General Manager of Xiamen Branch, General Manager of
Corporate Business Department, General Manager of Shanghai Branch, and Executive Vice President. He also served as Executive Director of
China Everbright (Group) Corporation and China Everbright Group Ltd and concurrently Executive Director and President of China Everbright
Bank; and Vice Chairman and President of Agricultural Bank of China (ABC).

BEERSE NEERARRTREZRK AITES. 7K. EAFEARRITIFRTEHRNMMWEEIRITK, BEIIH
POXATITRFEZINCERBENH BB/ K, PERERENAFTHOESE, INEEIITK, T MHEIHK, M
TEEZ EBHXERE, T MNHEEZ . BIHK, T MHEEIBIE, T KEEIEK.

Mr. OUYANG Weimin is Vice Chairman, Executive Director and President of CDB. He previously worked in the People’s Bank of China (PBoC)
as Deputy Director-General of Non-Banking Financial Institutions Regulation Department, Head of the PBoC Xiamen Central Sub-branch and
concurrently Head of Xiamen Branch of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE), Director-General of the China Anti-Money
Laundering Monitoring & Analysis Center, and Director-General of the PBoC Payment System Department. Later in his career, Mr. OUYANG
served successively as Vice Mayor of Guangzhou; member of the Standing Committee of the CPC Guangzhou Municipal Committee and Party
Secretary of Zengcheng District; member of the Standing Committee of the CPC Guangzhou Municipal Committee and Vice Mayor of Guangzhou;
Deputy Secretary of the CPC Guangzhou Municipal Committee; and Vice Governor of Guangdong.

B, BAEReMal 228, B

AEERE NEERFALRRITNITES. BIITK. BEPERIVRTISERIESE B
BEE, RPHINEAS/NANAE

A BEEHMEIRAEE. BEE NEEFESEMDEE, FMNETTK, RILEREE
BEREIEE =RUISEE, BERALRITLERIC.

Mr. ZHOU Qingyu is Executive Director and Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he served as Secretary of the CPC Discipline Inspection

Commission of CDB. Prior to joining CDB, he worked in the ABC, where he held such positions as Deputy General Manager of Industrial and

Commercial Loans Department, Deputy General Manager of Asset Preservation Department, Deputy General Manager and then General Manager

of Risk Asset Management Department, General Manager of Risk Asset Management Department, General Manager of Guizhou Branch, General

Manager of Agricultural Credit Department, Deputy Director of the Office of Shareholding System Reform Leadership Group, and Chief Officer of
County Area Banking Business.

E4ERSE WEERLABRANEZASEFE, REERALRITHREZER. EEHMITHK. TZPIC, EHETHK.
TEEBIE, TEEERERETERE, THEAEEE . BMTEBIR.

Mr. LIAN Weiliang is Vice Minister of China’s National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), and concurrently CDB Government
Agency Director. Previously he worked in He’nan, serving successively as Mayor and Party Secretary of Xinxiang; Mayor and Deputy Party

Secretary of Luoyang; member of CPC Standing Committee of He’nan and Party Sectary of Luoyang; and member of CPC Standing Committee
of He’nan and Party Secretary of Zhengzhou.

et MEMBEEEK, FEERARRITBEES SEMBEERS K, BRFREFXRITTK, MEERED
KBE, PREZVHRIETERSNADAZLRAAK, BEFEBK, BERERERRER
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Ms. ZOU Jiayi is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Finance (MOF ), and concurrently CDB Government Agency Director. Previously she served as
Director-General of the International Department, Director-General of the Department of International Economic Relations, Assistant Minister of
the MOF; Chief Inspector of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision Office of CPC Central Commission for Discipline Inspection (CCDI) at the
Foreign Affairs Leading Office of the CPC Central Committee; Vice Minister of the Ministry of Supervision; and member of National Supervision
Commission (NSC).

FHNEE NEFPEERHARZARRKR. FHENXE, REETKSEANRAZANHG T HBERARRNR,
REEBRALRRITHEESR. TEFSHHLEORXFRESBEIBK, FAOXEIRIFK. FK, HEEEKEIE,

Mr. LI Chenggang is Permanent Representative and Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of the People’s Republic of China to the
World Trade Organisation, Deputy Permanent Representative to the United Nations Office at Geneva and other international organisations based
in Switzerland, and concurrently CDB Government Agency Director. Previously he was Deputy Director-General of the Bureau for Fair Trade in

Import and Export, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of the Department of Treaty and Law, Assistant Minister of the Ministry of
Commerce (MOFCOM).

kiERt MEBEXRFREAERFREK, REERARRITHREES. SEFEARRITEEMRRLERER
x PEREREHESHARATESZSAEE, PEARRTERDTZIIK, KH BRI TK, FEARRITITIKENIE,

Ms. ZHANG Xiaohui is Dean of Tsinghua University PBoC School of Finance and concurrently CDB Government Agency Director. Previously,
she was PBoC Chief Representative for the Americas, Senior Advisor to China’s IMF Executive Director, Director-General of the Department of
Financial Markets and the Department of Monetary Policies of the PBoC, and Assistant Governor of PBoC.

kESKE NEERARKRTERNESR. EEEZFIINLEERSERKXIRIFK, EBREIRIK. K, FEAR
RITEEMRRAERRER, BFINCEER 2210

Mr. ZHANG Shenghui is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he was Deputy Director-General of Balance of Payments Department of SAFE, Deputy
Director-General and then Director-General of Supervision and Inspection Department of SAFE, PBoC Chief Representative for the Americas, and
Chief Accountant of SAFE.

FTRERE NERRFARRTERNES. BEVEERFEITERENDMK . =4 K, PERFITEDSEIB B K.

Mr. BIAN Ronghua is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he was Director of Administrative Review Division and Division Il of Department of Treaty
and Law in MOF, and Deputy Secretary-General of the China Appraisal Society.

kBXE NEEBRFARRTERNESZ. GETEIFRITEEEEMEILSEKE, PEALEOGERREAIRNES.

Mr. ZHANG Yong is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he was Deputy General Manager of the Information Management Department of the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, and Equity Director of China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation.

SIRMEEE DMEERFRBITRNES. SEVBHRLI I KE T, MEEFHREE PO EERPES TR
FRK.
Mr. WU Zhenpeng is CDB Equity Director. Previously, he held positions in MOF successively as a Deputy Director-General-Level Official at the

Department of Agriculture, and Director General of the Staff Education Center and concurrently President of China Remote Learning College for
Accounting.

ENBERE ZXTEBS2021FFRSWEVEN , EXBREBEATENES, HERBREHFREESZE,
BEEZFRINCEERFRIIMNCUSHOBTERGEHS L, FEHE ORTRINES.
Mr. CUI Hanzhong was appointed as CDB Equity Director at the third meeting of the Board of Directors of CDB in 2021, pending confirmation by

the CBIRC. Previously, he was Deputy Director and Director of the General Office of SAFE Investment Center, and Equity Director of the Export-
Import Bank of China.
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SRAEEENRRER
Profile of Senior Management
MERZREE. AEEEERMHIEL  EEEH" &0 A REEBEMRREGHNT:

Information on Mr. OUYANG Weimin and Mr. ZHOU Qingyu can be found in the Profile of members of Board of Directors. The profiles of other
Senior Management members are as follows:

AX#ERE NEERFARRITITK BEFERTEMRE M TETK, BREESTTK, ULRESTTK, PERL
RBRBRITEIITIR
Mr. HE Xingxiang is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he was Deputy General Manager of Jilin Branch, General Manager of Hainan

Branch, and General Manager of Shandong Branch of the Bank of China and Executive Vice President of Agricultural Development Bank of China
(ADBC).

REFSKE NEFRLZERBZHERFAARTERBRALA K. SEPERVRBRITHLAEREE HRERE(E.
FE, EMRENTITEK, AREEMDELE, NREELRFXKWEER (ZRXAKEEFL) BEE, FERILEZRIRT
LEPBIc,

Mr. SONG Xianping is Chief Inspector of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision Office of CCDI and NSC at CDB. Previously, he was Secretary
of Discipline Inspection and Supervision of ADBC. Earlier in his career, he worked in the ABC successively as Deputy Director-General of the
General Office, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of the Research Office, General Manager of the Jilin Branch, General Manager

of the Risk Management Department, and Chief Risk Officer and General Manager of the Risk Management Department (County Area Risk
Management Center).

AZEKE NEERARRTETK. BEFEARRTEMRBERREBK, FEIIK, BMRATTEKRERINLCE
BRIAESEEK, BTELERMETEREFINCEERIFIINCEEREE, SHBERBBK, LT (REHL
=) Tt

Mr. ZHOU Xuedong is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked in PBoC successively as Deputy Director-General of the Financial
Stability Bureau; Director-General of the Department of Treaties and Law; Head of the Nanjing Branch, and concurrently Head of SAFE Jiangsu

Office; Director-General of the Business Management Department, and concurrently Head of SAFE Beijing Office; Director-General of the Financial
Stability Bureau; and Director-General of the General Office (CPC Committee Office).

kgL IEERFRRITETK BEXRBRITRASREMESZLE. REE, NEEES (BR-FREM) B 8EE,
EBTATEIGTK. LEHBIC, AMELTEITRK. TR, NREEE (RE=REE) 228, aRNKRERNREIEE (R
HHEEARAE) BREE (E1F)

Mr. ZHANG Hui is Executive Vice President of CDB. Before joining CDB, he worked in the Bank of Communications of China as Deputy General
Manager and then General Manager of the Asset Preservation Department; Deputy General Manager of the Risk Management Department
(Asset Preservation Department); Deputy General Manager and Disciplinary Secretary of Shanghai Branch; Deputy General Manager and then
General Manager of Guizhou Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department (Asset Preservation Department ), Chief Risk Officer and
concurrently General Manager of the Risk Management Department and Director of Office of Internal Control and Case Prevention Leadership
Team.

NHKE ZATEFR221FFRRSWEEY, XHAEBERTRIITK, HERZIEEFREAESZE. BF
ERALBRITERARE (REEEM) BITE (RIEK), HERISBKEFLEERHIRRIK, BRFRE (REE
ZEB) E1E (&) o

Mr. LIU Jin was appointed as Executive Vice President of CDB at the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors of CDB in 2021, pending
confirmation by the CBIRC. He worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of the Policy Research Department (CPC Committee

Publicity Department), Director-General of the Education & Training Department and Dean of CDB Institute of Development Finance, Director-
General of the Policy Research Department (CPC Committee Publicity Department).
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BREE NEERALRRTESFSUD. BEERFRRITERARZRNEE. TE, EFSHREEE.

Mr. CHEN Min is Secretary of the Board of Directors of CDB. He worked at CDB successively as Deputy Director-General and then Director-
General of the Policy Research Department, and Director-General of the Office of Board of Directors.

MEETZLT IEERALRITEEEFHERTF I CELE. SEERAARTVEREIBK, EE8E2EEK,. U&H
Bk, FIELRESEBRAIEEK, BERARBRITHERITEF K.
Ms. YANG Baohua is Chief Audit Officer and General Manager of the Audit Department of CDB. She worked successively at CDB as Deputy

Director-General of the Finance and Accounting Department, Director-General of the Operations Department, Director-General of the Finance and
Accounting Department, Chairperson of the China-Africa Development Fund (CAD Fund), and Director-General of the Audit Department.

g \E
FERT RN
CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ZAFTEFR2020FF XS WHENBIHFRRELESRE, RIRBLEEBERTRNES RRTEE 202155 =
REWE BT, EXBAEEERITRNES, HERERGDGRARESRE. RRTEER2020FF RS WEN
BE, AXFEREBERTETRK ERTEFR2020FF IR WHEMBI HFRRERSE, BFREEBERTT
BliTK. ERTEER2020FF CREWHNES HRBREESIE, KEXEBERTATK. RRTESER20214F
FRXSWENED, WHLEBERTETK, AEREARSGRARSRE. RRTEEFR2020FF MRS WEHN
BEHFRRBRRESZE, HEERTEERTEEHRITE

MEERFELEBEERAEERNBIEERTRNES. SMRELEB2020F4B8 ABEERTEITK. ZLFHLLEH2021F48
ABEERTERENKEE-

As reviewed and approved at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Mr. WU Zhenpeng was
appointed as Equity Director. As reviewed and approved at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2021, Mr. CUI Hanzhong was appointed
as Equity Director, pending confirmation by the CBIRC. As reviewed and approved at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020, Mr.
HE Xingxiang was appointed as Executive Vice President. As reviewed and approved at the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020 and
confirmed by the CBIRC, Mr. ZHOU Xuedong was appointed as Executive Vice President. As reviewed and approved at the seventh meeting
of the Board of Directors in 2020 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Mr. ZHANG Hui was appointed as Executive Vice President. As reviewed and
approved at the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2021, Mr. LIU Jin was appointed as Executive Vice President, pending confirmation by
the CBIRC. As reviewed and approved at the fourth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Ms. YANG Baohua
was appointed as Chief Audit Officer.

Mr. LIU Xiangdong and Mr. CHU Aiwu no longer served as Equity Directors. Starting from April 2020, Mr. MA Xin no longer served as Executive
Vice President. Starting from April 2021, Mr. MENG Yaping no longer served as Chief Risk Officer.

FREFHEER

ANNUAL REMUNERATION

BRAFHERE, REPRXTFRURCATAFMHEIELEBRXEK, B2015FE, XTARTAFM™HERB(PRE
R ARAFMERBETINE)NT, FHENERELREST. SUEFHFNITHEMBAN. BERBEERIEBIILH
R ARTABRREFEBIEIOINMERATZENER. EEK. TKERHEMWSHEEARFHARBEFERES
HiY, RXEEFRASEFHERSHFE, 2EEHER, REEBREEMINRBITERZEFHERTEANIE LS.

Remuneration for executives. As required by the central authorities in the reform of the remuneration system for the principal members of
executives of central SOEs, since 2015, the remuneration policy for executives of the Bank is kept in compliance with the Provisional Standards

for the Remuneration of Leading Members of Executives of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities. Comprising an annual base
salary, an annual performance-based salary, and term incentives, their salaries are calculated and paid in accordance with the base figure and
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performance evaluation results released by the competent state authorities every year. Remuneration plan of Chairman, President and other
members of Senior Management must first be adopted by the CPC CDB Committee and then presented to the Committee on Human Resources
and Remuneration of the Board of Directors for review. It is filed with the competent state authorities and announced on the official website of the
Bank after being approved by the Board of Directors.

KRITAFAMEMSEAR2020FEHH1E5R

Remuneration of Executives and Other Members of Senior Management in 2020

(%fr: ARMAIT 10 Thousand RMB)

2020F E NAITIRIGHIBLRIFEN 1505

Total Remuneration Before Tax from the Bank in 2020

HERE. BV FS HREETFRIER

EEAREN BT

B 215 %rE Contribution by the Employer to Social
i1 Remuneration Insurance, Annuities, Additional Medical
Title of Position Paid Insurances and Housing Allowance
2020F FREMRER R
Executives in Office at the End of 2020
FZOIN BEEK NITES
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director Ge L
iRl BIESK NTES, K 6193 1551
OUYANG Weimin Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President ' ’
BEE PATES. BITK 5574 1531
ZHOU Qingyu Executive Director, Executive Vice President ’ ’
(EPa EIEERS
HE Xingxiang Executive Vice President 51.09 12.10
RIEEF Lo MRARK 5574 13.31
SONG Xianping Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision ’ ’
AR BT
ZHOU Xuedong Executive Vice President 2822 6.49
K OAE EIERS
ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President rles 10
2020 BER R
Executives Leaving Office in 2020
5 Rk EIEERS
MA Xin Executive Vice President U e
2020 FREFHMBEAR
Other Members of Senior Management at the End of 2020
=S BEELWB
CHEN Min Secretary of the Board of Directors RS UEH0
= HEXNKE
MENG Yaping Chief Risk Officer 114.73 16.06
BEk EREEITE
YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer 28.86 4.62

FREEREXNE, B2015F1AE, RMIARAHMZRBUVBEE(hRE[EWARAFTHMERGITHEY AT, EELRK.
2 :ZK?:I'E‘IZx%%%ﬂﬂﬂﬂ%%*ﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiiﬁwo
A3 REBEEREXNE, RMTARAHAMSRERAR2020FHLFHMPERIANIREFR, SHMETBESLRTESITRE.

Note 1: Since January 2015, in accordance with the government regulations, the remuneration for executives of the Bank is kept in compliance with the Provisional
Standards for the Remuneration of Leading Members of Executives of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities, and has been paid hereby.

Note 2: Government Agency Directors and Equity Directors are not remunerated by the Bank.

Note 3: In accordance with the government regulations, the final remuneration for executives and other members of Senior Management in 2020 is still subject to final
confirmation. Additional details of remuneration will be disclosed when they have been determined.
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RIFMEE. ATHFMRATARSALRENREME FHEMEANRMUREMEBEXZE, 8FITHE. X&.
EEAAE. HERE. FEARE. bUFEE%E, ATREUKNESH. LEEX, WINEERS:. WAFEQAFE"
RSB D BECRN, RERELFE o EAS , BASUFMEIEKE, ROLXEFMICEMARIER. KT2EFHHNEE
REBMIIRBEEY RS BERIZE. HRHFMEESE, RMTTTURM. ZHAIRONITEGE, SRAUHHM23
55 ERERSHEDET R, AINAFHEEN. ATRUERZERSHEAHITHE. RREBSLIWTHREN
BINEEN, RITAMZEERUHFMAERNGINLE, SEMURFERE, MAFMIAMEEE LS. NKERSNES
NE, REFHMeEmIEFELELR. ATSNMBEIAMEARTDALAIRNE SRR, BFEERREZE. EXETFRRE. X
W THMEERES, FUASMAERNMEELMIES, B AR THNREEZR. RTRKG, JMHREBITERE
MERRKRAIXNERAREZE. REAFZREIN, ZREREIEMIIMEFTREFDR, RITN2012FR AR TR B
VHFE€, HFRBIZSIW - REVFESTE, ER2 TRAKRGEZRITIHITAR.

Remuneration for the staff. Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures in exchange for the services provided by the staff;
these include salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits, social insurance, housing provident funds, and annuity. The compensation is mainly
determined by the position while bonuses are subject to performance. This remuneration policy aims to be competitive in the industry and fair
for staff members across the Bank’s various lines of business. This policy has been reformed and improved to provide more effective incentives
and restraints. The total remuneration of the Bank is determined by competent state authorities based on the Bank’s operational performance.
In accordance with the remuneration management rules, the Bank adopts a position and performance-based salary policy. Each business unit’s
total remuneration is linked to its performance evaluation results, and each staff’s remuneration to the performance evaluation results of his unit
and of the person himself/herself. In line with the reform plan on the salary determination mechanism of state-owned enterprises, the Bank has
reformed its remuneration policy to optimise resources allocation by ensuring the total remuneration is commensurate with performance and
risk management, among other factors. The goal is to make remuneration is sustainable in the Bank. The Bank joins local government’s social
insurance schemes to provide coverage in basic pension, medical, unemployment, workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly to the
premium in accordance with the threshold and percentage mandated by local authorities. Local social security departments are legally bound to
make pension payments to the Bank’s staff members after their retirement. In addition to the basic pension, CDB, approved by competent state

authorities, set up annuity schemes for its staff in 2012. The accrued amount of annuity is based on a certain percentage of the total salaries and
will be paid as planned during retirement.

RILER
STAFF

HZE2020FK, AEAHRLERT11,925 . HHFI7.91% WA TMBEAR R U LEZFH, 71.21%M A THERRER L
e

At the end of 2020, CDB group had a staff of 11,925, of whom 97.91% held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 71.21% a master’s degree or higher.
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NCIpEE
CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

~ERESRR
OVERVIEW

FITRBAKERCWVHE, BE(EARFRRITER), BUNFEE. NREH. WEZE. ARHIENLTEE
ML

Modelled on the system of modern financial institutions, CDB follows its Articles of Association and puts in place a corporate governance system
with legally defined, transparent powers and responsibilities, effective coordination, and balance between different functions.

Board of Supervisors
| C——— )

LR RIKREEEZRS

Committee on Strategic Development

and Investment Management Board of Directors

FHEAR
Audit Committee

NEEEZERS
Risk Management Committee

XBEXGERHERS
Committee on Related-Party
Transaction Control

AEEFHERR
Committee on Human Resources
and Remuneration

MERPRSSREQATEE. ATREUIEFHFNATEFSEHSEXBERNES, BEBNBEZHNASESZEA
SRER—EXR, RAMAZENTEEENEEN™ART, MEMIBERIR, BLRERMEIIEFZHICER
BRARTENS), g AR BEIIERE". MBI "BmINER". FERAEeRE, NERK A0,
FiLER TEAHEMRR, BIHERRENMFNEEHE, ARG EREIERARRME, MBRENREE
RAMRBMIME, EENBRENBURES. ENEEBRMERZAR, £HEHEFMEENS, BHEIITIREN
ATHREIR. BRTHNRENARREEL, REEQRMER, ENERRSERETWUTEAE.

AFAENFIEIR. ATRBEXZEEN. (BRFLARTEE)NZSTUNERANNE, FETEELSREIG, =F
BEYE. BUREESSTHLRING, BEZEEETENENMRE. BX. RIRNG, REESSEERZ. A
B BRMTERN. EXEZRSEENERRRR, RENEEZNRRSEMER. RPREBERINRKSER, 1L
SIHHERFEE. RFENT, SPRIEENG, VLRBIRIMNEN. 25/ KA KB

AFAREFERIE. RNEXILAIREMSZFHEER, BRAFNENNBEENHNIT . FEMBBNEREER, TER
K. WIT. BEKYIE, REZESESIESBIZEIT.

Strengthening CPC leadership and corporate governance. Following the guidance of the Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics for a New Era, CDB improves corporate governance in sync with the consolidation of the Party’s leadership. It exercises strong
Party discipline and emphasises political building, putting in place a sound mechanism for delivering General Secretary Xi Jinping’s instructions.
All Party members are required to maintain political integrity, think in big-picture terms, follow the leadership core and keep in alignment with the
central Party leadership, with enhanced confidence in the path, theory, system and culture of socialism with Chinese characteristics. All Party
members obey the Central Committee and uphold its authority and centralised, unified leadership. Theoretical education was consistently carried
out. Consolidating the gains made during the education campaign of “staying committed to the founding mission of the Party”, CDB entrenched
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the good practices identified in new standing mechanisms. CDB demanded greater sense of responsibility for Party development and discipline
and enhanced the campaign to counter corruption and build a clean Party. Primary-level Party organisations in CDB became more vibrant and
their activities enriched. The management of these organs were standardised. The Party’s organisational principles were better enforced and new
incentives created to build a high-caliber professional team.

Improving corporate governance mechanisms. CDB keeps improving its corporate governance system and operational efficiency in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations, its Articles of Association, and various rules of procedures. Reporting mechanisms to the Board
of Directors were improved. The recommendations of the Board of Directors were consistently implemented with regular feedbacks to enable
well-informed decision-making, ensuring that the Board of Directors of Directors operates and exercises its powers in a lawful, rules-based,
independent and effective way. The special committees have their responsibilities clearly defined to advise the Board of Directors. The Employees
Congress played an active role in increasing democracy in management and protecting the rights of staff members in accessing information,
participating in CDB management, expressing opinions and exercising scrutiny.

Enhancing corporate governance regulations. Corporate governance rules and regulations were carried out to increase their authority and
impact. Authorisation procedures were constantly refined and standing mechanisms of decision-making, enforcement, and supervision improved
to enhance Board of Directors efficiency.

RIS
SHAREHOLDERS
RN, ATRENERRE L. BE 2020 K, AFRERSERASLTRNTE:

Within the reporting period, there was no change to the shareholders of the Bank. CDB’s shareholders and their shareholdings by the end of
2020 are shown as follows:

RARBIR BFERIEE
Shareholders % of Total
o R

Ministry of Finance Sl
FRCERABRFELT

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 84.68%
BREMNRREEERTELT 57.199%
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. See
2EHSREESEES 1.59%
National Council for Social Security Fund OEe
ait

Total 100.00%

WEHAESRARS], REEREEVEKS . URERSE . VBB ES TERNRIBEE].
PRICERRBBRATATRRE(PEARANEATZ)AEREARINEERA AT, REESKRRR, LU
RMARRKRERKENEEEREMAVTEEHRARFNMETHRANS, INEESRE~RERE
BRMRETFEERTEILIRME(PEARKMERAIEHEFINCERRERRINBRIEAT, TENFE
BASNIE. BN R B2 GRRAURE=ZREE. RAEHE,
cEHEREESEESR AU SREEENEETZENM.

The MOF is a macro-regulation body under the State Council, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating fiscal and tax
policies, and exercising fiscal supervision.

Central Huijin Investment is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. As authorised by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions, and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, investing in domestic and overseas projects, equities,
debts, funds, and loans and engaging in entrusted asset management and investment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEEREM

Members of the Board of Directors

BRESREMEN(ERFLRITER), ATESSHIBBZEZAMN, BESBNTES (BEEK). 428HZEEMN
BEMNEE. BRIATERSKHARAEBE, AIEEKEMAERAEER  HTESEHE  BREE. RALZR
S BEELAE  MEEFTHERLARNEZ. WEE. @5H. ARBRITEERIZHEARTALME, BF &4
RIELE. Bt ZEWMAELE. kiREwL  RNEFTHARARBURIK, B @ skESKE. FRELE. KEX
£ RIRMSSEAE . ENBRE EFSWP  BRREE

MERBEAR S FRARE SR

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board of Directors has 13 members: three Executive
Directors (the Chairman included), four Government Agency Directors, and six Equity Directors. The incumbent Chairman is Mr. ZHAO Huan
and Vice Chairman Mr. OUYANG Weimin; the three Executive Directors are Mr. ZHAO Huan, Mr. OUYANG Weimin, and Mr. ZHOU Qingyu; the
Government Agency Directors are each appointed by the NDRC, the MOF, the MOFCOM, and the PBoC. They are Mr. LIAN Weiliang, Ms. ZOU
Jiayi, Mr. LI Chenggang, and Ms. ZHANG Xiaohui. The shareholders appoint Mr. ZHANG Shenghui, Mr. BIAN Ronghua, Mr. ZHANG Yong, Mr. WU

Zhenpeng and Mr. CUI Hanzhong* as Equity Directors. Mr. CHEN Min is the Secretary of the Board of Directors.
*Pending confirmation by the CBIRC.

EETRR

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

AITEFSRBERBXER. TEER. AE. (BRARRTEE) R(ERARRITESTWEAN) HWAEREITIR
Fo EECTHINTEZERE  HIRFEMSMELR. RELZE. FEASKRLRE. RAISHRAOR, BHEFERSR
TR, ARITERIIN—RFIT (FRE) NIRZ. 2. B ZIBFALASEIELRIN, URRENKITEEKRE
EEEENRNEDS,

The Board of Directors fulfills its responsibilities as per applicable laws, regulations and rules as well as the Bank’s Articles of Association and the
Rules of Procedures of the Board of Directors. Its responsibilities include making annual financial budgets and statements, profit sharing plans,

and losses compensation plans. It reviews and approves annual plans on bond issuance. It decides on the establishment, separation, merger and
capital changes of primary branches (subsidiaries) in and outside the Chinese mainland, and on the authorisation to the chairman and the senior

management.
BEERIEE

Work of the Board of Directors

20205, RITEB MMM IR EFNEANINAE, RiTTEASAEBENS, MR AR NER, FHERHEX
BoBpis, RN F L RITURKARRERSEREXBEAEERBIR, RERIRPEHF. eEBRAESSSWIORN, FIEY
2020FEAEITH. 2020FEMSME . 2019FEMEZRE . 2T/ MEBER R 2020FEERNIMRFLITIT
X 2020F EAR RHBFH B ILITRI EM2020F EXN/MEB RN cEXNKERRE . EERKEETENES S LINES2
m, BNHRERITIES LR,

In 2020, the Board of Directors tackled challenges at home and abroad, improved internal mechanism and governance, and enhanced risk
management. It ensured the Bank provided medium- and long-term investment and financial services to advance the state’s strategies and policy
goals. The overall performance of the Bank continued to improve. Over the year, the Board of Directors convened 10 meetings at which members
approved 52 proposals, giving strong guidance to CDB operations. Proposals adopted included the 2020 business operation plan, the 2020
financial budget, the 2019 financial statements, the organisational changes and improvement plans, the 2020 onshore and offshore financial bond

issuing plan, the 2020 plans for the transfer of non-performing assets, the 2020 additional authorisation of outbound donations, comprehensive
risk management report, and regulations on information disclosure.

EESETNERS

Committees of the Board of Directors

AKTEEZESTEREBARNKAEEZRAS BITEAS NEEEBZRS . XBEXSEHZERA
NMEINERS, BSENEZERSRBESSENARIE, DESSRET VARSI EIIET0H
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BEARMRBEEZRR. TEARTHWATKPRREBRNZEEEER, REVSAEZRY AREEREFESR
B RADERITERURESTERITER MRFSEREBEANEERRETHR, 0EFSREBRENS
2020F, ATHBEARNBRAEEZRASAAM AL TRELREASZI, PARSEBHEMNEFELERE, £FETT
SWOR, HIBIE2020F EEE TR 2019FEMZSRE . 2020F EIRAIMIFLITITR. 2020F EXRAFH ER
bt BATER A AU AOB B 7T R 1B MN2020F E XS IMBIE RN E 32N E o

HIHERR TEATHERZARTIHTEZERNTERS, FRPRETIHAMMFEERT IR 58 BE . E2MEN
MERE T TAE, M EMIFNINERE TG TAE, R HIMNBEH ISR 5 BB INF . 2020F, A THHERZESRRES
NE INE WS RESRANEERRETERNSENE, 2FEFNUOR, HIBET2019FERE. 2020 FENH TIF
R AEEFITFNRE . ERIKBEEEMESTUNE.

REERZRS. TEATHENNLEERLR, B ESREEENERXE. DK OREMERE . RIEXK . E 53X
AT EZRE . FEXEHESRINEEE LXK ZS RemXRERER, FXLBER. ERRRRZ KL AT
BENHTERTE RESEXNREEMABEREGNELSE. 2020F, KITNKREBZRLRETENREENERE.
RANKEEZEED, 2EBASIWAR, BNETLENKERIRE  EAHRSEERES . EAXKRIFHRR D IMEXEKE
EIEMEFATULE

KERZGERHNEZERS. TEARTXEXSNEE . FENLE, BRI XEKZXZNE, RN TEEMBENEZ BHXEKZS
FEMEERRARREM. 2020F, KITRKHKXSEFHERCESMIXHKT ZRER MBXKIZENEE. TEXEK
RS EEFENFRZREWNE, EFEGFRWOR, BBINXKETE8, FEXEKXZEREM, REXKXZHEERY.

IR

AESFHERS TEATHNUATENARGENER, IERNTEENSREBARNFH AR mESSREFH
MAREW, FREARLE, ARUETESNSREBARNEEEFNITE, SESNSREEARTRERETY
THEZFABESRRERBINE . 2020F, KATAZSHFHEATELRMBEESASER . MUENERASARER. R
ISEERENE MU TFMAELREWNE, 2EBFRINER, FBWBE NMIULE, REXTILELE.

The Board of Directors has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control, and the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration, all

of which discharge their responsibilities as mandated by the Board of Directors, provide professional advice for the Board of Directors, decide on
technical matters, and report to the Board of Directors.

Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development strategy and
the overarching goal of business management of the Bank and provides suggestions on business changes; monitors the execution of the annual
operational plan, investment plan and the fulfillment of corporate social responsibilities; studies national strategies and the supporting policies and
advises the Board of Directors. In 2020, the Committee studied subjects related to the reform and development of the Bank, aiming to support the
fight against the COVID-19 pandemic and revive the economy. It convened nine meetings over the year to review and adopt 32 proposals, including
the 2020 business operation plan, the 2019 financial statements, the 2020 onshore and offshore financial bond issuing plan, the 2020 plans for the
transfer of non-performing assets, the organisational changes and improvement plans, and the 2020 additional authorisation of outbound donations.

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and approves medium- and long-term audit
plans and annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on external audit; and
advises on the hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2020, the Committee focused on such subjects as strengthening internal audit, external
audit, financial management, internal control, compliance and information disclosure. It convened nine meetings to review and adopt five proposals,
including the 2019 annual report, 2020 internal audit work plan, internal control evaluation report, and regulations on information disclosure.

Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the senior management in their control of
various risks with regard to credit, market, liquidity, operations, country, bank account interest rates, reputation, and IT as well as comprehensive risk
management, conducts regular assessments of risk policies, management, and resilience; advises on how to improve risk management and internal
control. In 2020, the Committee focused on improving the risk management system and capacity. It met four times in which four proposals were
reviewed and adopted, including the comprehensive risk management report, consolidated financial statements of the group, risk appetite statement,
and regulations on outsourcing-related risks.

Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control. This committee manages, reviews, and approves related party transactions; controls the
risks of related-party transactions; and ensures integrity and fairness in the related-party transactions between CDB and its affiliates. In 2020, the
committee enhanced the management of related-party lists, increased compliance management, improved mechanisms and enhanced regulations
in related-party transactions. The committee held two meetings to review and confirm lists of related parties, laying a good foundation for and
improving performance in related-party transaction management.

Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committee reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of the
Bank, draws up and executes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and senior management, advises the Board of Directors on
remuneration plans and supervises the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and senior
management, and examines the qualification of candidates for the directors and senior management and advises the Board of Directors on
the matter. In 2020, the Committee worked to improve the operations of the Board of Directors and strengthen the special committees, senior
management and the staff. It held eight meetings in which 11 proposals were adopted to support the business development of the bank.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

KTHECHESRRBE(EEEASMIMEESETEM) (BERS%2825) £EFE. EAZTREANESZRA
Fo NMTHESHEARISREF.
The Bank’s Board of Supervisors is appointed by the State Council in accordance with laws and regulations including the Provisional Rules on

the Board of Supervisors of Key State-owned Financial Institutions (State Council Decree 282) and reports to the State Council. The Board of
Supervisors has yet to be put in place.

BREER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ATSLREBEATK BTK. EZSUPRAEAMSAEBARMN. SREEERBATERRESFSRIUTREE
EIEAED), HEERAR.

The Bank’s senior management includes President, Executive Vice Presidents, Secretary of the Board of Directors, and other executives. They
discharge duties in operational management as mandated by the Articles of Association and the Board of Directors, and reports to the Board of
Directors.

WERE i+
INTERNAL AUDIT

REATER, RBFEHSHIREARTADESTATAREIE, ABFHHNEIRSESIMHEES. 2020F, &
TNERPREUHZRRRWEM, BXRERR, AFRHAEZTETHME, IFRRTEFRSEREKBRIEEE
BB, RENAREEHENARARERIT, TREIEFETHEAET, BRAETEARETH, RERXHR. BSKE
MEABREREL N BEFREKARKEIT, FERABBMELN. FTRARRAMEBEILEZHE. INLER
W5, HFMRRIWSEEEAF T, FCERNKE, BNTEHEURERNRK R A, TRIBEM L EZHET. EEH
KREEEIT. RAKSE T, REVSENMNAMEBENEH. FRXEKEZZHEIT. EDMNEFEIT, TR019FELHE
RN EREITIFN, T AATREBITEITES. TREFESHIT, REXTEFATEE, BUEHAEE. £HES
BT ERELEREABRERMCUBREANCFERRERE T, MFBRCEL. FRASTIE TR,
BENETFHRERAN. AFZESRALRITRLZESOAANESHR, MEREZEFRTING. MAAIEER
TTRINE AL TN, =FAEITNE. EHEAMHETEIMRE, TRARTAFRERERICEE, MEHEITAR
MEHMERE, MREHFITHERIER, ENHAFIHEERRZRMNENGHITNA. FERHLAZEE, TELH
AR, REFEITARUK.

As mandated by the Articles of Association of the Bank, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors
and work under the guidance and oversight of the Board of Supervisors. In 2020, the Bank implemented the guidelines set at the meeting of the
Audit Commission of the CPC Central Committee, met regulatory requirements and made progress on various audit programs, which ensured the
CDB’s role in supporting national strategies. Timely follow-up auditing was carried out of emergency loans for fighting the COVID-19 pandemic
and auditing was completed of special loans dedicated to boost economic opening and recovery. This made sure the funds were used for their
intended purposes and the major policy measures of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council produced their desired impact. Auditing
continued of loans for poverty reduction programs in support of the national anti-poverty campaign which scored considerable achievements over
the year. Auditing was carried out for NPL transfer and write-off compliance, foreign currency lending business, and M&A loans to prevent credit
risks and contribute to the national program of containing major development risks. Auditing was completed of wealth management services, IT
management, and anti-money laundering to promote compliance and standardised internal control. Auditing of related-party transactions and
stress tests were conducted, the 2019 comprehensive risk management evaluation was completed, and the scope of corporate governance
auditing broadened. Auditing was completed of CDB Securities to strengthen good management in subsidiaries and the control over subsidiaries
by the headquarters. The internal audit function coordinated closely with the National Audit Office in monitoring the CDB’s implementation of
major national policies and the measures for defusing major risks, making corrections where problems were identified. Accountability audits were
carried out to encourage appropriate and prudent exercise of power. Public complaints concerning the CDB’s asset security were handled in a
transparent manner, coupled with follow-up checks and risk reminders. Procedures were improved for uncovering and addressing problems in
internal and external audits to increase the role of auditing. Internal auditing programs were reformed which improved the structure and functions
of internal auditing. Organisation was improved for auditing and the management of auditing programs to build a more efficient system. Special
efforts were made to enhance IT support for auditing and promote the use of off-site auditing. Internal control was constantly strengthened and
the team of auditor reinforced to raise efficiency.
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OVERVIEW

2020, RITNERAERZWER, RERSASEBHENEFTHLE, NMRAERREMNE, BEBYIXFI
BEFER, MREAELERBEATER, @NRS SR AR, RRFEHEXNKR, SMITERESERTFRN.. F
BEFEHRE (ROA)0.71%, FHFE=KWzmE (ROE) 8.27%.

In 2020, CDB implemented the national macro policies and supported efforts to combat the COVID-19 pandemic and reopen the economy. It

stepped up lending to give well-targeted support to the real economy. It played a counter-cyclical role to support the “double-six goals”. It curbed
risks in its various lines of business and made prudent progress on all fronts, with an ROA of 0.71% and an ROE of 8.27%.

F5E 4
PROFIT ANALYSIS
5Bz IER*

Income and Expenses

ARTEAT
Million RMB
Bl FiiE
Operating Profit 145,379 (3,266)
Ha: F B
AR 178,949 (20,264)
Net Interest Income
FEBHRMEFEBA
Net Fee and Commission Income 6,177 (3,751)
JL > £
s 25,277 1,371
Investment Income
ARNMEZ R
Fair Value Gains/(Losses) (4,862) 18,391
LR iRz
Foreign Exchange Gains/(Losses) 11,068 (45,857)
ik S 3ipill|
Taxes and Surcharges 4,835 (451)
RFEREREK
Impairment Losses on Assets 53,652 (47,734)
WK ERER
General and Administrative Expenses 12,815 (540)
L UETON
Other Income, Net 5,072 (1,881)
Bl IMNFIA (SZH)
Net Non-Operating Income/( Expense) 173 (239)
FRsfiER 27,041 3.810)
Income Tax Expense
RRE 118,511 305

Profit for the Year
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20204, RTERE WS RIFEE, 2ELIEFE1,188.161Z2 7T, ELEEIEMN0.26% . F| B E WA B AR ITHREZHNWAFKIR,
SELIA EFEKAN,536.85127T

In 2020, CDB maintained a good performance, making a net profit of RMB118,816 million, up by 0.26% year on year. Net interest income, as the
leading source of the Bank’s income, reached RMB153,685 million.

ERAFMTRARIBERR

Interest-bearing Assets, Interest-bearing Liabilities

2020 2019

ARPEATHESLE IR A= FHRER A=

Million RMB or % Average Balance Interest Rate Average Balance Interest Rate

ERET 9
Interest-bearing Assets 15,386,788 4.10%
HA: FRP R RATHIF AR L ZR I
Balance with Central Banks o
and Deposits with Banks and 930,227 2.58%
Other Financial Institutions

HEHEE

Placements with Banks and 192,599 2.43%
Other Financial Institutions

SENRESRA R EHA

Financial Assets Held Under 363,133 2.40%
Resale Agreements

U3 iEE e .
Loans and Advances to Customers 12,009,533 4.88%

R ;
Debt Investment UgEiE 2 SR

TR .
Interest-bearing Liabilities 14,556,400 8.14%
Hep: @k R H A& R 77 RGN
Deposits from Banks and 3,174,077 3.12%
Other Financial Institutions

BB AT E SRS ER
Borrowings from Governments 439,549 3.28%
and Financial Institutions

xhH

R TF 1,558,902 0.73%

Due to Customers

ERITRFIUES 9

Debt Securities Issued 9:819,559 oo

HAh 9

Others 10559 oo
BEE - 1.13%

Net Interest Margin

It 554K 5 53 4
FINANCIAL CONDITIONS ANALYSIS

B ZE 20204 K, A1THEFLEN171,035.75127T, EEEIBKB.63% . B AT EF, B ZE 20205K, RN E
FFE126,403.6212 7T, B ELIEK7.91%, G2 R FZH73.90%. AR EE11566,229.83127T, B EE1E13.39%. & 2 A 4T
RFEMRERE, B ZE 20209k, ELITHREBIESFE107,220.921Z 7T, FEEIEK10.13%, 52 A HRAI68.63%-

At the end of 2020, CDB had a total asset of RMB17,103,575 million, growing by 3.63% year on year. Loans remained the dominant form of
asset, with RMB12,640,362 million of loans and advances, up by 7.91% year on year and accounting for 73.9% of the total assets. Debt stood

at RMB15,622,983 million, up by 3.39% year on year. Debt issuance was the primary source of finance. At the end of 2020, CDB had a balance
of RMB10,722,092 million in debt securities, up by 10.13% year on year and accounting for 68.63% of total debt.
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W &IRR R
Financial Position
ARMEAT |
Million RMB Sy AT +/(-)
#EGit
Total Assets 16,504,575 599,000
W& R AFMLIT R E R
Cash, Balances with Central Banks and Deposits with Banks and 711,808 (238,601)
Other Financial Institutions
BB R
Loans and Advances to Customers 11,713,333 927,029
=1 prAPY N
SRR " 2,882,678 110,941
Investment Securities
A 1,196,756 (200,369)
Others , , ,
ffR&it
Total Liabilities 15,110,840 512,143
ERITRFZIES
Debt Securities Issued 9,735,782 986,310
o B .E (£
FIBU A Bt S R AL 3 - P 05
Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions
ERIZ ISP EISEEE N
Deposits from Banks and Other Financial Institutions and 4,514,613 (467,803)
Due to Customers
Hith
Others 401,686 (46,657)
-oa
AR &R 57t 1,393,735 86,857
Total Equity
TRHEE
Share Capital A B
BANRMBRAT
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve 348,049 20,232
— AN
AR XU B A 238,344 10,622
General Reserve
RAEA B E A
Retained Earnings and Other Equity 362,536 54,738
|» b B P
D BBAEM 23,558 1,265

Non-Controlling Interests

Sy FE B
A R=E
ASSET QUALITY

20204, RTERBIZUBLENKE , REFRTZRERE. BE 2020F K, FREHE0.79%, B L FREMRO.1640E
Ro BUE 2020F K, WHUREESREN4,412.58127T, WFIKEE3.38% , RIFE BRI BHITHE

In 2020, CDB took effective steps to manage risks and maintained good asset quality. At the end of 2020, NPL ratio was 0.79%, down by 0.16
percentage point from the end of the previous year. At the end of 2020, CDB had RMB441,258 million of allowance for loan impairment losses,
with an allowance to total loan ratio of 3.38%. putting itself in a strong position against risks.

REREBRRER
Quality of Loan Assets

ARPEATHESLE

Million RMB or %

E/OSE e S

Gross Loans and Advances to Customers
RREFRREM

Non-Performing Loan Balance
FREZE

Non-Performing Loan Ratio

BRHREES

Allowance for Loan Impairment Losses

12,200,508

115,694

0.95%

517,092
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2020%F, AMTRFRAPKHATELDER, RET R, EFLEFLMSEIER, MANE
RER IS EAHRBHNESFHELAREBUDHSS, £ENRE AR SR, BARFE
SMENSRERE.

In 2020, CDB followed a prudent and proactive approach. Focusing on its mandate as a development finance
institution, CDB bolstered the key areas and strategies identified by the government and the weak sectors in

economic and social development. It spared no effort to support the “double-six goals”, helping the economy to
recover and grow with high quality.

+ 2 >

TR —ETER
NEW INFRASTRUCTURE, NEW URBANISATION AND MAJOR
PROJECTS

B RAILWAYS

REEBRRNEXFEREAXIG K, MNRRRZRXCH, B KK
TUSHRELR. EaXF"/\Y/\E" 5% T4 KFKEL 25K
KR PRI T ISR IR RIEH IR E RIESE KRB .. # E202045F
R, BATEREEITW BT FRREM8,657127T, MEERIFR W EH Lo

CDB innovated financing models at a faster pace to support the high quality
development of the railway sector, with a focus on major national strategies targeting
important regions, such as the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
The major projects CDB supported include the nationwide high-speed rail network
composed of “eight vertical and eight horizontal” lines, cross-region lines, inter-city
and intra-city rails in economically advanced regions as well as maintenance and
renovation of transport equipment. At the end of 2020, with its balance of loans to
the railway sector at RMB865.7 billion, CDB continued to be China’s largest lender to
the railway sector.

d
O HFER/NEALZKEME

Yinchuan-Xi’an Rail Line

ZIEERKE "\ SRk N R GEE NEZHMNE
7o, ARXBEETEGEXRHRTHENNRBEMISERE, X
RHEABMXEREBAEARE N B E 2020F K, KTRITA
1Z I B 1R R $569.3312 7T,

y

This is a key part of the nationwide high-speed railway network connecting
Baotou to Haikou via Yinchuan. It will be a huge infrastructural boost to the
development of Shaanxi-Gansu-Ningxia old revolutionary base and western
China. At the end 2020, total CDB financing to the project stood at RMB6.933

Qllion.
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F4d % HIGHWAYS

MEMBZEEERABE, HHEEETE—
AL, Bh 2 i X M\ =48" FohpkiE &
i%&>%ﬁ*%éj%xLEfﬁu%ﬁf
KA KGR AZBEEKKFE. #E 20205F
R, RITRBITWERRIM22,379127T.

CDB supported the faster construction of all-purpose
transport corridors, including transport connectivity
in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, “four vertical and three
horizontal” transport arteries in Xiongan New Area, and
the all-purpose transport corridor in the Yangtze River

Economic Belt. At the end of 2020, CDB balance of
loans to the highway sector was RMB2,237.9 billion.

O D

M) ERFRSREAKIE

Bazhong-Wanyuan Expressway in Sichuan

ZINE =% B & RE AR R X EAR R IR K E

TR, NHEOKBEARBERNE, w5))lIBEa
KEFRRABEER X . NMTRIZIME ZHERT5

27T

This project is an important part of the infrastructure development

program in the contiguous areas of deep poverty in Qinba

Mountain, critical for poverty reduction in the mountainous region
and economic invigoration in Sichuan-Shaanxi old revolutionary

\base. CDB granted RMB7.5 billion loans.
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B8] ELECTRIC POWER

KAHERNZE . HKERBEN. BXEEXEBELEERRSEEAME, UEFEN
MERSEIE . AR it iE EXBINEEM, RS TMBRIAE. Br P A5 B iR. &
Z 2020F K, RTBE AT HRARIMRK I H1Z27T, £F10,007{Z cEEART.

CDB gave strong support to key power projects, such as nuclear power facilities, pumped-storage
hydroelectricity, inter-region and inter-province thermal electricity supply corridors and supporting
infrastructure. It also supported subsidy-free wind power demonstration projects and large-scale
advanced offshore wind farms in a bid to support China’s carbon peak and neutrality goals and
strategies. At the end of 2020, CDB balance of loans in the power sector hit the RMB 1 trillion mark,
reaching RMB1.0007 trillion-equivalent. .’ﬂ

NE &M EFRT74.3812 7T

The successful commissioning of this project further improves China’s energy mix and
promotes green and low-carbon growth. CDB granted RMB7.438 billion loans for this project.
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In support of flood prevention and mitigation, better distribution of water resources and water environment
rehabilitation, CDB financed a number of major projects, including Songhuajiang River water diversion and supply
in central Jilin, Han River to Wei River water diversion project in Shaanxi, Yongding River Basin comprehensive
treatment, and the urban and rural water supply project in Jiangxi. At the end of 2020, CDB remained the leading
lending to water projects, with a balance of loans of RMB495.4 billion.

Q RERKFIRATEITE

Datengxia Water Conservancy Project
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As one of the 172 flagship water projects identified by the State Council, this project promises to ensure water
security for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area after completion, with multiple functions

including flood prevention, navigation, electricity generation, water supply and irrigation. As the lead arranger
\ofthe loan syndication, CDB granted RMB8.466 billion medium- and long-term loans.
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T BB T8 224 B 605 N Nanjing Urban Rail Project
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CDB used market means to support more FR, AT RITRZIME LM HFRA39.7312 7T

than over 60 projects of urban rail transit in 24 As part of the regional infrastructure development plan of Nanjing, this

cities, such as Shenzhen, Suzhou, Chengdu, project is important for expanding urban connectivity in Nanjing and
and Xi'an. At the end of 2020, CDB balance promoting the integration of Nanjing, Zhenjiang and Yangzhou. At the
of loans in this sector was RMB720.6 billion. tnd of 2020, CDB granted RMB43.973 billion loans.
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CDB scaled up support for the construction,
relocation and upgrading of airports which
serve as regional transport hubs. At the end

of 2020, CDB balance of loans to the civil
aviation sector was RMB201.5 billion.
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EEHNZIENE
New Airport in Qingdao
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This is an important project for developing
the transport system of the city cluster
on Jiaodong Peninsula, with the potential
to be a transport hub for northeast Asia.

CDB, as the lead bank in syndicated
loans, provided RMB7.756 bilion financing

Q the project.
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CDB gave strong support to the development of new infrastructure, with a focus on IT infrastructure, integrated infrastructure, and
innovative infrastructure. Over the year, CDB granted RMB55.3 billion loans to the sector.

e R
D e
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Q BFRE=TEHRLOILE
Digital Fujian Cloud Computing Center
ZNMER2ERRERMERANERBFHRS=FE, WMRKFEEZZREFEEZER ATHEZIMBE R
M EIFR5.2812 7T
This is the first provincial e-government cloud computing platform in China to enter into operation. It plays a demonstrative role for
Qgital Fujian. CDB granted RMB528 million loans.

éﬁ FEGRSEMHIREHZR IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF NEW URBANISATION
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CDB is dedicated to promoting the new type of urbanisation in China which focuses on the well-being of the people. Innovating financing
models to bring in market capital, CDB helped to plug the gaps in infrastructure and public services in the programs that aim to upgrade

the urban areas, develop urban and rural areas at the same time and promote their integration, build more liveable counties, which deliver
better cities and greater quality in development. Over the year, CDB granted RMB230 billion loans to new urbanisation programs.
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PANDEMIC RESPONSE AND ECONOMIC REOPENING AND RECOVERY
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Sinopharm Group Hubei 2020 Emergency Loan Program
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This program was in support of the procurement of emergency
supplies for pandemic control. The businesses benefiting from
the program handled the distribution of over 85% of emergency
supplies across Hubei, effectively meeting pandemic response

needs. The full amount of RMB1 billion loans committed by CDB
Q’ this program was disbursed within 24 hours.
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CDB granted RMB4.42 billion loans for two leading compani
financial support to agricultural businesses as they reco!

CDB has played an active, counter-cyclical role as a development finance institution since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic to implement the

policy decisions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council. It stepped up credit support for pandemic response and economic recover.

Emergency financing for pandemic response. CDB established a fast-track emergency financing mechanism for pandemic response. It was
the first financial institution in China to grant emergency COVID-19 pandemic loans, which totalled RMB31.5 billion over the year. To ensure
compliance, CDB introduced 15 mechanisms on emergency financing to make sure that financial support for important businesses in fighting
COVID-19 pandemic is provided in a timely, sufficient, convenient, and precise manner. To act on the instructions of the central leading group on
fighting COVID-19 pandemic, CDB created a fast track to authorise credit support for large-scale nucleic acid tests amidst major outbreaks. CDB
operationalised the special emergency loan scheme of the PBoC to support the procurement of medical supplies, and completed disbursement
within 24 hours for Sinopharm Group Hubei Co., Ltd. and other priority pandemic-control programs.

Economic reopening and recovery. CDB fought on both fronts of controlling the spread of COVID-19 pandemic and reviving the economy.
Under two newly-created working capital special loans, CDB granted RMB468.1 billion loans to over 1,000 companies as they advanced and
open new projects in infrastructure, manufacturing, and projects important for people’s livelihood. This help to keep the whole industrial chain
open and running at full capacity.

Farming season preparation. An RMB10 billion working capital special loan scheme was created and loans were disbursed in full to help
businesses affected by the pandemic provide agricultural supplies, such as seeds, fertilisers, and feed. The scheme benefited 66 companies in
27 provincial-level regions, supporting preparations for the spring farming season. CDB granted RMB5.7 billion loans through on-lending loans for
spring farming to over 9,000 households, new agri-businesses and small and micro-businesses.
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Hanjiang Group 2020 Working Capital Loans Program
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This is an important program to support the reopening of key SOEs directly overseen by the central government which are located in
impoverished areas. CDB granted RMB400 million loans.

Differentiated credit policies. CDB fine-tuned its credit policies during the special period of fighting the pandemic to meet the emergency and
ensure compliance and efficiency. It postponed the repayment of principals and interests to help ease business burden.

Comprehensive financial services. To leverage market capital in support of the fight against COVID-19 pandemic, CDB issued a special bond
of RMB13.5 billion, the largest in the market and first available to the general public, providing low-cost funding for the effort to contain the virus.
CDB was the lead underwriter of 11 COVID-themed bonds worth a total of RMB11 billion, significantly contributing to businesses involved in the
fight against COVID-19 pandemic and the resumption of business activities.

Foreign trade and investment. Two foreign currency special lending schemes were created to support businesses resume operation and reach
their full capacity. A special lending scheme for stabilising foreign trade and supporting BRI was set up to boost import and export and BRI
programs affected by the pandemic. A special lending scheme for the global logistics supply chain was established. A China-Latin America anti-
epidemic special lending scheme was created to support public health programs in Latin American and Caribbean countries. CDB completed the
full disbursement of the loan facility to the African Export-Import Bank to support PATIMFA.

Donations to the frontline. CDB donated RMB20 million to Hubei Charity Federation on 27 January 2020; four subsidiaries of CDB donated
another RMB20 million to Hubei; CDB staff members donated over RMB6.82 million. CDB purchased more than 4.5 million pieces of medical
supplies for the frontline in Hubei, donated 1.13 million pieces of PPEs to overseas Chinese, including Chinese students, and its overseas
partners and other overseas financial institutions, demonstrating a great sense of responsibility as a development finance institution.
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FIGHTING AGAINST POVERTY
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Settlement of Poor Households Relocated to Daping in Wuchuan, Guizhou
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CDB provided RMB304 million for the construction of the settlements, helping 8,700 people move out of deep mountains where
Qonditions for living and economic development are forbidding.
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Guitar Manufacturing Base Demonstration Project in

Zheng’an, Guizhou (Phase II)
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Guitar manufacturing in the county of Zheng’an, which is paired
up with CDB, was luring workers who had left the county for
job opportunities elsewhere to return home and start their own
businesses. 89 companies were set up in the base, employing

14,000 people, helping to lift the local standards of living and
consolidate the gains in eliminating poverty. CDB granted a total

\OfRMB45O million loans for the project.
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In 2020, CDB continued to follow the three-pronged strategy of providing institutional, financial, and intellectual support for poverty reduction
and the four policy thrusts of supporting provincial relocation programs, county-level infrastructure programs, business initiatives in villages and
firms, and financial support targeting students from households in poverty to pursue their studies. Focusing on poverty alleviation in counties and
villages retaining the poverty label, and consolidation of the achievements of poverty alleviation, CDB granted RMB244.5 billion targeted poverty-
reduction loans in 2020, supporting poor regions in overcoming the impact of the pandemic and sustaining the better standards of living.

Poverty alleviation in poor counties and regions. CDB formulated tailor-made financial services plans for the 52 counties that were still labelled
as being poor. Over the year, CDB granted RMB60.4 billion loans to the very poor regions in Tibet, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Gansu, Sichuan and
Yunnan, and provided with them better credit policy, lower cost of loans, expedited procedures of review, better allocation of resources, and more
convenient means of services.

On-lending loans support for poverty eradication. Working with banks in villages and small towns to offer re-lending support, CDB streamlined
credit review procedures. Over the year, CDB granted RMB28.9 billion on-lending loans to 673 poor counties on the national list.
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Supporting forestry industries to fight poverty. Following President Xi Jinping’s instruction about “lucid waters and lush mountains being
invaluable assets”, CDB granted RMB24.8 billion loans for forestry industries that were nurtured as a means to eradicate poverty in forestry areas.

Post-relocation support. CDB granted RMB25.8 billion loans for the post-relocation development of settlement areas, which helped 620,000
relocated people settle down in the new villages and find employment and the means to live a better life.

Supporting East-West partnership. CDB provided financing support for businesses in eastern China that regularly employed workers in the
poor western regions. It granted RMB46.1 billion loans for the East-West partnership.

Intellectual support for poverty eradication. CDB granted RMB33.5 billion loans to 4.5 million students from poor families. The Bank organised
training workshops for 473 government officials responsible for managing poverty-reduction programs in poor counties that have a one-on-one
partnership with central government departments and CDB and areas of deep poverty in Tibet and Xinjiang. Another 6,800 officials and personnel
received training via the Internet, videos, and television. CDB provided for the first time job skills training for more than 140,000 people in the
partner counties and counties that were still labelled as being poor.

Pairing up with poor regions. CDB was paired up with four poor counties to provide targeted assistance, which requires continued involvement,
policy support, assistance, and monitoring even if the counties are to be removed from the poverty list. Over the year, CDB donated RMB36.39
million to the counties, trained 4,846 grass-roots level officials and 1,050 technical personnel, purchased agricultural produce worth RMB24.78
million, and helped sell produce worth RMB5.39 million. By 2020, 1,664 “CDB Support Awards” had been given out to rural teachers in the
counties.

Comprehensive financial services. CDB issued RMB11 billion of its first poverty-reduction bonds. Over the year, as the lead underwriter, CDB
issued RMB1 billion poverty-reduction bonds and RMB58.82 billion bonds for businesses in northwest and southwest China where poverty was
more prevalent, providing strong financial support for poverty eradication.
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University students in Tianjin were seeking advice on student loans offered by CDB
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EMPOWERING NEW ENGINES OF GROWTH
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ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND SCIENTIFIC INNOVATION
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In 2020, CDB provided medium- and long-term financial support for strengthening basic industrial capacity and
the development of modern industrial chains. In firm support of advanced manufacturing and the upgrading of
traditional manufacturing, CDB granted RMB265.9 billion medium- and long-term loans for manufacturing over
2020. Under the funding cooperation scheme for manufacturing, CDB signed partnership agreements with seven
cities, including Wenzhou and Dalian, worth RMB11.6 billion. CDB continued to provide the investment and loan
linkage service for science and technology companies, which had benefitted 78 clients. A pilot program that
draws on the strengths of development finance to support medium, small and micro businesses in science and
technology sector was actively promoted through a “finance+collateral” model that can provide efficient services.
A total of 122 medium, small and micro businesses were admitted into the program.

A
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BOE 6th-Generation AMOLED Production Line in Chongqing
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This project promises to enhance the capacity of BOE’s sustainable growth and the cluster effect of the display
panels industry in Chengdu and Chongging, producing a positive impact on the nearby regions. As the lead
an in a loan syndication, CDB provided RMB5.125 billion and USD736 million for the project.
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With a strong commitment to responsible financing and carbon peak
and neutrality goals and strategies, CDB supported environmental
protection programs in the treatment of air, water, and soil pollution.
In terms of sewage treatment, waste disposal and rehabilitation of
important river basins, CDB unveiled an EOD model, “ecology plus”
model, and ecological value compensation mechanism, targeted the
weak areas of environmental protection to practise the instruction
about “lucid waters and lush mountains being invaluable assets”. In
2020, CDB granted RMB606.2 billion loans to green industries and
issued RMB15 billion green financial bonds, including a RMB10 billion
climate change bonds. CDB was also the lead underwriter of five
green bonds, accounting for 13.2% of the green bonds issued by
China’s National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors
in the year.

B
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Xuzhou Circular Economy Industrial
Park (Phase I)
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This is China’s first base for the circular
use of resources and part of the “zero
waste city” national pilot program. It
offers good practices for financing

environmental protection programs
with new models. CDB made a loan

koommitment of RMB4.547 billion loans.
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Upgrading of Four Sewage Treatment Plants in Shenyang




EkB&E & STRATEGIC PRIORITIES | 51

R 3t X1 10 & R

BALANCED REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT
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In 2020, CDB supported the national strategy of regional development, unveiled the Program of Action in Support of the State
Strategy of Regional Development, which produced significant results by tapping into development finance resources.
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Water Pollution Treatment of Yihe River at Luanchuan in Luoyang, He’nan
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This project is important for ecological preservation and high quality development of the Yellow River Basin in Luoyang. CDB
Qade a commitment of RMB895 million loans.
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Yongding River Basin Comprehensive Treatment and Ecological Rehabilitation
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This is an important water project under the 13th five-year plan and the first demonstration project for inter-province river basin treatment, with
Qspecial significance for Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration. CDB made a loan commitment of RMB1.459 billion loans.
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In terms of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration, CDB supported the construction of a new highway for No. 109 national road and Beijing-Hebei
boundary to Jinshi expressway section of Beijing new airport to Dezhou expressway. CDB published the 2020 Plan of Action to Support
Environmental Protection and Green Development of the Yangtze River Basin, helping to bring the main stream and branches of the river all under
the protection program and delivering a real impact in environmental improvement along the River. In 2020, CDB granted RMB488.8 billion loans
and issued RMBS5 billion special green finance bond for Yangtze River protection. To promote the development in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, CDB granted RMB299.6 billion loans and issued a special bond of RMB10 billion. To further increase the support to the
Yangtze River Delta Integration, CDB published the Guidelines on Supporting the Yangize River Delta Integration. CDB prepared its first financing
plan for nine provincial-level regions along the Yellow River, to promote ecological preservation and quality development in the basin. CDB
introduced the Critical Tasks in Reinvigorating the Industrial Bases in Northeast China as working document, and supported reforms, innovation,
and high quality development in the area.
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Yangtze River Economic Belt Green Development Demonstration Project in Guangyang
Island of Chongging (Phase I)
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Guangyang Island is the biggest island in the Yangtze River, an innovation base of the Ministry of Ecology

and Environment for practicing the instruction about “lucid waters and lush mountains being invaluable
assets”. By the end of 2020, CDB had granted RMB6.4 billion loans for the project.
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IMPROVING PEOPLE’S LIVELIHOOD

1FEM{EEEI® AFFORDABLE HOUSING

20205, AT R EESREURAREEMERR, BRBHZEEEANEN, HERAZTE/MFRI, KESIM
ANREEEEZERNERZFNE RZHEHP S X RSB SR, TEHRTEREX, 2 HREEZIE.
MRRRED . THFERAEXASHEZ IBNKBE, 5K HI5E55 50T FMEZE B/ X S0S i
SN, IR R BREIES —HHEZIR/NKET B & MANEREFHRBZFNE, #
AN RESMREERRTEEIEEM, STA0TR ORI MHE S E R E IFERE.

In 2020, guided by the national goal of full housing coverage for the entire population and following market principles and the rule of
law, CDB stepped up credit support for affordable housing projects with improved financing models. CDB financed the upgrading of
shanty towns by giving full support to projects under construction as per government policy requirements. CDB was committed to
supporting the renovation of old apartment buildings in line with market principles and with financial sustainability. It signed strategic
cooperation agreements with five provinces including Shandong and Zhejiang, on the renovation of dilapidated housing blocks, kicking

off a number of projects in the provinces of He’'nan, Shandong, Shaanxi, and Jiangxi. CDB increased support for affordable rental
housing by financing the rollout of projects in Suzhou and Fujian and completing credit review for projects in He’nan and Shenzhen.

Q BrARARKZXZR/NXGERANETH
Upgrading of Dilapidated Apartment Buildings in Chang’an District, Xi’an, Shaanxi
ZIMB@iSsaEmEK. FRIMNERE. TENXAHERFZIZENERIZIESTEE,
RABRBEREZ. XTI B A& B K FK6.5127T-

This project improved housing conditions with water-proofing and insulation, better public infrastructure and
service facilities. CDB made a loan commitment of RMB650 million loans.
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In 2020, CDB formulated the Program of Action to Improve Financial Services for the Private
Sector, a cocktail of measures were adopted to provide financial services for private businesses
and support scientific and technological innovation. On-lending loans were issued on a larger
scale as the dominant form of services for small and micro businesses. In partnership with 645
city commercial banks, rural commercial banks and rural credit cooperatives, CDB advocated low
interest rate loans for small and micro businesses, effectively easing their financing difficulties and
burdens. At the end of 2020, CDB balance of on-lending loans was RMB219.4 billion, supporting
more than 250,000 small and micro businesses.

QO FRMSMIFAINBERXMZIFHFERNMIEL LR
Medium, Small and Micro Technology Startups in Zhongguancun Science Park
ATERINBREXEEZRS PANRRREEFREGREAIMEE
B, B NERRE FELRZEeEETR S, XET7T—#ES
ERBNNFNERZEEREN, AR XNNERXNEVETE~
MFRBREE.

CDB unveiled new products, “pandemic-

response and development loan” and “funding
cooperation scheme for manufacturing”

together with Zhongguancun Technology
Park Administration Committee and Beijing
Zhongguancun Sci-tech Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd. A number of promising medium,
small and micro businesses in the field of
science and technology received support,
adding impetus to business reopening and
rowth in the Park.

\_
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RURAL REVITALISATION AND URBAN-RURAL INTEGRATION
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In 2020, CDB enhanced support for the agricultural sector, development of rural areas, and farmers. The main areas of support
included agricultural industries, rural infrastructure, and environmental protection in rural areas. To promote high-standard farmland
construction, CDB ran pilot programs on transferring non-farming rural land and using rural property as collateral in Yingtan Pilot Zone
in Jiangxi. CDB also increased support for the new type of urbanisation, rural industries, improvement of living environment in rural
areas, access to public services, and the free flow of production factors between urban and rural areas.

HRZMNHEMARWREE —RERIREXTR

Modern Agriculture Demonstration Park Agricultural Program in Lanzhou New Area in Gansu
ZIMENZFAMRIY =Rkl R R HFHFLREN . RRFRABEREGRRE N K1TRIZ
IE 2 W22 TT.

This is an important base for the growth of leading agricultural businesses in Lanzhou and poverty elimination in the neighboring
Qreas. CDB granted RMB200 million loans.
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ELDERLY CARE, EDUCATION, HEALTH CARE AND CULTURE
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In elderly care, CDB made good use of its special old-age care loans, innovated financing models and stepped up support for the
growth of new market players, promoting the integrated development of an old-age care system composed of home care, community
care, and institutional care. At the end of 2020, CDB balance of loans in this sector was RMB21.4 billion. In education, CDB
supported China’s education strategy and financially supported the deep integration of production, education, and research. At the
end of 2020, CDB balance of loans in education was RMB60 billion. In healthcare, CDB targeted the weak areas, helping to support
pandemic control in various regions of the country and the upgrading of public healthcare systems. At the end of 2020, CDB balance
of loans in healthcare was 40.2 billion. In culture, CDB supported the high quality development of the culture and tourism industries.
At the end of 2020, CDB balance of loans in the cultural sector was RMB52.7 billion.

0 d

IAREEENABE LVEFSERPFLELERR

Porcelain Heritage Protection and Development Program in Jingdezhen, Jiangxi

ZNME RS EHERBEXHNEAUHIXELEKBZENEEANS, WREHEITEN I AXUHTFEE.
BEBIUZHEBEER X . AMTRZIB LM EFR9.212 7T,
This is an important part of the national porcelain culture inheritance and innovation pilot zone in Jingdezhen, promising to be a

platform for international cultural exchange and a boost to the cultural legacy of Jingdezhen, which is widely known as the “capital
onroelain”. CDB provided RMB920 million loans.
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HIGH QUALITY DEVELOPMENT OF BELT AND ROAD INITIATIVE
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O IDRALNEHEMKidurongM S BIGTE

Tanjung Kidurong Gas-fired Power Plant in Sarawak, Malaysia

ZIMBRSRAL D HHBMNEREMIREINE , 2 ERHH PRI ZNEFERSL, HEBRIBKNIWA
B Ko BE 20204 K, KTHHRHO 89T

This is a landmark infrastructure project of Malaysia in Sarawak. Once completed, it will increase the share of clean energy in the state of Sarawak
Qd better meet the growing demand for electricity. At the end of 2020, CDB balance of loans to the project was EUR89 million.
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Copper Mining in Aktogai, Kazakhstan
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It hosts a flagship project in China-Kazakhstan production
capacity cooperation. CDB provided USD1.34 billion and RMB1

billion for the first phase and supported the second phase in
partnership with the Development Bank of Kazakhstan.
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In 2020, CDB supported infrastructure connectivity, industrial capacity cooperation, business cooperation, trade, and
financial cooperation in line with international practices and market principles and ensuring debt sustainability. Its
sustained and targeted support was instrumental in the partners’ pandemic control, economic and social progress,
industrial transformation, and improvement of living standards. CDB promoted exchange and practical cooperation
under multilateral arrangements such as SCO (Shanghai Cooperation Organisation) Interbank Association, China-
ASEAN Interbank Association, China-Africa Inter Bank Association, and China-Latin America Development Financial
Institutions Association. CDB and other members of BRICS Interbank Cooperation Mechanism introduced the
BRICS MOU on DFls Principles for Responsible Financing, which plays a constructive role in promoting inclusive and
sustainable growth, global poverty reduction and green finance. CDB implemented with good results the RMB30 billion-
equivalent special lending scheme of SCO Interbank Association, signing a number of contracts and disbursing loans.
CDB supported projects such as the Vientiane to Vang Vieng expressway in Laos under cross-border RMB facility
cooperation initiatives, which deepened the internationalisation of the RMB. To expand the pool of talents in partner
countries, especially talents with a broad international vision, CDB funded 77 students from 21 countries and provided
one-off financial reward for 56 outstanding students from 22 countries.

RYIBER IR B TR

Ghana Thermal Power Station Undertaken by Shenzhen Energy Group

ZINBERAIMEE T INNREBOFE, AMPETF
REMNRADEEHRRITE. RITRIEEFNE
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IR R KHAI ST FR3.5812% T, RIEERARE SR M
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The project greatly alleviated energy shortages in Ghana,
contributing to local economy and living standards. CDB
leverages its resources across the group to provide
“loan+investment” one-stop services. It provided USD358 million

medium- and long-term loans; the China-Africa Development
Fund, a subsidiary of CDB, made an investment of USD79.89

Qﬂillion in the project.
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PLANNING AND RESEARCH
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In 2020, CDB continued to leverage the role of planning and research to provide intellectual and institutional support for development. To ensure
a good start of the 14th five-year plan, CDB worked with government ministries to carry out planning and research for priority regions and
industries and drew up its own program of work in the next five years. Together with local governments and business clients, focusing on the
major national strategies and priority sectors, including major regional development strategies, upgrading of industrial base, modernisation of

industrial chains, new type of urbanisation, rural invigoration, CDB developed investment and financing plans for the “eastward advancement” of
Chengdu, renovation of dilapidated areas of Shanghai, rural invigoration in Hu’nan, and quality development of manufacturing in Liaoning.

CDB supported think tank development in China and strengthened the bank-wide working mechanism. To promote theoretical research in development
finance, CDB organised virtual seminars and published theoretical textbooks. It co-hosted the “International Forum on Sharing Poverty Reduction
Experience” and the online seminar “Financial Support for International Poverty Reduction”, which showcased the achievements development finance
had made in helping to alleviate poverty and promoted the exchange of good practices. CDB also supported research on the macro-economy, BRI,
financial markets, regional economic development, and industrial development.
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In 2020, CDB followed a cross-cycle funding approach and innovated with the development of the primary and secondary markets for CDB

bonds, providing strong funding support for the business development of the Bank. Over the year, CDB issued RMB2.38 trillion financial bonds,

adding to a total of RMB21 trillion and a balance of RMB10 trillion. USD8.2 billion overseas bonds were issued. International ratings agencies like
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s consistently put CDB at the same level as China’s sovereign rating.
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Building the primary market. CDB issued a COVID-themed bond, the biggest on the market and the first to be available to the general public,
providing low-cost emergency financing for pandemic control. CDB issued China’s first special bond for poverty eradication to leverage market capital
in support of the battle against extreme poverty. CDB issued the first climate themed green finance bonds through Bond Connect on multiple markets,
which increased bond market infrastructure connectivity. To facilitate the coordinated development of various regions, CDB also issued bonds for the
development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and green finance bonds for Yangtze River Protection through Bond Connect.

Enhancing interconnection between primary and secondary markets. CDB conducted China’s first financial bonds bi-directional market-
making support operation, contributing to liquidity and stability of the bond markets. CDB offered its bonds on the Luxembourg, Singapore,
and Macao Exchanges for the first time. The annual trading volume of CDB bonds was RMB57 trillion, accounting for 38% of rates bond
transactions and leading the market for seven years in a row. The 10-year CDB bond was among the most traded on the market and regarded as
a pacesetter.

Increasing overseas financing activities. CDB successfully issued overseas bonds in multiple foreign currencies, which were popular with
international investors and won the recognition of the market. CDB won the award of “Best Quasi-sovereign Bond” with its GBP1 billion bond. Its
EUR1.25 billion bond was its first zero coupon rate bond. Its RMB6.5 billion overseas RMB bond was the biggest book-building issuance of high-
grade offshore RMB bonds.

chia)lk 55

INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS
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CDB made steady progress in intermediary business in 2020, meeting the diversified demand of clients for financing and financial services.
Bill acceptance was RMB20.57 billion over the year, up by 21% year on year, reaching 103 business clients. CDB made use of a variety of
intermediary service products, including bills, factoring, guarantee, and asset securitisation, to support balanced development across regions,
weak industrial sectors, green energy, and high-end manufacturing. Its asset custody business made new progress, with a balance of RMB496.7
billion at the end of 2020. Salary payment guarantee business was promoted to help ensure that rural migrant workers were paid with their due
salaries, which demonstrates CDB’s commitment to its social responsibilities, and ten guarantees were given with a total guaranteed amount of
RMB43.71 million.

In 2020, CDB served as an underwriter for 133 clients, completing the issuance of 218 debenture bonds for a total of RMB274.39 billion. Bonds
and loans were effectively synergised to provide comprehensive financial services and mobilise market capital for the priority areas and key
programs of the country and reducing financing costs for the real economy.
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CREDIT MANAGEMENT
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In 2020, CDB deepened reform of comprehensive credit and review systems, especially the mechanisms of due diligence, review and decision
making in limit management and authorisation. Limit management and centralised control was enhanced through a mechanism that mandates
credit limits for group clients, comprehensive credit limits for single clients, and limits for single transactions. Bank branches were made
accountable for the management of clients’ accounts, with a “client-centered” approach to curb multi-end credit. Positions of credit review
managers were created with a clear set of responsibilities to improve well-informed decision-making. A category-based management system was
put in place to ensure science-based and differentiated authorisation. Credit risk management of the subsidiaries were included in comprehensive
credit management, with consolidated supervision effectively implemented and full exposure of risks accurately captured. A special mechanism
was set up for credit lines to strategic clients, which provides a package of differentiated credit line measures that increases responsiveness and
service delivery.
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In 2020, CDB continued to improve settlement services. Over the year, RMB and foreign currency settlement for clients amounted to RMB24.1
trillion, RMB and foreign currency clearing RMB207 trillion, treasury and bond settlement RMB167 trillion. The goal of zero accident in operation
and zero loss in funds was realised. Counters directly managed by the headquarters entered into operation, providing settlement and clearing
services in international business directly under the headquarters. CDB improved the systems, regulations, procedures, and mechanisms for a
multi-tiered system of both RMB and foreign currency accounts. CDB pushed forward the development of the new generation system for core
business and operationalised the cross-border RMB payment system and comprehensive accounting management system. CDB branches

improved services for star-rated status, with three of them recognised as among the top 1,000 bank branches in the country and 27 star-rated
branches.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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In 2020, CDB deepened its strategic cooperation with partners in the industry and expanded areas of cooperation. CDB established more on-
lending loans partnerships to support poverty eradication and economic reopening. CDB remained an industry leader of syndicated loans and

was again awarded “Annual Award for Best Performance in Loan Syndication” by China Banking in 2020. A number of its domestic and overseas
programs were also awarded “Annual Award for Best Program in Loan Syndication” for their excellence.

ANRFBESAHLENE

HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2020, following the CPC’s guidelines on organisation, CDB continued to improve the professional competence of its staff members. New
reforms were introduced to its human resources management, including reforms of promotion methods, withdrawals, and prevention of conflict
of interests to make the system work better for the selection, development, and supervision of officials. To ensure the central tasks of the Bank,
outstanding teams were put together at various levels. In response to the call of the government for stabilising employment, CDB adopted
multiple methods to attract talents and motivate the staff. Institutional, remuneration, and evaluation reforms were carried out to make CDB better
positioned for quality and sustained growth.

In 2020, to implement national strategies and promote reform and development more effectively, CDB further improved its internal organisation.
The headquarters underwent adaptive reforms which streamlined its institutional setup, renamed the departments, and strengthened the capacity
of the branches for credit review, disbursement review, and security. At the end of 2020, CDB had 37 tier-one branches and four tier-two
branches at home, one branch in Hong Kong and ten representative offices overseas, and five subsidiaries.
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In 2020, CDB provided science-based and professional training for its staff. Online streaming and virtual sessions were given to keep the vigor,
flexibility, and coverage of training under the constraints of the pandemic. To develop a staff with strong political awareness, professional skills
and integrity, the CDB Party School held 15 training sessions. Training sessions were given on the priority and most challenging businesses of the
Bank to strengthen its teams’ capacity as they support the national strategies to boost the weak economic sectors, prevent risks, and promote
development. Resources for training were enriched, with 29 case studies developed, eight textbooks produced, and online training system
strengthened, which promises to deliver better training for the staff.

SERKEHE
IT MANAGEMENT
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In 2020, CDB improved its IT sophistication and IT support for banking services. CDB deepened reforms and rolled out the key IT-supported
services, including cross-border RMB payment, LPR conversion, LIBOR reform, and direct management by headquarters of international
businesses. There were new applications of digital technologies, such as the credit risk early-warning system, off-site auditing monitoring system,
and Internet information monitoring and analysis system. Development of the new generation core system was basically completed and user
testing was carried out to prepare for the final launch. E-banking development was accelerated, special plans for various businesses released,
new online financial products unveiled and new channels developed. IT governance, information security management system, and cyber security

was enhanced. To build a strong foundation for safe operations, the framework composed of three centers in two geographical regions was put
in place.
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SUBSIDIARIES
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) was founded in August 2009 with a registered capital of RMB71.39 billion. In 2020, it focused resources on
supporting high-end manufacturing, scientific and technological innovation, national strategies for regional development, livelihood projects, and
the BRI. It played a counter-cyclical role, increasing investment by RMB47.5 billion. It also maintained a firm hand on risks and improved business

management to steadily transform and upgrade its businesses. At the end of 2020, its total asset was RMB137.2 billion and the asset in its
custody was over RMB410 billion.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities) was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company in August
2017, with a registered capital of RMB9.5 billion. In 2020, its total volume of bond underwriting reached RMB114.5 billion, maintaining a leading
position in government-backed institutional bonds. It issued 11 COVID-themed bonds, such as Hubei Provincial Communications Investment
Group Bond (China’s first bond in support of businesses involved in pandemic response ), mobilising RMB13.74 billion. CDB Securities was rated

a class-A securities dealer by China Securities Regulatory Commission for four years in a row. At the end of 2020, its total asset was RMB44.074
billion.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (CDB Financial Leasing) was created in May 2008 with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion and was listed
on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in July 2016. In 2020, the company stayed committed to quality development and made

good progress in strategic layout, business development, corporate governance, risk management and internal control. At the end of 2020, its
total asset increased to RMB303.33 billion and revenues RMB19.33 billion.
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China-Africa Development Fund
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CAD Fund was established in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specialising in Africa investments. In 2020, it actively
supported African and Portuguese-speaking countries in fighting the pandemic, focusing on agriculture, healthcare, infrastructure, energy and
resources. To promote cooperation with Portuguese-speaking countries, the China-Portuguese Speaking Countries Cooperation and Development

Fund was set up and running with all of the pledged USD1 billion in capital. By the end of 2020, it had made investment commitments of USD5.5
billion in 37 African countries, contributing to the high quality and steady development of China-Africa cooperation.
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COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2020, coping with complexities and challenges at home and abroad, CDB continued to stick to its cautious risk appetite, refining its risk
management system, processes, and tools. It deepened its risk management system reform to create a clear governance structure and fully-
developed procedures, modernise the toolkit and carry out effective monitoring. A group-wide exercise was carried out to identify, evaluate, and
categorise risks and determine responses. A risk appetite statement was prepared and a multi-layered risk appetite management framework
established for improved risk appetite decomposition and transmission. The group client management system was upgraded to further shift the
focus from projects to clients. The client concentration management framework was reinforced and a proactive approach adopted. Consolidated

financial statements management was enhanced to provide a panoramic view for decision-making. Risk awareness of the entire staff was increased
to support the functioning of the mechanisms.
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CREDIT RISK
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In 2020, CDB further improved its credit management system and procedure to clearly define responsibilities, strengthen mechanisms, streamline
processes, balance between different functions, and increase efficiency. It released CDB System of Credit Business and CDB Credit Business
Manual, which made credit management more organic, law-based, and sophisticated. Rating standards were refined and rules were set out for
the rating of major risk incidents. Credit rating became more prudential and time-sensitive. The risk warning system enabled by big data was
further advanced, better using artificial intelligence to detect and analyse and prevent risks. Risk management was intensified in key areas and
monthly checkups in branches were carried out to thoroughly review potential risks in group clients and industries with excess capacity, and
made response plans for risk-prone clients.

In 2020, CDB disposed of RMB82.4 billion non-performing loans. The three-year campaign helped CDB increase its risk resilience, with almost
all existing risks properly handled. New improvements were made to the prevention of credit risks, with disbursement review centers for CDB
branches set up to exercise concentrated, professional reviews at the point of disbursement. Rules were introduced to identify the banks
managing client accounts and standardise requirements for contract modification. Guarantee risks were put under stronger control with enhanced
measures for determining the appropriate collateral value. To continuously improve sophisticated management of credit, the Credit Management
Manual was fully amended, 12 bank-wide regulations were made, and 17 were amended. Training sessions were carried out; credit monitoring
and examination mechanisms were reinforced; and credit risk awareness enhanced.
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MARKET RISK
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In 2020, CDB continuously intensified its market risk management. Sticking to a cautious market risk appetite, it followed closely changes on
the international and domestic financial markets, with a special focus on where it has business presence. It enhanced group-wide market risk
management and reporting, adopted varied risk management strategies and maintained effective control over its exchange rate risk exposure.

It optimised mechanisms and procedures and built stronger risk management systems for treasury transactions, which further enhanced its
capacity for risk management in this area.
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LIQUIDITY RISK

RTHARBRFAGBERNRTLRMSEHWFE, HRELSLZRITZRUHNSEE, 20205F, A TRBIREIR
S EERE, REALAMSRIMNESRK RS ZRES, FAZERERPNERMAIHEEBR. AMTRIIMEEE
URRXBEZLPTHE2VESRE, FoISEE2TASRAROMI~AGREEER, EHARRNMEE DN, B OR01ME
KB HIE, BRANMEESEEE, RESTANMERZS.

CDB maintains a balanced mix of assets and liabilities and ensures an optimal match between their maturities. This was also constantly adapted
to changes in its business and the market. In 2020, following a prudent liquidity management approach and in light of how development finance
obtains and uses its funding resources, CDB improved cycle-neutral funding and liquidity management practices. The liquidity management
system covers the entire business process, dynamically monitors bank-wide cash flow gaps and asset-liability matching positions, conducts

regular liquidity stress tests, puts in place liquidity risk buffers, and ensures adequate liquidity reserves and improves liquidity structure, thus
protecting the liquidity safety of the whole bank.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2020, CDB continuously improved its three tools for managing operational risks, examined and improved the systems for monitoring key
indicators of operational risks and for collecting and reporting incidents. A database for points of operational risks was under development.
Outsourcing risk management was stepped up for IT, business operation, professional services, and support services. A strategic plan for bank-
wide outsourcing was laid out in an effort to develop a system of outsourcing risk management. Frameworks and procedures were improved
to reduce sources of risk, exercise strict control over the whole procedure, keep risks under tight control, and punish breach of regulations.
In tandem with the development of institutions, input of resources was guaranteed to effectively prevent and defuse all kinds of risk incidents.
Related transactions and internal transactions were managed in a whole-of-group way, with stronger procedures for compliance approval,
updated lists of related parties, and prompt monitoring, statistics collection and reporting of related transactions.
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In 2020, CDB improved its compliance risk management, making the management structure more comprehensive and procedures streamlined.
The permanent management review mechanism was put to effective use, which clearly defines responsibilities, keeps full records, maintains clear
standards for closures, implements truly effective measures, and addresses both the causes and symptoms. Under this mechanism, reviews
were carried out across the group which found that a growing number of solutions identified were adopted on the ground to address problems
identified in the past five years. CDB carried out cross-section monitoring and reporting, developed more monitoring tools and information carriers
and strengthened the compliance management system to appreciate the full picture and dynamics of group-wide compliance and effectively
monitor compliance risks. CDB implemented regulatory requirements and the /mplementation Methods of Supervision of CDB and carried out a
credit review campaign and compliance campaign to keep irregularities at bay, continued to maintain effective communication with regulators.
CDB fostered a strong compliance culture through training, contests, and regulatory policy interpretation to increase everyone’s awareness.
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REPUTATIONAL RISK
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In 2020, CDB continued to fine-tune the system and mechanisms for reputational risk management to establish a more positive image of CDB.

Public opinion was gauged constantly to strengthen the inspection and early warning of reputational risk. The Bank studied public opinion initiatively
and responded timely to concerns. Internal compliance reviews on reputational risk management was conducted to increase staff awareness.

& 71 XU B

COUNTRY RISK
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In 2020, CDB continuously improved the monitoring and early warning system for international business risks, the national and sovereign rating
models, and the mechanisms for setting country risk limits. Risk management strategies were tailored to the realities in different countries.
Quarterly reports on international business risks and special reports on priority areas were produced to fully reflect realities and cases of

international business risks were collected. Risk management was exercised to guide and support international businesses, making sure there
was a “fire wall” against risks.
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STRATEGIC RISK
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In 2020, CDB continued to observe and analyse the strategic environment and policies and follow closely the changing factors determining
strategic risks to enhance strategic risk management. Quarterly monitoring and evaluation of group-wide strategic risks were conducted and
incorporated into the comprehensive risk management system.
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IT RISK
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In 2020, CDB reinforced IT risk management system and the relevant framework and procedures, especially the three lines of defence. IT risk

assessment was carried out to detect and manage all kinds of IT risks. A monitoring system was set up composed of various indicators that
cover all areas relevant to IT risks to regularly monitor and report risk and be proactive in response.
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In 2020, CDB continued to strengthen internal control. The structure was enhanced for authorisation management, and the mechanism for
differentiated authorisation and dynamic adjustments was improved; dynamic adjustments of basic authorisation in branches were carried out;
a closed loop was created connecting authorisation scope and performance assessment with the system of internal control indicators. Internal
control indicators system was overhauled and off-site and on-site evaluations of the main business lines and all branches were conducted. The

internal control and compliance system was refined to make it more consistent with regulatory standards and an institutional forum was created.
31 internal rules were made or amended to increase the effectiveness of the system.

In 2020, CDB continued to improve the internal control evaluation system and evaluated the effectiveness of internal control in accordance
with the relevant rules and measurements. The internal control system proved to be effective, with no major flaws as defined by CDB internal
regulations discovered during the reporting period; improvements were made where necessary.
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The purpose of CDB’s capital management is to promote national development strategies, comply with capital management regulations, and
preserve and increase the value of state assets. The CDB manages its capital in a way that supports, directs and guarantees the growth of its
business.

In 2020, in line with the principle of preserving asset value and seeking modest returns, CDB strengthened its capacity to independently generate
capital, issuing RMB50 billion of Tier 2 capital bonds on the market. Its capital structure remained stable and total volume further increased.
Following its capital management philosophy and in line with the nature and features of development finance, CDB continued to improve its
capital management mechanism. The capital restraint mechanism centered on capital adequacy ratio was enhanced; the top level design for
capital management was improved, which saw the creation of a “double-evaluation” system--capital adequacy evaluation and capital management
evaluation --a management plan for capital adequacy ratio, and a capital budgetary system. Capital management continued to be perform better,
playing an effective role in directing business plans and encouraging the right flow of resources. Greater support was given to decision-making in
capital management services to better tackle financial risks and promote quality growth of the Bank.

As calculated in accordance with the Rules on Capital Management for Commercial Banks and other relevant regulations, as of the end of 2020,
the Bank, in consolidation terms, had a total capital of RMB1,719.279 billion, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,412.952 billion, total Common Equity Tier
1 capital RMB1,411.838 billion, capital adequacy ratio 12.03%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.89%, Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio
9.88%. As for the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,684.094 billion, both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital
RMB1,387.306 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.83%, and both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.72%.
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As a development finance institution, CDB stays true to its mission of supporting national development and delivering a better
life for the people. CDB upholds responsibility, innovation, green growth, prudence, and win-win development as its core values,
earnestly fulfil its social responsibilities, and supports the sustainable development of the economy, society, and the environment.

In 2020, following the government’'s new development philosophy, CDB supported the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic and
economic recovery and growth, integrating the concept of sustainable development into all of its main lines of businesses. CDB
gave strong support to the real economy to implement the “double-six goals”. It played an important role in promoting efficient,
fair, and sustainable development. CDB stepped up communication with the UN Global Compact, the Global Reporting Initiative,
and the China Banking Association, and took an active part in conferences at home and abroad to share best practices in fulfilling
corporate social responsibility and promoting sustainable development, communicate CDB'’s values and practices, and better
leverage the role of finance in supporting sustainable development.

The CDB Sustainability Report 2020 will be released to communicate its approaches and practices in corporate social
responsibility and sustainable development.
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National Poverty Reduction Commendation Conference

Leading Organisation for Poverty Reduction (Poverty Reduction Finance
Department of CDB, CDB Guizhou Branch)

Outstanding Individual for Poverty Reduction (Li Xuezheng, former deputy head
of Gulin County in Sichuan Province, former CPC Secretary of Maliutan Village,
staff member of CDB Planning department; Xu Lingang, CDB Poverty reduction
finance consultant in He’nan Province, staff member of CDB He’nan Branch)

People.cn

People’s Social Responsibility Award (15th consecutive year)

Xinhuanet.com

China Corporate Social Responsibility Award for Targeted Poverty Alleviation

People’s Daily

Best Case of Targeted Poverty Alleviation

Financial News

Best Bank of the Year for Implementing “Double-Six Goals”

UN Global Compact Network China

Best Practices Award 2020 on Sustainable Development Goals

ADFIAP

Winner under the Outstanding Development Project Awards, Infrastructure
Development (Amur Gas Processing Plant)

Merit Award under the Outstanding Development Project Awards, Trade
Development (Phnom Penh-Sihanoukville Expressway )

Merit Award under the Outstanding Development Project Awards, Trade
Development (Lekki Deep Sea Port Project in Nigeria)

China Banking

2020 Annual Award for Best Performance in Loan Syndication
2020 Annual Award for Best Program in Loan Syndication

The Asset

Best Quasi-Sovereign Bond

Project Finance International

2019 “African Infrastructure Deal of the Year”, (Lekki Deep Sea Port Project in
Nigeria)
2020 “Europe Petrochemicals Deal of the Year” (Amur Gas Processing Plant)

Financial Digitalization

Fintech Innovation Services--Fintech for Poverty Reduction

Fintech Innovation Outstanding Contribution--Fintech for Operation and
Maintenance

Fintech Innovation Outstanding Contribution--Special Contribution to
Development and Innovation

Beijing FinTech Industry Alliance

Leading Institution in Contribution

China Business Executives Academy, Dalian

Leading Example of SOE Management Practices--“New Era, New
Responsibilities, New Actions” SOE Management Practices Competition
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Ministry of Civil Affairs
11th China Charity Award-Outstanding Contribution to Fighting COVID-19 2020

Ministry of Finance

Excellence Financial Accounting Award for Financial Institutions Directly Overseen
by the Central Government

People’s Bank of China

2019 Fintech Development Second Prize
2019 Fintech Development Third Prize

China Banking Association

Award for Contribution to the “Three Critical Battles”

Award for Contribution to BRI

2020 China Banking Industry Best News Reporting Award

2020 China Banking Industry Most Popular News Reporting Award

2020 Award for Organisation of Evaluation of Research Programs in China’s

Banking Sector
Best Corporate Social Responsibility Case (Lekki Deep Sea Port Project in Nigeria)

China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd

2020 Excellent Issuer of the Year
2020 Excellent Issuer of OTC Products
2020 Top 100 Financial Accounting--Excellent Bond Dealer

ChinaBond Pricing Center Co., Ltd
2020 Excellent Partner for Comprehensive Evaluation of China Bond Index Users

China Foreign Exchange Trade System
2020 Top 10 Traders of Standard Chinese Yuan Foreign Exchange Products

National Interbank Funding Center

2020 Core Dealer on Inter-Bank Local Currency Market

2020 Excellent Trader Inter-Bank Local Currency Market

2020 Award for Inter-Bank Local Currency Market Trading Mechanism Innovation
(X-Repo)

Shanghai Stock Exchange
2020 Best Issuer of Financial Bonds

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
2020 Best Issuer of Policy Financial Bonds

Bond Connect
2020 Annual Award for Market Promotion
2020 Best Issuer

Interbank Market Clearing House
2020 Best Issuer
Best Institution in 2020 for Promoting Innovative Businesses
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T EIOHE, RAMBERIRKERE, EVSREAN B ERIRRMEORE
fEite
BEBESIPEEMERAMER. RAFENYSBREDOERRNKBNBEIAG
RERENEN, ER=MBRNEERTEMBERRE. FTFURRRATEHOLK
WHMBR. UREHHFFENYSEREE, SRRESHELHERERERE
AR BAMER. BUXNKRBRNMNREXRSBHONGE S BEERITFGERE
.
T ERRR T EREFESNEXETERHMMNBREEZGHE .
(1) BEBXUSEHXRBENLSIARD—NMEE, EFRLOTEEE, HH
ETBEXNARSY
(2) ERRKEZEN. BLOMELERERRENFBIRE
(3) BTFHIEMITENEFER. EFERREANENRA ;
(4) FE=ZMERLAMERMBROARMESRIAN
ERFRBRITATIERRETBEL THEX AR RRAIZHNG
ERFLBTOAMBERARKIT R, EETERNEE, ZHTREHNSHMEIE,
BREEEMNTMTARSMEL, SREASEERHMAERILE. BLRNBEENX
BEITER.
MXREESAMSBEMEN. 7, BHER. 1, BEE/N 6, HHE/\. 25, HE/\.
A3RMEEF . 20

ROFHANR T SRMRAALR. HRAEAMSBRAROTBERREHE

BXNRBEHRIRETOERYE, EBOR

() SEEHENRE. FHREM, UREDFRERNRLAXQNBEH ;

(@ SABUSMMEITE. BERDLEE. SHHT EARREFEN. B4
SR ERAEAN, DUR AT R0 EA A2 B R 20 0 AN
HUBSE AP 21251 ;

() SEEIHEREROXRMER NI REIE BRI EH

(@) SEZMBRABRARABROFRALHTNARE FAXQRBERH ;

() SHEHBEXNOERRANBEH.

RIONTORENRS, TEALE

() BRMEHRTASERAXLDIEHEE, WASUS. MDKE, X5
B, EAHHEROARIET T M. ROMHRIETRROES, U
HI RS RE T ERRAS OREEE.

@ EFERANUENENSELRAMABEENLSRE, RIVMEFET
ERENERRREEEN. BAME R4 &R AR R IR 01 %
o

@) WFABMHE, RNEKTEREAMOLFIER. SFHRREORD
HRER, HET ST E NS B,

() BOBERETHIEFENOXRMEORA, BEHERENHEAY
1B, LUBMIUERIEAZE I, RITN XREBEMEDI B 253 FHELR
GlRMEMEERIERNR R TRERE, UERERIENR .

(6) WFR=MBRMAMERABE, RIS, £ETERREFEIAN
BRANMSREE. BRANORNFENE, HoEIRERESDRE
ERBENTOHARNE R B RITNRM I OREEE

(Z) S EEnEaH

ERAFRBITVEMUEARTEQRELT. L. BERRANEFIESUTR. &
FEEITR. BRESMBM~R. F2020F128318, @HVUSBREPZENAANE
HEEMEMUEERNEFMRNERFRRTRT. REREERAANEGHCE
RSB RN RES B AART299.7912 T MART1,726.23127T ; UEsh,
RAXBRITRAVHEMNME LT, KEREBHRANSIHEENEQELTERIK
EMERART263.51127T
ERFRBTBIIFEUTHEHA N EREMUTRREFZEANGHUSRET
& :

o NEMATERIBAERR ;

s BESSEMUTANBXENMHZANITZER ;

o BRNEBNEMUEENRAZNERFRRITEIRSTMAIFEER.

ERFLBTEMUERNSIMER, SEBENEMUTRIEHOTME, FRERH
i, Eit, BAVEEMUETENEHFRENXREITEDR.

HAXBEES NN, 29, MBER. 2MHE/\. 47,

HAHARERNEMU TR, KHENEIHREFEEELE

(1) LA ERIR IS T B9 HI B AR 5K 89 P4 3R 52 5 IR TH IR 47 A0 B RO AT 4E
FMi 5

(2) BEEAARTETAERSENTHE RS URERFRRITHE
MU EERERA

(8) EHEIRZATTZERSWMMNE, TRERBIFERRFEAR=EEARR
SNWRENAE. BEORRKE, URRENEMUEERRERTRINMES
BRAEMSS

(4) HFMFHEERFLROTNEMAERRERGTEE. FIEEEREASRSN
WABMREHORMKTE. HFEEEMERPHE MG RABTZEIRN
RELUREMS ST HENTRERF, DA ERFLRITEEMUEERR
STEEAREBEAZRIEREANGE.
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M. Hihi5R
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NNV S RERARNENRARNEZEMES, RNECATEMERAREALANEIESEL.

SZAREMNTMSRERNE T, KNPFTERMZEMERS, AERET, ERAMEERESUSRRABRNEFTIRT TRINBERFEEAL—H
FEUFFEERER.

ETFERNENTHIE, URBRNBEHMESFEEAER, HNEYRESZEL. AXHE, RNTETERFTERS.

N = =

h. EEEMAEENMSZRRNFE

EEERATERRAUSHENNMAERHIMSRE, EEIARRRBE, Hi&it. TP LZORIIEG, LEMSRERFEHTHEERBRSH
HEXRER.

AERFIVSREN, EERARITHEERFRRITOFEELERN, RESHLLEAXNIT(WER ), AEABLEERIE, KRIFTWHITESR.
LIEBEEHRH T HMILAER
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— N A\ = ==
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RNMEFRNM SR EEARTRFERFEEAHRSROEARBRNAERIE, HLAQSTHEANITHES. SBRIELBKTORIE, £
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HEMEMEMSREFLOETRE, B ANBEREAN.

ERBEDEUATEN TEMOERS, RIVEARLAN, FHRFRURE. B, BAOLRTUTIAE

(—) RAMFERTFEERERSHOYSRAEABBRL | WHISEEHEFUEXERE, FRRES. BLOTHER, FHARRTIHE
RHER. BFEETESRLEE. His. QELR. EBRALEETFOBEHNZ L, AELNATFBERSHOEABRORNRSTRELIE
FHIZSROBABBORR.

TRSEHAXONEEH, EIHES0E IR,

IO EEERA N HRE NS AL 2 RABX B BOAIIE
HERRERBLLERIOBLMBLSEE. BN, REXROTIHEE RTESHEYERFLBIHRELEEN L EARBOERLER
REGEEATHELGLLL. NRRNELLCUNFEEATHEY, FHEVERRNET RS PRBEREEHSIEMSREPHOE
XEH NERETRS, ROULARELRBEL. RONLCETFREDREATREOEE. AT, ARNERALBRTESHERF
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e (IEA ).
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BHERITEFAGR

2020%F12H31H (BBEEERIN, EMEMUHUNARTER )
AEH X+
- O - R SR -
MR A5 M RR TN 1 131,354 189,237 130,840 188,786
R E L HRIR 2 341,853 522,571 364,480 688,936
FHAES 3 106,536 189,000 106,536 199,012
TEERAF 4 37,737 21,373 37,455 21,363
FENBRESRA 5 588,312 721,029 581,625 718,122
RGN RR 6 12,640,362 11,713,333 12,513,295 11,600,493
ERRH
RBUERAT 7 1,055,703 960,488 905,311 808,567
RAIRH 8 1,273,000 1,401,344 1,268,683 1,394,738
HA AR S 9 660,106 515,731 639,350 482,638
HAris T ERE 10 4,810 5,115 1,516 1,025
KHRAIG 11 518 500 91,155 81,917
B B 7 12 94,521 91,529 18,041 18,782
TR 13 2,068 2,047 1,675 1,648
B 14 709 724 = -
BIEFRESRIR 15 124,221 135,911 109,027 121,250
HAt e 16 41,765 34,643 11,835 17,516
#EFERI 17,103,575 16,504,575 16,780,824 16,344,793
FEH F17
2 O - R R -
[6) b K ELAth £ BAANAD T7 AR IR 17 2,879,272 3,143,217 2,880,272 3,143,223
B B AT A0 EL A SR fE 3R 18 499,052 458,759 293,217 284,467
N 19 92,864 72,086 90,862 72,086
ZH M ERARK 20 2,051 35,188 - 35,156
FTE SRR 4 26,843 27,593 25,473 26,826
LHEME SR 21 124,725 112,608 107,174 103,388
T ecEn 22 1,167,538 1,371,396 1,268,452 1,596,661
R AR T % B 23 3,050 2,408 2,561 1,689
IvE-gizES 24 12,740 43,929 11,243 38,835
Tt f R 25 16,600 16,340 16,479 15,975
ERITREIES 26 10,722,092 9,735,782 10,661,347 9,665,982
BB IEFS R TAR 15 4,695 2,248 - -
HAtptafk 27 71,461 89,286 36,489 35,766
fafREit 15,622,983 15,110,840 15,393,569 15,020,054
FrEERE
TKFEA 28 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
N 29 182,650 182,650 182,195 182,195
Hithir e Wz 30 (17,412) (18,499) 932 1,374
BRAR 31 185,631 165,399 185,631 165,399
— R & 32 248,966 238,344 244,206 233,994
FHEHE 33 434,686 376,035 353,043 320,529
JAETF/ASRAENGEE T 1,455,769 1,370,177 1,387,255 1,324,739
DEE AN 34 24,823 23,558 = -
FREEREST 1,480,592 1,393,735 1,387,255 1,324,739
REEMAEENELT 17,103,575 16,504,575 16,780,824 16,344,793

EMM S IRERMOEN AN SIRRAERE S
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AHERITRIAR

BHRIRITHER

2020 (BRBEEERIN, EMEMNHHARDER )
AEH xi7

Bf3EI\ _ 20194 _ 20194
— BLEKA 178,253 222,898 122,750 192,124
A EF A 35 153,685 173,949 143,619 165,289
LISV ON 607,531 630,661 590,422 613,580
FEXZH (453,846) (456,712) (446,803) (448,291)
FHEHBRMESEBN 36 2,426 6,177 1,517 5,408
FEBRAEWA 3,376 7,304 2,154 6,224
FHRERAERE (950) (1,127) (637) (816)
sl g 37 26,648 25,277 9,022 7,502
Hebh WHEMEE L MREKRE 82 4 - -
DRI 2SR B =L LRI E R K 125 176 - -
ARMEZ IR 38 13,529 (4,862) 1,182 1,723
LR 39 (34,789) 11,068 (34,070) 10,961
Hethdl S5 40 10,065 9,849 134 152
Hitb s 1,689 1,440 1,346 1,089
i 312541 (31,140) (77,519) (17,261) (56,698)
4 K BN 41 (4,384) (4,835) (4,121) (4,558)
W5 R EmE 42 (12,275) (12,815) (10,285) (10,409)
ERRERE 43 (4,321) (52,033) (2,832) (41,730)
HAEFRER K (1,597) (1,619) (23) -
HAthll 55 AL A 44 (8,563) (6,217) = (1)
=, BlvFE 142,113 145,379 105,489 135,426
IR 2RI PN 150 253 128 117
o B (216) (80) (191) (73)
N INERSE 142,047 145,552 105,426 135,470
B FSRE A 45 (23,231) (27,041) (14,597) (23,986)
A FE 118,816 118,511 90,829 111,484
AR FBAINEENEFE 117,376 117,102 90,829 111,484
DHBRFRIRE 1,440 1,409 - -
7~ Bt &K it e 8 30 (4,515) 2,370 (442) 986
BEFEAIMBEENAMEGERRNFERM (3,913) 2,434 (442) 986
(—) MEREES A HRENHME SRR (277) 549 (4) (35)
1EHTEIREZ TR TR 3 (27) 3 (27)
2. H ARG TERFEARNEEH (280) 576 ) (8)
(Z) MERESX#RANEMBE A RS (3,636) 1,885 (438) 1,021
T HMERARR LA RNER (928) 1,247 (419) 1,157
2 B AR R IEAMA R 169 23 (18) (135)
NP SIRRITEZNM (2,558) 704 - -
4.5 (819) (89) () )
BEFOHEBRARNEMESE KR TR (602) (64) - -
. KAEKBZ] 114,301 120,881 90,387 112,470
AR FERASMBEENGEKE DM 113,463 119,536 90,387 112,470
BEFOERANGE WS DM 838 1,345 - -

EMIM S IRRMGE A AN S IREMEREI S
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ABHBEENRENR

2020FF BABIWIN, ERBNHINARTERLTT)

AEFRASMBEENG

—. 202051 B1HEM 421,248 182,650 (13,499) 165,399 238,344 376,035 1,370,177 23,558 1,393,735
Z. AEMAEHEM
(—) 3 HE - - - - - 117,376 117,376 1,440 118,816
(Z) Hbsrabas 30 = - (3,913) - - - (3,913) (602) (4,515)
ek S - - (3,913) - - 117,376 113,463 838 114,301
(Z) TAEERARE - = = = = - - 984 984
(/) FEAE
1IRRBRAR 31 - - - 20,232 = (20,232) = = =
2RI — RN & 32 - - - - 10,622 (10,622) - - -
3B ENSE 33 - - - - - (27,871) (27,871) (557) (28,428)
=. 2020612831 HEHM 421,248 182,650 (17,412) 185,631 248,966 434,686 1,455,769 24,823 1,480,592
JIIETFBAIRBFENG
—. 20191 B1HEH| 421,248 182,650 (15,933) 143,315 227,633 319,068 1,277,981 22,742 1,300,723
. AEREEHEH
(—) % HE - - - - - 117,102 117,102 1,409 118,511
(Z) Hfthz &Mzt 30 - - 2,434 - - - 2,434 (64) 2,370
SFAEKE S - - 2,434 - - 117,102 119,536 1,345 120,881
(Z) FFEERD AR - - - - - - - (86) (86)
(/) FiE R
1TRRBBRAR 31 - - - 22,084 - (22,084) - - -
2RI — RN 32 - - - - 10,711 (10,711) - - -
3. AE NN 33 - - - - - (27,340) (27,340) (443) (27,783)

=. 2019%12A31HE#| 421,248 182,650 (13,499 165,399 238,344 376,035 1,370,177 23,558 1,393,735




78 | RITEENBEDNR

IRITAIBEENREINR

2020 (BREEIRIN, MBI AARTERT)
WA REEE  REOR ABSEKE  BAOR —MRRES  RAREN &
—. 202051 B1H&HM 421,248 182,195 1,374 165,399 233,994 320,529 1,324,739
Z. FEMETHER
(=) %F8 = = - - - 90,829 90,829
(Z) Rtz a s 30 - - (442) - - - (442)
ZEWE B - - (442) - - 90,829 90,387
(=) FiEE
1RRBRAR 31 - - - 20,232 - (20,232) -
2RI — RN 32 - - - - 10,212 (10,212) -
3B ENNE 33 - - - - - (27,871) (27,871)
=. 2020512A31 HRM 421,248 182,195 932 185,631 244,206 353,043 1,387,255
BEIN S EA BAAN  Htrakas BEAR —RBRRREE  ROERAME &t
—. 20191 B1ASH 421,248 182,195 388 143,315 223,507 268,956 1,239,609
. AEEAEHEH
(—) %F05E - - - - - 111,484 111,484
(Z) BEfhralas 30 - - 986 - - - 986
FEWERDE - - 986 - - 111,484 112,470
(=) FEE
1IRRBRAR 31 - - - 22,084 - (22,084) -
2 1R — MR 32 - - - - 10,487 (10,487) -
3. ETEE MR 33 - - - - - (27,340) (27,340)
=. 201912831 HRH 421,248 182,195 1,374 165,399 233,994 320,529 1,324,739

MM S IRRMGE N AN S IRRAERE S
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BHERITUERESR

2020 & (BRBEEERIN, EMEUHAARDER )
AEH x47
B 3EIN _ 20194 _ 20194F
—. QEFHTENALRE
TR SR AT A ) Al RIS R D AR 187,356 140,258 187,389 275,595
B H At £ B AT R SR LI ER 22,550 8,809 20,554 9,709
) B A& R R 1 3R £508 08 6,269 - 6,269 -
KEHE. FRHERBENNE 581,861 611,613 557,016 584,638
KR HMEZEENEXNAE 156,588 191,311 58,251 178,225
SEFHMERANNT 954,624 951,991 829,479 1,048,167
&R ER AN SRS K N8R (1,011,563) (543,606) (989,302) (529,104)
[ B A & R IR 1 37 £5 18 R - (9,614) - (18,751)
B P17 E) b T GRS R D 3 (437,972) (392,839) (561,351) (323,662)
ZRHFE. FABRRBEHNSE (108,621) (120,951) (102,677) (114,951)
SHERIRARIZAOIRE (6,423) (7,213) (5,080) (5,861)
XAt & TR B (75,745) (89,201) (64,435) (81,399)
SN HEMSREENEXNINE (167,433) (78,271) (140,090) (68,878)
SZEFDME R ENT (1,807,757) (1,241,695) (1,862,935) (1,142,606)
ZEFDTENAS R RS 46(1) (858,133) (289,704) (1,033,456) (94,439)
. REABFHTENALRE :
K E R R KR IS 805,212 357,686 837,876 347,125
BERAKSEKENNE 67,521 68,209 67,828 67,759
WEF AT RAMEW BT IS IEM - 18 - -
K EMSRFENEXNNE 5,939 12,141 170 767
BEFHUERANT 878,672 438,054 905,874 415,651
BREZTHIE (914,834) (305,598) (898,421) (293,866)
MREER . ERAFMEMKPRE =TS (17,572) (21,588) (602) (524)
BEFRAIRAMEY BRGNS IEM - - (9,238) (1,100)
BREFHUWE R BT (932,406) (327,186) (908,261) (295,490
BREBEFEDFENMERBRM (53,734) 110,868 (2,387) 120,161
= SERENTLENALHRE
R F KR M E 999 - - -
B FRIREDBRERF KON E 999 - - -
RITESITEH WIS 2,472,703 1,963,893 2,461,908 1,954,937
BEAMEMSRNEERKE NS 115,616 151,589 77,340 127,864
KEIEMEERENEXNNE 2,246 - - -
ERFDAREFTNMNT 2,591,564 2,115,482 2,539,248 2,082,801
ERGESE OIS (1,588,066) (1,487,480) (1,566,341) (1,463,132)
HEBRA. FESEMGHNESXAHNS (365,843) (347,832) (360,866) (343,699)
Hep: FRIXTALBRAROBRF . FE (519) (402) - -
EXFHME T E T (1,953,909) (1,835,312) (1,927,207) (1,806,831)
ERFNTENAERE RN 637,655 280,170 612,041 275,970
M. SCREHFVNERASSNHYRIFI (9,377) 4,582 (6,428) 3,887
. RERMEENW2 R ) AEIME 46(2) (278,589) 105,916 (430,230) 305,579
m: ENRLRRSENWREA 1,137,595 1,031,679 1,293,244 987,665
Ny EXRVESRAESENMPRM 46(2) 859,006 1,137,595 863,014 1,293,244

EMM S IRERMOENAM SIRRAERE Do
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Wt 55 1R 2R Bt iE

2020

(BRAEEBPIN, EMBNHAARTERAT)

RN gz&'l\aﬁz;ﬂ
ERFLBRIT(ATEHR KT )WOITEARZTF1994F3817TENEB K
FHEMINM. RESKRIVE, BRFTLEITT2008FE12811HBIKKH
ANERFLBRTERHERAT, APELAREMEVBEL (LT EHR I
EH)MPCEBRBERTILE (UTEHR L&A ") HBLRIET.
ZPERTRELESEZRS (R PEARTIEEEEZERS" 5 F
ERREEEEZEAS", UTHR "BRESMERR. IHITHEE
MEAZETEZIE, TR017F48198, “BERALXBRITRMDERAT" A
MEBEN BRFLRT, AARAEBRNERLAITEANERIMIL
g, AZEETHHRBEER (R ItRT IBITHEERR ERLS%
—# 2B {A3911100000000184548 S v sx ANEWHEB, 3 F20174
6H13A Z4RR U S EH LGO00THT11000001 S £ RF T iF. TEZ
EHFARITEBNNFIMABOXESHEEW. TEBILE, KITRET
BERALBRITROERATEIES. HGI FEMULSE,
AAERFAS(UTER KERA" )L EREN. XERE" HfESw, B
ZESBRSEREFEAPKPLRKE, SEPKPRBEANEESR
BEhE, &, 5ISNEBEHLLERS, BEMEHE. M~ A
Pl ARBRENEBRLELFHSLENE, FEWAL. By KR
XEMAL RGN, EHAZVERNARMNERBE, URTEEXR. 5
BERFESERAEBRZTSZ AN, REMEZEIR. RBAFL. BHZF
;. THESMENHARBUMOTIE, BN X, AXSHSERRE
BEEHONE, “—H— K" Bk, BRFTESENESHIEESIE. £
MEBKEE. f8RAR. PARMN ‘FHEX" SEHREENE, BEEERA
REBEENERLFEHAENEXNE, FEEARLZEKBIBESHN
Hithdmig o

KITRAT. PEBRSINMEAETEEREMEZLOTFAIRRN 15
WA ", FPERIN SR R EEINEE S T AT SMRA BN
A",

= MEiRRm G
AW 55 1R % % BRI B T 2006423150 R UE IR0 #0( bk 23t
W - EAAEN)ANERRERIDEN . BASHENRAIES. Sl&it
BN EAABSAE (AT AR U 2DEN" )B4
A HREUSSEE HEHARH .
=, BREeLSTHENAER
AMSBEFACULIDENNER, AR, REBRRTAEARALT
F20204 12531 B HIE 3 IR %R LB 20206 E WA 3 B RITE
ERRADLHE
M. EESHEERSTHET
1. SHEE

ARANRIEEAARATBRE12A31A L.

2. IEMKAfLD
FERARRNMICKALDAART, FIMIMRIEREZMEHN
TEEFRRHER LKA T REARBBIAMSREAMKAEHNE
HAART.

3. CHkEARL AN R
FEASIHREURERES N EKER . BELSRTAUA RN
{8 % 4172008 6 AR 4 ) 2 35 A 4 42 2o 4 BB A O VA 1
AW, AMEREUHLRAENITREM. AFDRRERE,
M 2 BRAR AR VHRAR R O R o

4. SpmAESHIIMNHIRRFE
(1) MBS
HNFRSENEHNTRAXS REBNRECRTE, THRFRHE
#E, SMBEBIETHERAZENHCRFENEKER T EHiZH
ROBDHAIC R S A AT IA RS 5 31— % 72 S % B BDHC R AR T
MITEER, EMER R R 2 I H KT R AL 4
MATEZFT AN RS SIS, AL BRI

RS AT BT IEERUERBE MU S LZE BRRRICETE

HIEKAmEFHE. UARNETTENIDHIEEHERE, XA

ARMEREBMEHCERTE, FEEICKALDESMS RICK

AUPEMOER, FTFUARNEITEEEZHIT AR MRS WS

HEREF, BANRMEERE  STUARNETERREZIT

ARBHERFS=REBASK, Wit ARH.

(2) SMHIRFITE

AR EHRIRITMERE, BIMEZENINH M SREZUTITER

BRAARTRE

- BEABRPIRHNEFNAGRREZREFAGRERBNHLCE
BATIE ;

- FEENEPRRDEMNBERESN, BRRENKIRIFE |

- FERPHAENERRBRIMESEREMNINEZRBLEARD
LR AT RABEOUCRITE |

- WEREFEMBESAREMBENAEENSERME AT HNE
M, WIAINDRERFNEER, JIRNEMEEKES

- HNPIMBRBULBIMIMHORERENE, XBIASRERE
AREECRITE. [XEHWRUSRASENPNZINE, £
ReERERFUCEEHURNERASSN YN L5RT)

o

. MERMEENY

NERANEENYREFFAS. TRNBFIANER, URESR
HEREHRABI =B, AR, ZTERACHESTINER
MEZ R RNH B IEHE .

- ARMEREZANER

ARMERTHSEEETET P (HRBEETHN, #REH
HiZF ), AHERRENEFRSH, HERTMREKRIISEEE—
TGERM B NE. FEERTHOERIA, LUEKRTIZHH
RNBERERARNE. FTEEETRDTINERIE, XBMHERARH
ERRARNE. BERRBESENHSEERAEH#ITHEFZSH
ERINE. NEREBFTIE. BNENBRELHEMTIZS5EER
KB ERAS.
ARNMEHEETARNENBAENTANRREURZEMAEY
ARNEHEBANEEN, BUIH=ZDER
F-RERXMANERETEARBINENEARRSRAGEFRTZ L
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t. BERFAIVS5E5HER
WABFEANEETFADEAWRIIFOT -

EAEREREELD REAR BRI H AR71,392 100%EZHE
EFERESERAD AR R AR50,000 100% B
BEEEESERAT AR BepAREE AR32,548 84.00% R B
EREMEREHERAT REAR i AR12,642 64.40% HIRE
EFESRHERAD EAR 5 AR9,500 BO%EEHE
EAEAERAT EES wARR %431,584 100% B2

REFREANFRAIFRIEOARZERRNLOIRKELN . F020FEM2019FE, AEAAGEEREARFIEEEARAGHENEKXR
Hlo

N, MEIRREETAME
1. WEREHPRBITRM

AEEH F:X5
FEGOE 3 3 3 3
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=1 =%
2. FHRENLERIR

AEEH
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a4 ©6) a4 ©
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ME, BAR—ERRBRAEAFAIENEAXKETINKG. TESHTANARNERE SEENETMEXNTHNRIINOLRSTENENM
T, ERNAERETH (HFIANEF ) RAF (BIARRMR ) KWW, XXM REEREDHBTRAMNEN.
FHREGHRERD, AEAFENTASHRTIEANSGR/AXEMERELARNEIRAOT -
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&t 37,737 (26,843)

2019%12831H

CRFTETR

BHER (BEXXEHFEER) 1,295,976 10,879 (17,876)

SMOITHBANSMTEIARL 44,125 149 (62)
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FIZEBN 7,434 238 (238)
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N 11,028 (17,872)
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MEEiR 1,577,938 10,192 (8,811)
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&it 21,363 (26,826)
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&it 1,562 (1,352)
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AANMEEHRIR
R 10,831 1,517 =
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ARNEEHTIR
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iy ~RMEEH
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TR Ho
AEAEHTANARNMETUNRES A AEPHRRERIDFRENA RN ETHIRFEFHINNEP LIS =ENRFIAE K.
(i) AEREEH
AEAFN BN EXERERNHELHSHNNESRELHHTERRE, REHTEAFEAFRBELSHOEMBITRANER. AHZIXED
FMEEHRERNFIEMLEZHIHNASREZNHITERRE, WEPREALXT TEFLAIERSHEERMAER AT LTHES.
F2020512831HR2019F12831H, AEHAEEHARMGERENASREENHIANARNETHTENRITREAEK.

5. INEBEERE™

&M 4T
o wuRNA | 00FuANA | NNFZENE 2019512808
BBRYIIR :
% 586,804 718,262 581,460 717,857
Hits 3,710 4,578 - -
Ait 590,514 722,840 581,460 717,857
RtAE 171 267 165 265
B 590,685 723,107 581,625 718,122
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He: £—ME @ (5) - -
EZME = (76) - -
EZFER (2,371) (1,997) - -
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R 588,312 721,029 581,625 718,122
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N 13,008,461 12,163,033 12,861,989 12,029,734
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W OREEE
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SR 12,597,398 11,675,042 12,470,331 11,562,202
(o) DIARNETEBHENT AN LIRS R IR BRATNT -

&M *17
| oomuRNE | 19512838 | Z0NEIASIE | 2019512838
BERRFMBAERE 41,463 37,475 41,463 37,475
ASRMEZE) 1,501 816 1,501 816
&t 42,964 38,291 42,964 38,291

AERAERBY R ARENBGREM E+—. 6EBRYPHE.
(2) ZHIMBEAREMETR
KEH 20204128318
S e wm=eR w=mm &
R ERRER 11,593,194 1,329,834 115,628 13,038,656
WAEEE (124,211) (244,654) (72,393) (441,258)
RGBSR EHE 11,468,983 1,085,180 43,235 12,597,398

2019%12831H

BRI R 10,875,433 1,189,566 127,135 12,192,134

WIEEE (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (517,092)

R E K E NE 10,687,831 958,453 28,758 11,675,042

X+ 2020£12831H

RGN RER 11,482,070 1,296,461 112,800 12,891,331

HEEE (121,023) (228,974) (71,008) (421,000

B GEHRA RR K E B 11,361,047 1,067,487 41,797 12,470,331
2019%12831H

B RAETR R 10,776,301 1,158,606 123,359 12,058,266

RAEEE (184,544) (215,601) (95,919) (496,064)

RGN B K E NE 10,591,757 943,005 27,440 11,562,202
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(3) EHERMBRREESERN

FEH

20201810 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092
M ERFETS

BEF N 7,299 (7,299) - -
BEE MR (35,195) 39,323 (4,128) -
BEEZME - (18,708) 18,708 -
b 19,510 914 - 20,424
EHitR () (39,940) 9,512 34,558 4,130
EHRES (13,577) (4,111) (5,424) (23,112)
25 - - (64,554) (64,554)
ERME RN RRA B - - (368) (368)
INBITEZERR (1,488) (6,090) (4,776) (12,354)
20204125310 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258
201951818 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251
M ERFETS

HBEH-NEK 17,151 (17,151) - -
BEE MR (24,510) 29,814 (5,304) -
HBEHZNER - (10,133) 10,133 -
Ei] 35,209 13 - 35,222
EHtE@Q) (27,592) 18,692 45,101 36,201
ERR (15,891) (6,184) (1,327) (23,402)
(2] - - (43,325) (43,325)
ERE R R RF Boh - - (425) (425)
SMHIFTEER 1,783 (1,304) 2,091 2,570
20195128318 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092
&7

202018 1H 184,544 215,601 95,919 496,064
N EREERS -

BEE—MNE 6,336 (6,336) - -
HEBME (34,988) 39,099 (4,111) =
BELZNE - (18,410) 18,410 -
b 18,821 - - 18,821
EHitE () (39,093) 8,193 34,233 3,333
EHRRE (13,132) (3,087) (4,141) (20,360)
%4 - - (64,270) (64,270)
ERER AR R BT - - (368) (368)
SNBINEZER (1,465) (6,086) (4,669) (12,220)
2020128318 121,023 228,974 71,003 421,000
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20191810 198,713 207,723 89,359 495,795
MRS

BEE-NER 14,859 (14,859) - -
BEENE (24,107) 29,411 (5,304) -
BES=ME - (10,090) 10,090 -
R 34,503 - - 34,503
EHitE () (25,930) 9,500 44,729 28,299
ERREE (15,278) (4,807) (1,281) (21,366)
X - - (43,307) (43,307)
ERE SR RRA B - - (425) (425)
SNBITEZER 1,784 (1,277) 2,058 2,565
2019 12831H 184,544 215,601 95,919 496,064

(a) BEERSHMENEN(LNBELIRER. SHRAXRREAMOANER ) ATFEFRFANEAEENREEBMNILECERARE, MSHE

(i)

(4)

FPREMBRES—NER. FMER. FZMRZEBLEES, URBNSBERAESNITEEREI2DANENFLBTBERREZEH
o

20205 E, WAEARKEFEEHRRAZMPRERAMNBERA LN TREIE
FEVIM R — R ARA R A BE LR RS MA89%, MEEE B REZAREMN BR— R LK E R AR I IEL6%E
FEYNBZEBEFMBER G BEAEMEAMBRSTN10%. HNB—2EBENB_NEAS SNBZFNARLL2% ;

FPNER=ZRMEAMBR A BEEMEARNBRETE 1% ANRIFREENR=ZNESENR_FVNELLA3% ; 2020FM B =L MEK
HBREEER RIS FVIRMLIS0%, HIHMHN R RS AR EEEHIE.

2020F F, AKBAEARALREBEN (RSHRAL LW ) MFBEX RNV ESHANRZEBRENR ., IHMBE=ZIMER_EINE
—HRABESIREKR,

WA BRI

WMRRAARAERF LB, WZEREAENERER W TUSPARAREEORFIMBR, WRIAASPAEH, WZRAEBWRIIH S
ESpIE i E

FEH

bt

2020123318

[EEEN 5,415 12,248 527 391 18,581
FRIERFR 5,504 1,739 235 174 7,652
BB R B3R

- R 16,973 32,162 26,258 7,215 82,608
- BB 799 7,097 8,417 100 16,413
At 28,691 53,246 35,437 7,880 125,254

20194128318

R 7,331 596 1,714 1,455 11,096
RIS 5,333 6,334 14,709 - 26,376
BRI BN

- IR EIR 21,729 23,362 13,578 1,255 59,924
- BB 6,761 15,391 12,731 3,038 37,921
At 41,154 45,683 42,732 5,748 135,317
AT bkt

20204128318

ERRIN 5,415 12,248 527 391 18,581
FRIEEE3R 5,504 1,739 235 174 7,652
BRI BN

- IR EIR 10,169 31,561 26,240 6,757 74,727
- BB K 799 7,097 8,417 100 16,413
&t 21,887 52,645 35,419 7,422 117,373

20195 12H31H

BEREN 7,331 596 1,714 1,455 11,096
FRIERFR 5,333 6,334 14,709 - 26,376
B R B3R

- IR 15,358 23,108 12,404 516 51,386
- FHRH 6,761 15,391 12,731 3,038 37,921

&t

34,783 45,429 41,558 5,009 126,779
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7. TERE - XHEUEMET

F5EE F17

| 20FIGASIE | 2019%12A318 | 20FIASIE | 20195128318

UZ 5 BHFANERES REMUARNET 2 BEERNITALHPREN

Ea
BT R 6R35 15,321 11,705 14,516 11,705
SR GES 41,685 29,027 39,460 26,592
NIES 19,443 31,419 16,260 20,151
RFEXHFES 16 53 782 1,366
SRz 206,146 47,556 206,096 47,556
REEEITY 420 688 - -
RERESRA 13,806 11,160 - -
AT RITIEM =R 9,071 11,397 - -
WETH 746,809 776,858 625,251 660,643
N 1,052,717 919,863 902,365 768,013
BEUARNETEEATNITALBRAN SR A
BUS R AL 25 - 6,136 - 6,126
SR RS 40 785 - 784
NIEH 2,321 22,391 2,321 22,352
RIS = 419 - 419
EEIZe - 4,685 - 4,676
FHE) b K% 5] b A 3R - 4,118 - 4,110
R ERITRI 625 2,091 625 2,087
N 2,986 40,625 2,946 40,554
&it 1,055,703 960,488 905,311 808,567

FERIEEAUARNETEEREITALBRENSRAT TENLT09FRUMNFEEALITRAEBM = RMEERE, RESHS. 7
IR A R LR Bt & RS IRS R F B

8. &RMRE - HRAURE

AEH w17

T I e

BUR RO BAFAG r35 1,157,272 1,274,134 1,157,272 1,274,035

SR RS 1,108 1,247 600 660

Ak 97,621 104,404 97,571 104,295

ERITR R EA 6,428 8,213 = 23

Nt 1,262,424 1,387,998 1,255,443 1,379,013

RS 18,671 20,934 18,633 20,877

B 1,281,095 1,408,932 1,274,076 1,399,890
R EEE

He: E—HE (5,216) (5,196) (5,162) (5,151)

SERER (5) M - W]

EZMER (2,874) (2,391) (231) -

N (8,095) (7,588) (5,393) (5,152)

R 1,273,000 1,401,344 1,268,683 1,394,738
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(1) HAHERIREMRIIE

AEF] 2020£12831H

FARIR R R 1,277,550 13 3,532 1,281,095

B (5,216) (5) (2,874) (8,095)

AR RIKENE 1,272,334 8 658 1,273,000
2019%12831H

AR R R 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
REEE (5,196) (1) (2,391) (7,588)
AR I R KT 118 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344
X7 20204128318

AR R R 1,273,718 - 358 1,274,076
WAEEE (5,162) - (231) (5,393)
AR R IKEME 1,268,556 - 127 1,268,683

AR B R 1,399,536 354 - 1,399,890
A& (5,151) M - (5,152)
BRAUR B K E 1 1E 1,394,385 353 - 1,394,738

F2020FER20190FE, AEARKFTHEMEREESNREDRZERBNEMAEK.
(2) BERREREREES

K 20204

20201810 5,196 1 2,391 7,588
FERFETS :

MNE—MBEBEL=ME M = 1 -
MNEZMBREBES=MNE = Q) 1 -
i 5 = 270 275
EHiTE(a) 361 5 238 604
FIHs (47) - (17) (64)
SMNPITE ZEE (298) - (10) (308)
2020128318 5,216 5 2,874 8,095

20194

20191810 5,086 110 1,075 6,271

M EREERS

MNE—MBREBELE=ME (10) - 10 -
MNEZMBREBEE=NER - (110) 110 -
itz 25 1 - 26

EHITE (a) 88 - 1,198 1,286

B (61) - (4) (65)
INPITEE 68 - 2 70

20195128318 5,196 1 2,391 7,688
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20204

2020%1R1H

R ERHRS
MEZMERBEE=ME
g

EHitE@)

e

ShDHITEER
20204128310

5,151 1 = 5,162
- ) 1 -
340 = 230 570
(31) - - (31)
(298) = = (298)
5,162 = 231 5,393

20194

20191 A31H
#iig

FHit&(@)
e
ShDITE
20194 12831H

5,023 - - 5,023
- 1 - 1

87 - - 87
27) - - @7)
68 - - 68
5,151 | - 5,152

() FHIHEIEAEBRIMER. BAREAXESHNER. BNREBITHR/BERNERAEES.

9. EREMRE - HMHERRH

BT R B AL 35
ERINERS
ATHEFE
BEIFIES
GRIZe2
BEEERIT

N

oaagilp=y

&t

(1) EMABERREMERTIR

AEH
158,269 182,772 158,832 179,180
27,520 21,902 26,091 21,122
109,004 73,583 94,962 48,029
351 631 51 -
359,046 230,329 358,949 230,329
1,013 1,879 1,013 -
655,203 511,096 634,898 478,660
4,903 4,635 4,452 3,978
660,106 515,731 639,350 482,638

s il

2020412831H

AAMRAUREKENE 658,928 - 1,178 660,106

HEEE (74) - (726) (800)
2019128318

A RAUR R WE N E 515,530 161 40 515,731

RAEEE (165) (1) (243) (409)

P 20204128318

HABEAUR R IKE N E 639,350 - - 639,350

B (48) - (15 (63)

2019%12R31H

EA AR AW E NME 482,638 - - 482,638
A (81) - - ®1)
F2020F ER2019FE, FAEARKTEMENKAEENRBDELEERBRNEMIEX.




(2) EftrERBURRREEEER

ME|EME | 97

AR EH]

20204

2020 1R 1H 165 1 243 409

i 25 = - 25

EHitE(Q) ®) = 726 723

R (112) M (243) (356)

ShDITEEER () - - Q)

2020%12831H 74 = 726 800
20194

201918 1H 224 3 150 377
g 145 1 76 222
EHITE(a) (21) - 17 (4)
B (183) ) - (186)
2019128318 165 1 243 409
47 20204

2020%F181H 81 = - 81
i 35 - 15 50
EFiTE(a) (19) - - (19)
RS2 (48) - - (48)
SMNPITHEE @) = - (1)
20205128318 48 - 15 63

201941810 216 - - 216
i 68 - - 68
it E@) (22) - - (2)
L&y (181) - - (81
20195128318 81 - - 81

() EFHEETEBAESOME. BAORKELSSUNER. BNREBIHR/BRNERAREES.

10. £RRE - Hitti#B TRIZE

AEH E: X5
B 3,310 4,090 16 -
1 LAY 1,500 1,025 1,500 1,025
At 4,810 5,115 1,516 1,025

FEABEXZURETAREATHEBIEEAUARNETEERERMITARMGERBENSRE™. ELEN, ZENETARERINTAR

G W HENARNELNERSWESLE RS
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1. KHERREE
AEH E X
o FAT RS (1) - - 110,108 100,870
HWREMSECLHBRE (@) 1,046 1,028 - -
At 1,046 1,028 110,108 100,870
W OREEE (528) (528) (18,953) (18,953)
B 518 500 91,155 81,917

F2020F 128318, AEANKEMEGERLIHRFBEESRMAARTS.28127T(2019F128318 : ARME.28127T ), RITHFAFHIKH
BAEERRTMAARM189.53127T (2019F12H31H : ARM189.53127T )o

(1) HFAIRE

WF AT HRE 110,108 100,870
o OREES (18,958) (18,953)
R 91,155 81,917

() FEFRIEFXER, BLKEL.
(i) AN FRAIDRENZHNBERNT

FMRE 81,917 80,817
#m 9,238 1,100
FERRM 91,155 81,917

(2) MEXEMEELIMIRE

WEHEMSE R HRE 1,046 1,028
o OREEE (528) (528)
B 518 500

() FEHENESELUEXAERITAOT :

FRERRARBBARIELRT PEKXM BRREEL AN AR 1,250 40%[BEFE
ERERBEWHRAS PE KM BiFEFR ARM500 50%[8#%FH
IR ZRER AT PE AR REEEL AN AR400 44%[8EFE
BREXPARRFLERAT PE K B A ARH220 50%[B &

(i) WEHEMEELWRFNRIHNERWT

AEEH X7
FEPRTM 500 1,686 - -
B 141 130 = -
A (123) (1,316) - -
FERRTM 518 500 - -

12. B R &

AEEH KT
B{A(a) 119,486 112,798 25,018 24,754
it I8(a) (22,723) (20,378) (8,386) (7,377)
B (a) (2,865) (1,509) - -
B i 623 618 1,409 1,405

&ait 94,521 91,529 18,041 18,782
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(a) EEEFRME. BiHFIERBEESHENERWT

AR EEH]

BiE

202018 1H 21,698 3,570 9,620 75,887 2,023 112,798
ARER 130 58 6,172 9,626 118 16,104
REFEN/ ($H) 648 117 - - (765) -
RERD (129) (167) (902) (8,209) ©) (9,416)
2020128318 22,347 3,578 14,890 77,304 1,367 119,486
RitirlA

202018 1H (5,726) (2,408) (551) (11,693) = (20,378)
REIHR (856) (306) (508) (3,377) - (5,047)
RER D 18 115 49 2,520 - 2,702
2020128318 (6,564) (2,599) (1,010) (12,550 - (22,723)
REEE

202018 1H (94) (210) (250) (912) (43) (1,509)
AREHM - (84) - (1,455) - (1,539)
RERD 28 - 10 140 5 183
2020128318 (66) (294) (240) (2,227) (38) (2,865)
TKE 1 E

2020 12831H 15,717 685 13,640 62,527 1,329 93,898
REH

FRiE

2019F181H 22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769

AREIE 261 2,194 5,568 11,979 582 20,584

KEHN/ ($H) 189 231 - - (420) -

FERD (981) (6,411) (619) (5,892) (652) (14,555)
2019128318 21,698 3,570 9,620 75,887 2,023 112,798

KitiFIA

20191810 (5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) - (19,956)
AEITR (889) (704) (296) (3,177) - (5,066)
KEFRD 258 792 185 3,409 - 4,644

2019128318 (5,726) (2,408) (551) (11,693) - (20,378)
REEE

20191818 - - - (487) - (487)
AREM (94) (210) (250) (462) (43) (1,059)
KERD - - - 37 - 37

2019128318 (94) (210) (250) (912) (43) (1,509)
TKE B

20194128318 15,878 9562 8,819 63,282 1,980 90,911
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F17
| mEEmM pLROBRE | EWRE  weTE | &
BiE
20201818 20,281 2,391 110 1,972 24,754
AREIEM 130 47 8 118 298
KEFN/ (BH) 648 117 = (765) =
RERD ) (26) @) - (34)
2020128318 21,055 2,529 109 1,325 25,018
RitifIE
202018 1H (5,428) (1,850) (99) - (7,377)
AEIHR (807) (228) @ - (1,037)
FER D 2 23 3 - 28
2020128318 (6,233) (2,055) (98) - (8,386)
TR HE
2020128318 14,822 474 11 1,325 16,632
BiE
20191818 20,797 2,385 234 2,021 25,437
AREIB 1 188 4 143 336
REHN/ () 188 3 - (191) -
RERD (705) (185) (128) 1) (1,019)
2019128318 20,281 2,391 110 1,972 24,754
AitirlE
2019E181H (4,845) (1,754) (220) - (6,819)
REIHR (802) (252) ) - (1,055)
KERD 219 156 122 - 497
20194128318 (5,428) (1,850) (99) - (7,377)
TR B
2019128318 14,853 541 11 1,972 17,377
13. LA
FEH
C imgRR me | &t
BiE
2020F1A1H 1,746 1,605 3,351
ARG - 294 294
RERD (54) (46) (100)
2020128318 1,692 1,853 3,545
Ritie
20201A1H (370) (934) (1,304)
REIHR (41) (178) (219)
RERD 25 21 46
2020 12831H (386) (1,091) (1,477)
TKE B
2020128318 1,306 762 2,068
RIRPEHER(F) 24-39 1-10
EfE
20191810 1,871 1,470 3,341
KR 15 168 183
ARERD (140) (33) (173)
2019%12A318 1,746 1,605 3,351
RitHEH
201918 1H (334) (776) (1,110)
REIHR (58) (160) (218)
RER D 22 2 24
2019128318 (370) (934) (1,304)
TR E B
2019512A31H 1,376 671 2,047

FIRMHER(F) 25-40 1-10
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*17

L .
BiE
20201818 1,329 1,394 2,723
AREEM - 233 233
RER D = (30) (30)
2020128318 1,329 1,597 2,926
Ritie
20201810 (273) (802) (1,075)
REIHR (32) (145) (177)
RERD _ 1 1
2020128318 (305) (946) (1,251)
TKE B
2020128318 1,024 651 1,675
RIRPRHEER(F) 24-39 1-10
BfE
20191810 1,456 1,297 2,753
AR = 126 126
RER D (127) (29) (156)
2019128318 1,329 1,394 2,723
RitHgsH
201918 1H (258) (671) (929)
AEITR (34) (132) (166)
RERD 19 1 20
2019128318 (273) (802) (1,075)
TR E B
2019128318 1,056 592 1,648
FIRPBHER (F) 25-40 1-10

14. 5%

FEH
o eowAnA | eEANA
T SR ER 1,243 1,258
R OREER (534) (534)
KENE 709 724

AEAFBERFANTRESHN, XBT7TEEEVSTUAERBH T RRASATN. AEARBOFYEKRGETIIRE RAHOTR
W, TR BT IERN & SEX R AT XS ENR.
F2020%12A310, AEAMNBEGFLRE, RESTMAARTS.341Z7T(2019F12831H : ARMSE.34127T )o

15 B LSRR B~R AR

AEEH F13
BIEATS BB 124,221 135,911 109,027 121,250
BEIEFERA R (4,695) (2,248) - -
EER 119,526 133,663 109,027 121,250

(1) BEFFSHROTDERFITOTF :

202018 1H 133,663 121,250
TENIRES (/N 45) (14,803) (12,365)
AL E W ( HEE/\L 30) 671 142
Hith 5) -
2020128318 119,526 109,027
20191810 124,418 114,913
TENIRES (/N 45) 9,891 6,720
AR MR AR (ME/\ 30) (632) (383)
Hith (14) -

2019%12A31H 133,663 121,250
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(2) ERFIMNEERSHREFRARRYENEHEERIIRNT

FEH 20204128318 20194128318
BEFRGRE
R EEE 454,822 113,706 485,884 121,471
ERBRARRNETH 69,236 17,309 68,096 16,942
Tt R 15 15,591 3,898 15,206 3,801
Hith 1,697 388 840 246
INF 541,346 135,301 570,026 142,460
ISR 1R
SRMBAARNEEH (59,959) (14,990) (31,535) (7,883)
Hith (6,217) (785) (6,459) (914)
Nt (66,176) (15,775) (37,994) (8,797)
R 475,170 119,526 532,032 133,663
4T
BRFRSRR
BEREES 432,945 108,236 463,630 115,907
ERBRARARNMERZH 30,009 7,502 29,954 7,489
it R R 15,589 3,897 15,085 3,771
N 478,543 119,635 508,669 127,167
BEFRSRE R
SMBRAARNEED (42,432) (10,608) (23,668) (5,917)
AR 436,111 109,027 485,001 121,250
16. KAt &=
&M *17
o ookueAnA | onoFRANA | 0NFRANE | 2019F1280E
R 3,751 3,691 - -
il ENp=) 2,843 957 2,678 731
TR 3R B 3R 2,087 15,056 221 215
HEHERES 1,860 - - -
ERARF = 1,270 1,700 1,385 1,457
EEXSERENS 939 1,205 - -
KT R 761 668 223 252
ERAFFIESURES NH ™ - - 631 970
Hith 29,821 11,902 6,814 14,004
Nt 43,332 35,179 11,952 17,629
B OREES
Heh: JRFE (165) (192) - -
Hith (1,402) (344) (117) (113)
N (1,567) (536) (117) (113)
SR 41,765 34,643 11,835 17,516

17. R Ak % LAt & BANLAG 7 IR IR

AEH 4T
o 0wueRnA | 0noFuANA | NNFIZENE | 20195128018
BN EARIT 2,751,749 3,018,842 2,751,749 3,018,842
BRARITERM 82,977 69,878 83,976 69,884
BINEARIRIT 39,357 46,640 39,357 46,640
RINERITERNM 1,287 2,492 1,237 2,492
INF 2,875,320 3,137,852 2,876,319 3,137,858
RIH B 3,952 5,365 3,953 5,365

it 2,879,272 3,143,217 2,880,272 3,143,223
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18. [ BT H fth & A R

AEH E:XF
BN EAMIRITRIFRITSRNER 420,198 381,487 259,584 233,703
RINELMARIT RIFRITE RN ETR 56,879 53,275 12,783 27,959
SNEBAFERR 18,862 19,599 18,862 19,599
Ny 495,939 454,361 291,229 281,261
NitHFIE 3,113 4,398 1,988 3,206
At 499,052 458,759 293,217 284,467

19.IfFAEE

AEEH F13
BREAMIRITIRA 74,597 14,999 72,601 14,999
BWINELABARITIRA 18,098 56,639 18,098 56,639
N 92,695 71,638 90,699 71,638
RtFIR 169 448 163 448
At 92,864 72,086 90,862 72,086

20. X Bt &R R

F2020F 128310, AEAXSUEMAGEENAEAEANNWEREFROMGER ; T2019F12A31H, AEAXSZUERAGEIERNRITH
RAIEM 7 @R N RAIEM P @RISR EEM.

21. B & R E

AEH X5
BIBRYIR -

"% 124,623 112,539 107,100 103,330
Nay 124,623 112,539 107,100 103,330
NitHFIR 102 69 74 58
&it 124,725 112,608 107,174 103,388

AERABTFERERMR S ORFBYENE+—. 6IBRYPIEE.
=)
22. G TFFR
AEEH X5
A ERER 905,818 1,112,648 989,391 1,325,278
Al EHRER 113,117 99,757 130,394 112,350
WRIEEHER 3,110 3,651 3,110 3,651
KET L ER R R 143,251 152,711 143,251 152,711
Nt 1,165,296 1,368,767 1,266,146 1,593,990
MitFIR 2,242 2,629 2,306 2,671
&it 1,167,538 1,371,396 1,268,452 1,596,661

23. Ri{FER T %7 EM

AEH]
L cwmmA | AEam | ASRD 200FANA
I £&. EMMING 558 5,219 (4,802) 975
T 3EH 2 - 202 (202) -
BARIEA 1,247 33 (40) 1,240
HEREERITRE 106 1,016 (878) 244
EEARE 1 349 (349) 1
ILABRNMRIHBEER 496 216 (123) 589
Hit - 71 (70) 1

ait 2,408 7,106 (6,464) 3,050
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E:X5)
T%H. B&. EWAME - 4,381 (3,747) 634
RIEF % - 157 (157) -
BIKTEF 1,247 6 (30) 1,223
LRI E LA FTIRKE 27 864 (693) 198
EEARE 1 208 (298) 1
TIoEHMRIABEHE 414 192 (101) 505
Hit = 65 (65) -
&it 1,689 5,963 (5,091) 2,561
F2020F12831HK&2019F12831H, AER LIRNARTHMRMPH LB FHERIMEROR.
24. R FEE
KEEH wiT
A RS 2,922 34,161 1,664 29,353
HER 8,578 8,546 8,395 8,321
Hit 1,240 1,222 1,184 1,161
At 12,740 43,929 11,243 38,835

25. fit faf&

&M
o ookueAnA | onoFRANA | NNFRANE | 019F12B01E
B 15,432 14,265 15,433 14,268
W IBR(1) 278 1,185 156 817
BB F RN AME IR T 890 890 890 890
At 16,600 16,340 16,479 15,975

(1) FuitRREED
KEH 20204

20201 A31H 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450
%

BEE-—NRR 4,407 (4,407) - -
BEHEZMBR (441) 441 - -
BEEZMR - (97) 97 -
EHITE (a) (7,440) 8,849 (832) 577
g 1,123 3,947 - 5,070
B (1,862) (2,997) (101) (4,960)
SNPITEER (88) (374) - (427)
20205128318 2,596 12,564 550 15,710

20194

2019F181H 9,246 4,139 814 14,199
¥

BEF N 2,072 (2,072) - -
BEENE (1,263) 1,263 - -
BEEZNE - (62) 62 -
EHitR () (4,590) 5,811 587 1,808
b 3,671 - 649 4,320
R (2,291) (1,964) (733) (4,988)
SNDITEER 17 87 7 111

20194%12H31H 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450
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F: X5 20204

202018 1H 7,145 7,202 738 15,085
252

HBEE-MER 4,407 (4,407) - -
BEEMBR (441) 441 - -
BEEZMR - 97) 97 -
FEHiTE(a) (7,598) 8,849 (430) 821

i 1,123 3,947 - 5,070
i (1,862) (2,997) (101) (4,960)
SADIEER (53) (374) - (427)
2020F12831H 2,721 12,564 304 15,589

20194

201915 1H 9,590 4,139 814 14,543
22

BEE-MNER 2,072 (2,072) - -
BEEME (1,263) 1,263 - -
HBEHZME - (62) 62 -
EHitE () (4,651) 5,811 588 1,748
i 3,671 - - 3,671

ozl (2,291) (1,964) (733) (4,988)
SADITEER 17 87 7 111

2019128318 7,145 7,202 738 15,085

(@) BEEASHNEMEMLABAOME. BORKERBAMANENR ; ATERFRBERUSEREANRESEMRREEHRE, MISHT
FURERMSBRES MR, BNER. F=MRZBEEER, URANSBRAESHNITEEM A1 AMNENFLHANTUBERRE
Z B fy it

(2) fE&KE

AEEH T
E-MER 3,376,927 3,417,498 3,400,451 3,443,545
BIMER 109,564 77,383 109,564 77,383
EZMER 2,267 3,755 2,023 3,511
&it 3,488,758 3,498,636 3,512,038 3,524,439

P Al >
26. BER{TRFZIES

AEEH xiT
ISARE A= 1) 10,361,137 9,438,439 10,310,957 9,380,372
RAHR P ES (2 35,010 35,009 30,010 30,010
RS ZRB AR (3) 114,389 59,856 109,876 59,856
NSRS (4) 588 6,021 - -
A 10,511,124 9,539,325 10,450,843 9,470,238
Rt H 8 210,968 196,457 210,504 195,744
At 10,722,092 9,735,782 10,661,347 9,665,982

F2020F 1231 B %2019F 123310, AKARATRITHRFIEFZKBHIERA S FERBEERRH BB
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(1) EfT&RES

FEARKT 202041283180
o seem wess  mEWsw  AE
BRARKITARTESREGES 2001-2020 2021-2065 1.11-5.90 8,896,855
BRETARDEIR S 2015-2020 2021-2037 2.96-4.62 1,231,702
BHRITARTERMES 2012-2020 2023-2032 3.03-4.50 12,300
BIMNRITIND ERES 2016-2020 2021-2087 0.00-4.00 170,100
KITRAT S REMRSF R 10,310,957
FREVFINRATHIINT R IR 2012-2020 2021-2027 1.21-4.25 44,275
FABRARITHARD GRS 2017-2018 2021-2023 4.35-4.70 8,488
FABRMIRITHARTRIE 2019 2021-2022 2.94-3.65 718
B EFA AR N ARERRITHRS (3,296)
KEHRAT ERRSF R 10,361,137

2019%12831H

BREITARTEMES 2001-2019 2020-2065 1.93-5.90 7,913,690
BRETARDEIRHES 2015-2018 2020-2037 2.96-4.62 1,295,155
BINRITARDERES 2012-2014 2024-2032 4.20-4.50 5,791
BINRITIND SRS 2015-2019 2020-2037 0.00-4.00 165,736
RITRAT ERURS R 9,380,372
FABIRINRATHIONT RIE 2012-2019 2020-2027 2.25-4.25 42,062
FARERRTHOARTGES 2015-2018 2020-2023 4.35-5.10 16,947
FAAFIRTHARTER 2019 2021-2022 2.94-3.65 739
B ERRNEBEENAERLITHES (1,681)
FRERANTERESRT 9,438,439
(2) RfPREfRSF
FEFHARFT 2020£12H31H
o meEm wwem FmEAR% AW

KITEARITARTREHES 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
FATFERLTARTRRGES 2016 2021 3.58 5,000
FEARITREBH AT 35,010

2019%12R31H

FARARTARTRE MRS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
FRBBERARTARTRRHES 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
FEBEARITREHESG T 35,009

FIRITORBESFHMERTF AR TRAIBENER. FYEREHBELRTRITERERF, BrEFNRANXSBERIRSKTE.
() R ZREXME

FEARKT 2020128318

RTERNRITARD ZRER R 2016-2020 2026-2030 3.65-4.45 109,876
FADBINRITETZ_BRAR 2020 2030 2.88 4,513
FEALTARD ZRAKRGET 114,389

2019%12831H

RTERNRITART ZREAR R 2016-2018 2026-2028 3.65-4.45 59,856
KEHF S FIF20165F. 2018F R2020F L4177 ZREARHRS, WAHBRENEMKS. EBEIRAESHEBBE LT XHRAENBRE FKAHNER
T, REABNERTLRITEEEMTEFENRE—H, REEREBIREMEEZE RS WAEARNTEREN, ZEMEEFAE,
IRARFETZRAATEMRBICHE, SRELATXHHRAENEEMLZHN, AEABBEARRSFHNASHITEIRIC, EREHRIGHR
RN AHETREARBEZ T,

(4) BIRFEFIES
EEREFIESFNRSH, AEATHESERFHFEENGERE, HFETIERISEENGSIEITMANEGHEER (HHE/N. 47(2) )o

F20205F 128310, AEBANNRFIFIESFKENESITHARDS.881Z7T, FRBRA1-2F, REFFEH3.30%E3.95% ( F2019F12531
B KEMESITAARTE0.21ZT, BRADMBETE, ZEAEN2%ES.7%).
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27. Hitt & {5
&M AT

| xo®2ASA 29F12ANA | 00FRANA | 00F2ANA
ERBFRRRRIMES 28,078 24,455 28,078 24,455
NAEFEMUEREMFEE IR 16,368 36,631 - -
ARRIES 7,591 7,194 - -
TR T 7,468 9,826 2,556 5,249
$iefiEs 2,462 2,529 - -
HAERR 1,245 1,700 1,407 1,459
BE/FERR 1,157 - - -
i VAN EN 586 700 - -
RIZILSIEER 78 1,566 - -
ERRFIES LA N AR - - 631 970
Eith 6,428 4,685 3,817 3,633
&t 71,461 89,286 36,489 35,766

28. A K

20208 % 20195128310

TR 153,908 36.54
CERE 146,092 34.68
BRARREFABRIELT 114,537 27.19
LEMSRERSEES 6,711 159
ait 421,248 100.00

2020F H2019%FE, ATRAREBRFIMR & YRR EZ L,
29. BFELA

A EEH 20204 % 20195

BRA M 182,650 = = 182,650

30. HittZ &l s
(1) FHEREASAWSNAERES

AEH X7

TRESRBRBNYE MR AW E

BT RS ESHIT S AGRIERTOEH 3 (27) 3 ©@7)
Hitzm TERBEARNEZHN (664) 830 ©) (11)
W SRR 384 (254) 2 3
N (277) 549 4) (35)
BEENRH M MEMEE W
WA T I RRFNEMRE W - (13) - -
EfHEAURE A R NERD) (1,616) 1,629 (614) 1,545
R BT AR AR A s M H R IR 206 33 55 2
HithENR R EAREES 391 29 (18) (135)
SNPIRFITAER (2,936) 704 = -
Hity (570) (183) O] O]
W TSR 287 (378) 140 (386)
N (4,238) 1,821 (438) 1,021

At (4,515) 2,370 (442) 986
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(2) BEAGERPARTEAIMAENEMES K
il

20191810 (169) 5,786 (21,695) 347 170 (372) (15,933)
AERRED (27) 1,247 576 23 704 (89) 2,434
2019412831H (196) 7,033 (21,119) 370 874 (461) (183,499)
RERRE 3 (928) (280) 169 (2,558) (319) (3,913)
20205128318 (193) 6,105 (21,399) 539 (1,684) (780) (17,412)

(1) EZEEALREERNERID .
() FEFERHERPHEMESK

2019%1/18H (169) 418 (51) 216 (26) - 388
AERREH @7 1,157 ® (139 - () 986
20194128311 (196) 1,576 (59) 81 (26) 1) 1,374
RERHTH 3 (419 (7) 18 - Q) (442)
20204128318 (193) 1,156 (66) 63 (26) @ 932

31L.BRAM

REBERNAXZEMT, RTFURBELSIHENTHEIERBIOBMENEZERR AR BRITEERRARBITE A AT AM50%
B, JUARBRN. 2FFSHE, ATRBOEEERARITATFRIATHSRABERIERTIRER. BEIWAELXE, MBENEERER
ARARBOFERITEREARER25%. R, AITEEERMERREBZAERLR.

32. — R MBS

AEH X5
A7(1) 244,206 233,994 244,206 233,994
FREQ) 4,760 4,350 = -
At 248,966 238,344 244,206 233,994

(1) ATRVBEECEREIESSITHREREE) (M£[(2012]205 ) AE, ERIEFREESOER L, R —RXKES B SRIMRITRE R
R SR FE AR B ET BEIRK . RN E—RKE SN AR TR FE = FRRIAI.5%0

@ BEXKEAE, ATTFLERHERFEPER—ELTEN—RRKRES.
33. R A ECFIE

Ht
i
=
‘
Qi

FHREM 376,035 319,068 320,529 268,956
m: AEFRAIMEERENE 117,376 117,102 90,829 111,484
B REUEERRAR(Y) (9,084) (11,148) (9,084) (11,148)
RIEZRRAREQ)) (11,148) (10,936) (11,148) (10,936)
2B — ARG ) 5 (2) (i) (10,622) (10,711) (10,212) (10,487)
B S B (2)() (27,871) (27,340) (27,871) (27,340)
ERRHR 434,686 376,035 353,043 320,529

(1) 20204 EF)5A 9 E

KITLL2020E S AE N ES, RECAERARAMARTI0.841ZTTHH 1T N20205F F . 2020 EftA AN R A RESFESSHE.
(2) 20195 E R E

ESEST2020F 1228 AMERIT20190EEFBHEARNT ¢

(i) REARRRLARVRARMI11.48127T.

(i) FRE—MXEEZEART102.12125T,

(i) HEMERFART278.71Z27T. FADEITAN2020EE

F2020F 128310, BEF2019FEEFARMAVEZERRARARMI11.48LZTEITAN2019FEM FMEIN, LRFESE ST AN2020F E
FRER, LRMEBRFELTURL.

(3) F2020%F12831HKR2019F 128318, AEARDERAMERFTLEFAIRIAALTEENRBRLARRITARTI6.58ZTRART
22.92127t.
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34. DB R R
AERADBBRANEFITOT

HFEMERIEAST 12,147 11,200
EREMBEERHERAD 9,480 9,138
EFESRBERAST 3,196 3,220
&it 24,823 23,558

35. F BIE I

AEH AT
e S S .
FUESU 9N
BB ER 525,361 525,835 510,206 510,821
RETERE( 64,973 67,925 63,760 67,078
RHREREIANRESRE™ 8,031 13,386 7,952 13,208
R RARAT R A7 AR AR 9,163 23,514 8,504 22,473
Hits 3 1 - -
N 607,531 630,661 590,422 613,580
FEXH
ERITHSIES (343,151) (329,622) (341,239) (327,000)
)k R E At & RN 7 AR IR (87,895) (99,115) (87,896) (99,115)
e (9,673) (11,316) (10,555) (11,888)
160 BT A EL A < R AIAG) £ 3R (11,248) (14,429) (5,699) (8,789)
Hith (1,879) (2,230) (1,414) (1,499)
Nt (453,846) (456,712) (446,803) (448,291)
EIESYEON 153,685 173,949 143,619 165,289
FIEBWAFEIE
2IRFUBESRE~F BB 368 425 368 425
(1) REIEARENBBABERIRR . HMEURE T BN
36. FEERAEIFERAN
AEH 17
" '
FEERMEWN
SRS EBRS % 1,529 2,849 1,124 1,898
B R H 519 2,324 519 2,324
ERAES 156 1,556 156 1,556
[EEEES ok 323 146 32 52
RELSFZIEH LI FKA 68 63 - -
Hits 781 366 323 394
N 3,376 7,304 2,154 6,224
FEBERASIH (950) (1,127) (637) (816)
FEBRAEFRN 2,426 6,177 1,517 5,408
37. &R Wik
AEH F13
e O S .
R M LA 24,637 24,061 5,165 5,685
TESBIA 223 (146) 233 59
AR E 125 176 - -
HABEAUIR R 33 23 1 2
HAtAY s T &% - 152 - -
KHRAUR & 82 (19) 2,075 726
Hith 1,548 1,030 1,548 1,030

At 26,648 25,277 9,022 7,502
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38. A AMETTNIREE
AEH E X
Pl 12,853 (6,279) 484 266
FTEERMIA (54) 356 (32) 396
BB FRAETR 730 1,061 730 1,061
At 13,529 (4,862) 1,182 1,723
39.[HiRE
CRKSFEEEIDEDUERFMARTETENRE, URINCHITESRTEFERRE.
40. HAthlk S
AER EX5
FAEBA 8,697 8,304 121 69
Hith 1,368 1,545 13 83
Ait 10,065 9,849 134 152

&
»
i
2:
=
=

AEEH F:X5
4P RISR 2,263 2,318 2,155 2,205
BB EHIIN 1,657 1,675 1,575 1,611
Hith 464 842 391 742
At 4,384 4,835 4,121 4,558

42V REEEH

KEEH F:XE
RIER 7,109 7,276 5,966 5,822
Hep: TH. B&. 2WHANG 5,219 5,210 4,381 4,144
NE=E 3 3,228 3,702 2,597 2,960
HrIRFNRESH 25 A 1,938 1,837 1,722 1,627
&it 12,275 12,815 10,285 10,409

43. {ERR{ERS%

AEH &7
KRB 1,442 48,021 1,794 41,436
AR R 815 1,247 539 61
HE A RAUE R 558 32 (17) (135)
BRI 951 505 948 508
%518 IREE (691) 746 (444) 34
Hith 1,246 1,482 12 (174)
Ait 4,321 52,033 2,832 41,730

44, EAt b 55 R A

AEEH F:XE
ZEHEBRERTA 4,070 3,707 - -
Hit 4,493 2,510 - 1
Ait 8,563 6,217 - 1

45.FRiST&EH

AEEH K97
LHARTISFLER A 8,428 36,932 2,232 30,706
BIEREHER 14,803 (9,891) 12,365 (6,720)

&it 23,231 27,041 14,597 23,986
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FEARKITHERFA ST FEATRAOT :

&M &7
e O R
FE B AR 142,047 145,552 105,426 135,470
R ERE25% I HFSRE A 35,512 36,388 26,357 33,868
FATRBARBBRAF LN (299) (236) = -
L Ot ] (18,738) (18,881) (13,012) (13,332)
RBANTIRNE M ZE R RBELI 330 262 - 34
O RO 2R R H A B AR FL R0 1,420 4,508 1,252 3,416
A%t A 23,231 27,041 14,597 23,986
6. WMEREBRITER
(1) BENHBADTHALEFHUNLERE
&M *17
e S R
R 118,816 118,511 90,829 111,484
M ERRERE 4,321 52,033 2,832 41,730
HAEFRER K 1,597 1,619 23 -
HrIRFOHESH 6,008 5,717 1,722 1,627
BB ST IR (368) (425) (368) (425)
KBEEHR”. TRAFNREAMKIAE~0IRE (585) (761) 7) (77)
ARMEZ B (18,529) 4,862 (1,182) (1,723)
ERE RN ENF BRI 289,426 276,126 283,178 268,711
2l ¢ (240) (332) (2,076) (728)
LR 30,503 (9,689) 25,496 (9,648)
BIEFISHLZ A 14,803 (9,891) 12,365 (6,720)
ZEM N IR B #0518 N ER (817,428) (346,307) (887,201) (151,309)
SEMNINE KRR (486,457) (381,167) (559,067) (347,361)
ZEENTENASREEH (853,133) (289,704) (1,033,456) (94,439)
(2) MEBRMESNYEZINER
EH X
T S L
NERAEENYHFERRIM 859,006 1,137,595 863,014 1,293,244
B MERMLENYOEN R (1,137,595) (1,031,679) (1,293,244) (987,665)
MERMESENYE (R ) AEMER (278,589) 105,916 (430,230) 305,579

(@) FRTFREREBRPHMERAVEENMEIE :

AEH #13
| 0em2AnA | 10%12ANA | 00FRANA | 010F2ANA

F R RARITAIRE) LRI 189,932 232,814 194,345 388,868
FRRFIHBERNBE =181

INBRESMA~ 581,865 718,262 581,460 717,857

FHES 87,209 173,356 87,209 173,356

BUS 35 - 13,163 - 13,163
&t 859,006 1,137,595 863,014 1,293,244

A7 . EEMUCEF PO
(1) AEARGFREEOERARENES
AEFIOER MM EEERLTRANEVRFESEAS, RASHES. FHENRLEEHEBIMETEERUEEST, HAXSES
BAE.
@) FERALRG. RERTENANSHEEOLGENLES

FERALT. REREENAANGHCENEMEMEIREEAEARRERFIFHNLSHE=NEREATRINEEBNGEE. AEARER
EEMNRFEETULRES. BTARANUEEMUEEBERD, BES5HEXEHZEIRER, HFEBENZANEMULIENRAZNE
TREER, FEUAERAN I REM T AREFER.

F2020%F128318, ER(NMR)PHANEHCENEMUERNR=NERNART299.791Z7T (20195128310 : ARM1,134.51127T )o
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(B) AEHXRTT. REREENARNASHEEANSEHLES

AEFALRRIFERTBNNEMUTR, BEEFIFHES. BRI, E2MNEMFRE, ARTERMEFEERS. FEATRAN
BISEENEMATHRLE RIS EMTIFTL.

F2020F 128318, AEARREIMAREHFNEMUIENE~NEAART,726.23(Z7T (2019F128318 : ARM1,796.12127T ), A&H
R FRLEMUERBMAKENENARTE3.25127T (20195128318 : ARM42.60127T ), RLEXZHRMNEK T AL IXLELEH L EK

E’Jri(ﬂ[&ﬂﬂ[lo
F2020%E, AEHAFLEREMHERPRENIETECRFEBUA. BERGERF BN, It ARM18.18127T( 20194 : ARM14.0712
7T )o

(4) FEFAKRBHRNAGHEENSRLE G

FERAFHMAABE=ZHF MR ITREENEMUIENE, BIAAXSESRE S ME MRS

F2020%F12A31H, AEARKEBIRE=ZATNMRITRERNEMUTENEGE, BIAAXSHSRAFNEMBERRE . FFZERPAEHE
FEMUERNSEAE, TAFTREBNTZREL . THREAEERE, FEAFEEMNMARITOEMUEFONEE2IROT ¢

RS U EREF 26,252 28,466
H bR R 99 216
Ait 26,351 28,682

48. SR T FHTS

EAREXSGYT, AEABERECFHEARHRENGEE, BABKENERAREZERTES IS RIBEWEIN. 7@MMTER. 4693 BiR
#, AEAZRBNENEMNORERELRESHFTES, MTHRRSLEMAMEXERES.

F2020F12831H, EFILERIBHUERR~RENKERENART20.57(Z7T(2019F128318 : ART114.121Z25T )o EHAF -

- WFEREFRILKEREART18.861Z7T(2019F12831H : ART109.06125T ), AEBINRRE THXEH B HEENLRE DXL
REN, BOTERLIEHIA

- F2020F12831HKX20195F128310, ANERALLE S NFHILNERRE

- NFERAFHILKEREARDI.71ZT, WANEREAKKEHARNARTO.16/27T. (2019F12831BERE~HILKARENARD
5.071Z7T, KEMERRANEHORNARTO.25(Z5T ), REMIANAFELIEFRIANE Y.

. BERE

AEFRBEEESBREHTUSIINIHRERRNAEL. HBEERBERERANNEBMNRE—BNOHX#ITIIR.
NEEZSE—REWEAREMH#IT. ABFILENSBHEHNEEE, HFETIEOBALSHKR PR,

RERERIZUT U S EBRATIIR ¢

RITIES

12&3‘“55%@%“7%&17&% ﬂiﬁﬁ%‘%ﬂ_%&ﬁﬁﬂ_%o ABRTUSBEMERIZR. FRRS. RERS. HOS55ERS. NeEERS.

ZHERS. RERSEBRESS. KTHRFVIZSALNIRTUIEZFERESKE. R VEFEEHETHHRS. INLHHXS . GRETHXS. ﬁ%
9[‘ [%i&m’ix%&f/“ﬁh Efio

AR RS

RAHEERIRF IS

&S

AR HEEARAEAHBANRARRLSREERELS.
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EHF
AAMEIFEFNELZLE. BELESRIESAE LS.
KEH
| Reks  BREELS  ERMS @S GARWE &
20204
BB 597,630 864 9,476 1,250 (1,689) 607,531
FEXH (446,125) (2,285) (6,981) (673) 2,218 (453,846)
F BN 5 F 151,505 (1,421) 2,495 577 529 153,685
B IO G F) BN FE 150,605 (83) 2,652 511 - 153,685
SEBIFY BN B ET 900 (1,338) (157) 66 529 =
FHEBERASFRA 1,517 427 (81) 567 () 2,426
A OG5 FLER M2/ FUA 1,458 428 (16) 555 7 2,426
78818 F £L # R AF2 3 U 59 (1) (65) 12 (5) -
EEIREAN/(ZH) (18,126) 21,760 9,854 592 (1,938) 17,142
Bl (16,733) (5,477) (7,674) (1,565) 309 (31,140)
ENEN e 21 (62) @) (10) 10 - (66)
A2 123,101 15,285 4,584 181 (1,104) 142,047

2020%12831H

B 16,769,136 202,153 303,330 44,074 (215,118) 17,103,575
PR 15,320,537 75,477 276,700 28,115 (77,846) 15,622,983
Hith -
Hr 1B 1,722 259 4,134 78 (185) 6,008
BAMIE 602 15 16,931 24 = 17,672
ERRERE 2,174 516 708 1,025 (102) 4,321
HA B PR ER A 23 - 1,574 - - 1,597
fBEHRIE 3,512,038 244 - - (23,524) 3,488,758
FEH
RIS BRRERELS MRS IEHE AHRIAE fit

20194
FBIA 622,722 1,007 8,761 1,159 (2,988) 630,661
F BT H (449,335) (2,441) (7,167) (753) 2,984 (456,712)
PUESYGONE i 173,387 (1,434) 1,594 406 4) 173,949
B : LG F)EWAFEET 172,122 (139) 1,851 115 - 173,949

S EBIARY BN B ET 1,265 (1,295) (257) 291 () -
FHEBERASRBRA 5,411 282 (54) 581 (43) 6,177
B MG FLHER 2 FHUA 5,378 282 (10) 532 (5) 6,177

7 BB 8] F 4L % R AT F N 33 - (44) 49 (38) -
HAE LRI 20,162 13,788 9,571 657 (1,406) 42,772
Bl (62,253) (5,253) (7,125) (2,288) (600) (77,519)
B ANKSF R 77 72 8 13 3 173
8 R E 136,784 7,455 3,094 (631) (2,050) 145,552

2019%12831H

BH 17,469,060 186,551 261,301 37,583 (1,449,920) 16,504,575
SR 15,243,915 78,681 235,631 21,522 (468,909) 15,110,840
Hth

IR 5 1,626 271 3,738 82 - 5,717
BAMIH 523 637 20,365 63 - 21,588
ERREIRE 47,160 1,921 1,087 1,634 231 52,033
HEfthHE =R AR - 135 951 - 533 1,619

BERAE 3,524,439 244 - - (26,047) 3,498,636
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+. XBEAXERRZS
1. MHBUER
AR RE SR AMERI], T2020E12831HK2019E128310, MEEREHHE £K1736.54% KRN

AEASVEEHTHABVEXSREBHVERHT, T2EREAATHVILRELVERFLZITHERS. THRAAGRERA, 2S5 0¥A
ERWMT -

E IR E LM 74,432 85,399
F X [8)(%) 1.99-4.68 2.31-4.68

F BN 2,429 2,683
BRI 94 96
2. i[C&RT

CEAFIRTPERFERFTEAINLEFAT, IMAPEILR, EMEANARTS,282.0927T. LEATFLESKRRN, WEBERNMHE
ITERRER, ANEHMFHLEEEE. LERATREXPEBMRETESEITONAMNS. T20205F12331HK%2019F12A3310, LR
YR FARIT34.68% KN

THRFARERR, AEAFANLERATERTHRS TERARERHERBEWNT

RS MEERR 4,099 4,859
AR RAUR B 42,539 22,196
F X [8)(%) 2.15-5.15 2.85-5.15

L=V ON
REW R

1,106
173

142

FEASTEAERERHRAFRANATHTOERLERS, BEFHLERHT
. BERMREFERREELT

BRENREFEERFEAT (UTEHR BENAS)REAFIMNLEEFLERIM—ABRTELST, FETEABENIIE .. BN, &R &
£ BHRERFE ; REZREE. RATE(REAEIENTE, 2EXMIIMEESTIAREEES ).

F20205F 20195128310, #BEMATHFERIT27.19% IR
AERASERANAIREEFHEREREFHOATHTHERELERS, REEFLETHIT.
5F723N%5

KTRFREEABEREBE5FAINRTIIRUT :

w

&

&=

TSR B 46 22
RIMBFRARR 43,232 41,946
Tt 40 71
HAEAR A - 404
B EH= 787 787
Hp& = 1,214 1,066
Rk

6k R Eofth & RAMI T AR IR 1,000 6
FTESBAR - 1
T 100,914 225,265
ERITHRFIES 3,139 1,004
Hth itk 676 750

F2020F 128310, 5FAFERMEFKERFLRARBERMAART235.251Z5T ( 2019F12831H : ARM260.47127T )o

FTHBARRETLESFATNRETITAOT ¢

NRMEENIRE (81) (71)
[UESUON 1,657 1,639
FEX S (915) (639)
FEHERAEBRA 66 45
FEaERAEIH 8) (10)
RE W 2,075 726

FTESFRIZBHNRZHZRB—REB W EFHMNEB I SEFHT.
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o1

SBREMSELTNXRS
AEASHKENSELDZMNXE U~ BRI BNENENER, RERBUEHHRT, F2020FR2010F, AEAXSHKENSELDRETA
REFXS, ERBEERXKTHR.

RBEEAR

FREBARZRBNF AT, BENRGHAEIENMAR. F2020FER20195E, BREBEARFMIN, AEASXBEEARNIS SHH
REKo

el FE
REHMMHKIN, F20205R2019F, AEARKTERTRYMESHURELEBRXKHZ S

+—. HBEFRLRKE

@

o

1. ZEEIRR

Fo020E 128318, AEFARATHEEETAEFREN. ATESERANZEEERANELHRERRENAERRATOULRRREZE

BEETATN.
2. BARMKE

P *17

EELRNIT

- AR E 38,365 49,207 - -
- BERE/E 53,133 61,545 645 200
&it 91,498 110,752 645 200

FEANEERRAAETIENMEZHEAEERTHNEAMAE. T2020F12A310, A&AMZHEAEERTNEAMAKEBEESTANARD
523.331Z7t (20195128318 : ARM611.511Z7T )o

3. ERKiE

AEH 17
o ao0fuBnE | 00FuRANA | 200FI2ANA | 20195128018
BHORE 3,454,884 3,444,028 3,471,883 3,463,099
FFHARERIBR 17,526 35,634 23,807 42,366
RIFEFRLCE 9,606 11,693 9,606 11,693
FFHERIE 6,742 7,281 6,742 7,281
&it 3,488,758 3,498,636 3,512,038 3,524,439

F2020%F12831H, BFKEPERFBAE—FUNNETAART60.99127T(20195F12831H : 208.561Z7t ), ERRHFEERFIHHY
TEw—FUL.

Rl A BRI
FRERERD, WHAETORTHEORERLSOERMT -

.

FEH

MAHARERESM 29,046 31,170
F20205 % 2019F12831H, AERAMRMERERIEY H—FLUA.

K SR IE

F2020F % 2019F12831H, RERFITREITHIIESKIHEKIE.

B4R

(1) ERBRYHE

BERHRERE, BEEZEERBWHORBYOE~KENEDT

o1

@

&35 128,994 117,344

"% 110,597 105,761
F2020F128318, XEARKRTRHEMERATZTRARES DI NART,246.23127c R AKT1,071.00127t (20195128310 : KB AART
1,125.391Z TR ARM1,033.301Z7T ). Fif B M S TE s A U 5 F N E H o

F2020%12A318, AERAF S NKRAHERLALEARNE~B FERORFYKEANESIT AIART340.01127t (2019128318 : AR
262.861Z7T )o

(2) WEIMERY
REAEIANREN SHES TIESENRFREY .. F2020F12831HR2019F12A31H, AERATWE T I & B R EIMEMRFNESIIRY .
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+=. MEER

1. SRRKRSEER
AEAMNLEFIEIRSHERXE, AEAELESEPN XL XL EAEGFHTIRA .. 2. BEMNKRSG. KZXEEEI %0
iE, FRUSBATEEEIGEENKR. FILAERREBIRE NKEFXEHEIRAOFESE, FROe0RDKEEZT M SIS EERNT .
AERAFBULTABHERNOEEHNEZMEINHNREEZERS, HERSERT "'RE—X" FKPMEKRUREBIE. EEA, FEARRIT
REFESMERRISHELEFN R, AEAREBEESRATAREEETRKEAREENRETHEEAFNBERTESLTARRMNGES, RO
FEAR R & A A LA A0 151 o
AXNKEEBLNEFAEE, AEFA#HTT LENEENTAESRTIERS, BEEMHEE. EHAMXERMMN X TRANE.
AEAMXNKEEBRIZE T EHUHIXEREMMZFFER, HELTEMENNEERGRENXEMERRAOMNITER, BLORSIF DX .
AEATHHFIANKEEBBCRNERES, RRNBRERMTIZ. FROEL, HIIARELERUAHZENKEE, AEARKNTIESHNKREEYG
F& RN . mIAXEE R X

2. EREMXE
AEFAMAEROEGEEANKEZ2EERSIRSN FHFNAREAHRITENBERIONKGE. EENKEAERAVSEAKNREEXNKE, RILSEES
EANKESEEEEEE. GANREIBEFETEREST, UENGINEREMFTESRESLS. RIS TAEAUMESERERBMZIARELEERS
X .
AEARBRAKSEHWANTIFRARBXEEES, S6AEALESFEEL TERAILAKR, SFIFRAZE. RiE. B8, 8EKRE. ITXHE
RG%, ZREAN _HERITIRAEAR, DEETNEFRFYOERNELEHIFANTHEHEE P SYUERIRARNEIER TR B, A THRIEFR
FERSSE, RFETESIFR. EROLE. HERIFFEMTIIPREHIFRE.
(1) ERREHNER
AEAXNBEREAESNEER. REFSHEI. BEEZ. ®
fERiE, BURFNAE. IFTRIBE. FEFEM. BMEREZNE
ERRFARNESFERLERFAAEANEBXKEEKFE.
LAREFANITTIIELENREFETIAAN T EZSIETMEA T E £/ AR = IR — 2R, MEEHTZSE. KRBT ESETEATWRERIAKTERE
B ()BT EARLE ; QKREANKE FE2XWHLEEBRS, BNTMBERANNELEBESESHBERLE,
BRERATSAAEATREANKEIN, FTFELEENS, AEAZEEBRESELAEAKIENRIZINF. FEHEREXNRERAKRER., 255%
NINFEBIREER. PRFEE, HzAENNIEESERSAHSAEREIESAR, YERSEEVESHNERNKEHEITER, I, KEANRR
BERBINTESBREBANRZTABELS, ALEEERPEAMEAEARBZ PRI, HFABSETEIEHOXKE, Rt ARERAXS LRI EZIE
SR SR EPUA XS 12 52 B K2 BUR SR BRI I1% 1S B XURS o
(2) EER\Y
AERAFET —RIEANCEBRNBENER, RAZEXAN, LEREANEREERERARBIRERY .. KEAXNEARSERERYHT
ESURERXNKERRRES T TRERES], ACHERERBEYIEHER.
KRR EBRARFEE LR, FlER. B, tERAN. RIS, WS FERURYMIRE . BEAMERMBR ZIIMNIEM SR ETH
WEEY), HEMIEASHMERRE. BEBLT, BUSHRTEASGRHEHEIFNESTIFHIESIEUSRT AN, F5. BRMNEMER
ZRRAEER. T2020F12831H, KEARFEEANEER .
(3) EHITEHR
AEAXRBRNBELERIRARBRENT I FHFAOBMRIFHER, BNABEINNZTZHFRBAARABHOANBITLEER, ERARBERAER
(B : BRANHEEBARITILSZE ) BENNFLEER | BEERAIINBBIBEANTER. LI, THEEREBXEEEREARNERH MM
B gE R EMRREENRZHANGEBEL.
(4) FREAERIREITE
SFUHEEARTENUAANETEEEENITAREMEERENRESTIESRE . HUESRABFUERRFKBENMESEBRER, KERHEZH
“TRERERMARE " THRRERES. AERAFTERESTURERRARENLNTS EZRIRESHAER %,
TFMATBEERKTENESHTE, AEATHEEXESRIENEEAXNKEVIERIAEEEECEZEN, 2B =M RERE S FTEEHIR
RER. BIATUHERHRL -
FE—ME: BVBRBARGEENKEAEZENNERTE, RENMEBY S NE—NE.
FEMER: BVBRIAEGEENKEZENNESHTE, EARBEEVNACLAEERRENERIE, REMEBYSNE ZNEE.
F=ME  WNTFEALEERARENESRTE, RENEYNNSANBE=ZNE.

FEEAMAREREESATHNERLSSREZTIEMEE, BITRIEERER
FEEEMAEEE, RefANRERYR, MRARARUBLFRLE, HHER
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F-MEREMIAZBEITZERIERRKI2NBNTHACHRANSIOIEERKES, F_NRAIF=NMRSURTERBALITZEMIEA

ENFEATBMERIRANESTITERIRKES.

MASBRECREERRENEMETRIEEVRRIANDFEERRENSRES . XERTUREEENBENFELBNTBERRE.

FERALGHREESEITIRERRAITM, HBERRANTETERTEROERMER KEERMNEZTRRRNEALFERMNERA

BERRR (G, EREHONTRERBNRE ). AEARBERIDENNEXRETIERRKRATERER T HET. RIRMMGEIT, 65F

- KMUERRKRAEL 5

- THERREATENSE. RREMAITRAR

- ERAXKE R E BN EiRE

- BYMEREERRENHETRE

- BTt ENAETER. X R RENENXA

- B BRAMESABERARRIA SR IO

KUERARKRAE S

FEMFEEXRURRFENHMOH#ITAH ERHTOAN, AEAZRTERALR, TUk5. EXER. BRIXVEAR, BREAGHNR

ARSI E M

FBEARKITENSH. RRRMEITRA

REEANRERREREEMULRREEREGEARE, FEANAFBHNETSH U120 BRBNFEBNTBERREITBREESE. THE

RIRATENXESHEEBAOMNE, BORARMBAONKRHO. AEAUSRNREEREROAITRERNER, REFSRTEENNE

K, ERAHLFITEE(MRZWFIFL. BERAXARBMERAYEN . EXARE ) WEESMRIEMEER, BYBAHE. BARKRLEHIRN

R R,

BEXEXNT :

- BABXRERESAERRILOBREBNMREFELY, DEBTEENNSHNTEN. AEANSAMEUNIRITREDL LR AEM BT
B, MAREREER, UWRMAINENEFIIE RS AN SBLME ;

- BYRAXREAEANSZHONBRBLERAREMHOTE. REXSHFHNEY. BROGAMNRER, URBRAENTRE, ELMEER
HWERARE. BARKENEHLERNEHOREOBEALL ;

- BYRKRHORE, EENRER, REANREMTHEH.

FEAXRAABEATFRRRENZZHFHNBAMRFGEER, AUNTREINNZHN FRBARABIFREE . ERARIFHKRENERARL
FERREEBRANTRRE . AEAEHERFERTMBERAREHTERXNRR, BESHRTHEIMELBRYNENZHER.

F20205FE, HItRASKBRIZRREERZN.

1B R REG 2& FE AN B ) b e

FEAEBIMNAFAGRBAITEEXERIANEBNRENERAEREEEEREM. AEA#ITSREFHNRENRUINESEERREER
AEREHNEERUNEMAEEBRENER, SEIENEER. 2EANURMEHTANEN, BItRERTIAERFARRARETIN
R SENBERIABREBANNE, UBESRTATUTFEBRLETAOREHENER.

FEABIREEE. EMRELHHSRTANGEENKRBVGEMAEEEREREEM, HMPEIEOERSATORRNTN. ERKKS
KNBULUREMEXAEENRSEEMNER. FHHSRTAENERRNREVRRAGEEEZBMN, REDRMEIENXTEBBII30X
BAGEAKKEEZFRMOERE. WRERSESHTANRENEFRREANE, FEARLZERIANERNKEBVBIINGHREEEM.
MREMIABRFRMOBING, ERATEPAEERBVENKBERHAARNESENS, BHETXSENRREKIBBAZFME L LGN
RFEUFTREME, WizeRTARMAEBEREERNK.

MABRKBESRBEER, AEAKRBGAEN T REBZMIOERARBREEERERANENERRE. YT ERASBEHERTEHE
A, AEARFIRERLHE, SE5ERERAZLERS. EREIMZRBEZMIBERANZL, DUTHEXERIAENEERNEEVBIHIAGRES
BERBM.

B E RS RRENH TR
AFERIEENTARERTREGRREN, AEAMXANAERE, SEARHNEXSRIANGEANKREEERRIE -8, RNEERE
2. EMiEr. AEATEESARTREERAEN, FEZERUTER

- ROBIGSAREERVSEHM |

- BRBAERER, UEMHNESASENREHRRNAEANETEAE. B ABIRENRIHRFEHBITOX ;

- ERALTFEGRSAMSEAREXNEZFRERER, ATFRSAETTEMBER TBRSHEAILS
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- ESARTHBE TR ESEE ;

- RATHRES AN SRR SEZ S AT ERTIAHE

- DKEFNMESRE —EMAT, RN T REERRKNES ;

SRAFREEARME, FTRRSVEHOLBABAB, RURTEMRF OB

AT AR BOSHIER. 2FERRINENR A

{EARK 2 E RIS REBEMIRE OIS RARIEER . ARRBIITHLMIBHMT, RIBEHE LS LD ERNRETBERRX
MXRAFIEE, NENEFRTES. DU, BRRSSNS. RESFRFEORTNBARAEOLN, WFEHNLSLDEHT
e AEASEZEAINBBIEH S TR LTRSS OREMEORAEZBOXR. AEBDERRLESFIRRBTRETN, 312
HARRMBERT, FEBOMFHEER

AEMLEALGHATERRMESN . LERENER FHEFIURINE. AEANSHEREFIVAFERTEREOLERRRETRRE
FERNSANEURBNOTEER. FEAFHFRET ADERONE, REAEHNRMGHRREST LGB, KEAUNRNI12M P
MBS MIAL (B —HE ) ANRNENFEBTMBEMRL (FNREBE=MNER ) T RBXNRLEE. LANREMARLLBITFN—RIITH
B RTRENE R EE MRS T

A ERRERBEMT LRI R TSR RAOEN, THSREBANABERRLOMNET— RS T URA LRI HE 0%
R, F2020EE, AEAERT FANENEFHER, LAFLTRASEHSHENSFLREBOLN, N RWEFIERETHEETN. X
. AT AT TR R ALK R0 E P4 7 (B(GDP) 4 3 ) Hi K R 4E2021 F b 1 5 T HOUSE I8 798.0%-9.0%

IR0 XS FEH LF R TIF10%, AEEF2020512531 BIHROMEEERRENLAITBIIE%.

F2020%12A318, Fll. LEREA=MHREBMA, HiE LAZMERIAREEEOTBERRALSLRAELENRITEELOTRBER
RS ABLE £ FHIBE R ABIL5%

BRERRERER NS

ERNERFBENMTNEEZSRZ —. BREMELORELMI0%, MEEERONERD10% ; REBEERHELONELMI0%, HEA
R AR ER10%, AEET2020%12431 BiHRAMIEE & RMBHLHITBILE%.

BEMBRRBSHA LR R RIS AT

AEEAEGIURE ST SCREBARAERBRORREPNSAN, HRE—EOFARFIEME, FEEFRRASRANRIE.

(5) FERIMEMMA ;IS AR RA AR KO

FAFAREKA, BAEARBRMANERDT :

FEH T

_ 20194128310 _ 2019412H31H
RAmE
TFRR RARATIRIN 131,351 189,234 130,837 188,783
FHE L3RI 341,853 522,571 364,480 688,936
wHES 106,536 189,000 106,536 199,012
ST SRR 37,737 21,373 37,455 21,363
ENRESRE 588,312 721,029 581,625 718,122
B TR 12,640,362 11,713,333 12,513,295 11,600,493
RHHERA 914,493 825,416 899,465 800,869
FARRE 1,273,000 1,401,344 1,268,683 1,394,738
E A RAUE 660,106 515,731 639,350 482,638
HAth 10,100 7,717 4,823 4,252
N 16,703,850 16,106,748 16,546,549 16,099,206
FIMIE
BRI 3,454,884 3,444,028 3,471,883 3,463,099
FFHERE 17,526 35,634 23,807 42,366
RITEFLCE 9,606 11,693 9,606 11,693
FHEBIE 6,742 7,281 6,742 7,281
Ny 3,488,758 3,498,636 3,512,038 3,524,439
Rit 20,192,608 19,605,384 20,058,587 19,623,645

ERDFFIRT F2020F %2019F12831H, AEARKTERZRANBER THERRIRHA, BIREREMAMFRARY R EMERBIBRERNE
BREHO. MFHR~ARERE, EREANEHOET R~ RAERKEFETR.
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(6) FEMBRIERMKEHOS

FEARZHRAMNBRANERERR AR ERR". “HRE" M SR ERE" EEIANERRRKPRE, BYRNTZEERENE
FEMARTUNEN ; "FRE EEXABFSEERNRE, BIKEARTEEERFE-ERN, ERFTTHRYRCLBHMEN ; "SR
" IEERABSLEHINTRARYE, NMERMIMIEROBNEUHNTESBEFEY, SONREKR.
ANBETEECENERTEREALFATBERRENBRANUT, BRIEFNRE, S—MEARDPAMBEARE, F_RE=ZNREE
BN FEIETRER R K.

RGN ETR
KEH
20208128518 C smwe mtee m=eR &
ER%%
ER 11,570,166 - - 11,570,166
R - 1,322,929 - 1,322,929
=R - - 115,366 115,366
Ait 11,570,166 1,322,929 115,366 13,008,461
B ERREES (124,211) (244,654) (72,393) (441,258)
5 ER 11,445,955 1,078,275 42,973 12,567,203
Xy
R 11,459,784 - - 11,459,784
R - 1,289,661 - 1,289,661
BREK - - 112,544 112,544
&t 11,459,784 1,289,661 112,544 12,861,989
W ERREEE (121,023) (228,974) (71,008) (421,000)
B 11,338,761 1,060,687 41,541 12,440,989
REH
2019412H31H BN BMER BEMER Ait
ER%%R
ERE 10,846,396 - - 10,846,396
R - 1,189,509 - 1,189,509
BRE - - 127,128 127,128
&t 10,846,396 1,189,509 127,128 12,163,033
B ERREES (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (517,092)
BB 10,658,794 958,396 28,751 11,645,941
4T
ER 10,747,769 - - 10,747,769
R - 1,158,606 - 1,158,606
=R - - 123,359 123,359
Ait 10,747,769 1,158,606 123,359 12,029,734
o ERREEE (184,544) (215,601) (95,919) (496,064)
R 10,563,225 943,005 27,440 11,533,670
AR 5
KEH
20208128518 ~ smwe mtee m=eR &
1562
ERE 1,277,550 - - 1,277,550
R - 13 - 13
BRE - - 3,532 3,532
&it 1,277,550 13 3,532 1,281,095
R ERREES (5,216) 5) (2,874) (8,095)
R 1,272,334 8 658 1,273,000
*47
R 1,273,718 - - 1,273,718
R - - - -
BRE - - 358 358
&t 1,273,718 - 358 1,274,076
B ERREEE (5,162) - (231) (5,393)

FEL 1,268,556 = 127 1,268,683
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AEH

CaegizR®E w8 s=we  s=mm &
ER%R
RRE 1,404,909 - - 1,404,909
RS 499 354 - 853
BRE - - 3,170 3,170
Ait 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
B ERREES (5,196) M) (2,391) (7,588)
B 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344
4T
R 1,399,037 - - 1,399,037
R 499 354 - 853
At 1,399,536 354 - 1,399,890
W ERREES (5,151) (1) - (5,152)
%R 1,394,385 353 - 1,394,738

EAth AR 3

AEH

CawgiRmE [ swe  s=me  s=m& &
EH%R
ERBE 658,928 - = 658,928
R = - _ _
BRE - - 1,178 1,178
At 658,928 - 1,178 660,106
ERREES (74) - (726) (800)
4T
R 639,350 - - 639,350
ERREES (48) - (15) (63)
FEH

CavegizR®E W& s=me  s=mm &
ER%R
BRI 515,530 - - 515,530
R - 161 - 161
B - - 40 40
&it 515,530 161 40 515,731
ERREES (165) (1) (243) (409)
T
RRE 482,638 - - 482,638
ERREES (81) - - (81)

BERAIE

AEH

CawgRmE [ w8 ®=me s=m& &
ERSR
TERE 3,376,927 - - 3,376,927
R - 109,564 - 109,564
BRE - - 2,267 2,267
At 3,376,927 109,564 2,267 3,488,758
*17
R 3,400,451 - = 3,400,451
R - 109,564 - 109,564
BRE - - 2,023 2,023

&ait 3,400,451 109,564 2,023 3,512,038
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ERER

R 3,417,498 - - 3,417,498
R - 77,383 - 77,383
BRE - - 3,755 3,755
&it 3,417,498 77,383 3,755 3,498,636
&7

R 3,443,545 - - 3,443,545
R - 77,383 - 77,383
BRE - - 3,511 3,511
At 3,443,545 77,383 3,511 3,524,439

TR A R

B

ER%R
RRE 3,486 - - 3,486
PR - 12,564 - 12,564
SRR - - 550 550
&t 3,486 12,564 550 16,600
&7
TERE 3,611 - - 3,611
R - 12,564 - 12,564
BRE - - 304 304
&it 3,611 12,564 304 16,479
REH

CaogizRmE  m-me  ®=we w=mm &
ERSR
R 7,752 - - 7,752
R - 7,202 - 7,202
BRE - - 1,386 1,386
At 7,752 7,202 1,386 16,340
*17
TERBE 8,035 - - 8,035
R - 7,202 - 7,202
BRE - - 738 738
At 8,035 7,202 738 15,975

ERAHFHMBEHIBR

FEARVERERECRRENSRASNNNERR, BARKRTAMERR, AEANREEEERREMIVXLERRBNITEEER. 2
REGRARENSRER, URARREBERAMFENERRNETIRUT

i
bid
=

EREGHRENES™

R ERR 115,628 (72,393) 43,235 65,638
AR HR 3,532 (2,874) 658 =
HABEAIR R 1,178 (726) 1,178 -
R 120,338 (75,993) 45,071 65,638
&7

EREERRENE™

RN RTR 112,800 (71,008) 41,797 65,638
AR E 358 (231) 127 -
E b HEAURE - (15) - -

A 113,158 (71,249) 41,924 65,638
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FEH

EREGEHRENEST

BIMEFRAER 127,135 (98,377) 28,758 39,054
AR H 3,170 (2,391) 779 -
AR RAUR 5 40 (243) 40 -
B 130,345 (101,011) 29,577 39,054
4T

EREEHRENE™

RIMBFRARR 123,359 (95,919) 27,440 39,017
B 123,359 (95,919) 27,440 39,017

ERIERYRRNESE, UHMEROE-ELXNEZNEZRNEBRKLHE AR
F2020&12A31H, AEARFTERDAERERONERLEZELWL.

(7) RHEEERAMEBK

ERRFMBR AR ERAAEHRRERAXIHERAOT

REH

BERRR 696,201 850,506 1,843,022 3,389,729
FRIELE TR 117,532 221,455 590,933 929,920
HEAR YR 69,370 134,830 1,379,521 1,583,721
JRIR YR 20,188 44,281 7,082,085 7,146,554
&it 903,291 1,251,072 10,895,561 13,049,924

2019%12831H

BEREN 484,556 137,119 2,122,101 2,743,776
BRIERFR 152,140 77,990 1,165,449 1,395,579
RN 72,049 118,270 979,286 1,169,605
RAABERR 57,070 99,142 6,735,336 6,891,548
Ait 765,815 432,521 11,002,172 12,200,508
4T
CwogizAmA L ammm aEs&  sEME &

[EEEE 698,098 852,123 1,867,122 3,417,343
FRIERR 117,522 221,771 589,316 928,609
AR 33,596 44,948 1,333,393 1,411,937
ARG 20,012 43,899 7,081,652 7,145,563
Ait 869,228 1,162,741 10,871,483 12,903,452
2019412H31H

ER R 482,921 133,331 2,144,064 2,760,316
BRIERFR 152,710 81,513 1,164,018 1,398,241
fisiilag 36,715 45,918 936,893 1,019,526
AR 55,810 97,853 6,735,463 6,889,126
&it 728,156 358,615 10,980,438 12,067,209

RMEHMBRRE AT LAHERWT

AEEH 202012831H 20195128318
e Y e
1/ X Bis 3,092,802 24 3,112,777 26
EEIEENL 2,695,315 21 2,008,160 16
B MRS RIKEE PR 1,086,599 8 1,097,145 9
KF . IRRRIPA QIR IEE IR 1,084,051 8 900,250 7
HREgEHL 901,978 7 1,017,961 8
g 781,640 6 643,131 5
WM AHZIE 787,599 6 742,430 6
Al AALT 692,729 5 745,918 6
SR 429,914 3 345,691 3
HAtEHEL 329,675 3 359,156 3
B2 304,316 2 263,893 2
] 189,082 1 154,947 1
BIEMEMESERHRS L 70,094 1 96,875 1
Hith 704,130 5 714,174 7

Ait 13,049,924 100 12,200,508 100
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*17 20204128318 20194128318
T S

P X B0E 3,091,711 24 3,111,627 26
R 2,673,460 21 1,989,228 16
B MRERAKEIAE =AY 1,060,801 8 1,071,535 9
KA FMERIPA A EEER AL 986,846 8 863,532 7
BB 890,920 7 1,007,149 8
g 757,810 6 619,380 5
B AHZE 782,949 6 727,673 6
Al ARAKT 692,729 5 745,341 6
St 455,269 4 348,868 3
Hitizgl 312,931 2 341,585 3
R 303,793 2 262,504 2
BE 189,082 1 154,890 1
BEMEMERERRS L 69,749 1 96,120 1
Hits 685,402 5 727,777 7
&t 12,903,452 100 12,067,209 100

BHFRMBIR

BARAREBEEBRARVYSRKABUUB L ERBERAERERNBERT, AEANATEERAEFTHBEEREANRSR. BERBIUEE

BHMERARTREALIEF ARHRME . XLEEEFTHEERIFLMTRL. F2020F128310, ARANATEARKESHHART237.891Z

(2019128318 : ARM261.461Z7T ).
(8) RIMHEIRE

TRIRT AERARATERMERBRENERTIZEEATERFRNMNERITRSEBER

FE&EE

2020512H31H

BURF RO ARG 55 42,468 - 2,104 - 1,307,063 - 1,351,635
SR ESE 52,457 966 21,529 2,514 - - 77,466
ABHEF 213,954 5,064 - 4,759 - 2,821 226,598
RFEHFIES 217 229 - - - 16 462
SRIZEIC)] 521,222 9,498 34,394 - = 148 565,262
[ BRI DSAERIAEA - - - - - - -
4T RATHOIR A @ - - - - - 9,071 9,071
fEFEIT IR HAth - - - - - 2,426 2,426
HFEEERITL - - - - - 1,466 1,466
&it 830,318 15,757 58,027 7,273 1,307,063 15,948 2,234,386
*EH 2019412H31H

BUS R B 235 52,538 - - - 1,441,961 2,593 1,497,092
SRR 36,292 584 3,090 3,162 - 10,161 53,289
ABEF 90,160 21,751 395 2,534 - 116,245 231,085
RS 868 277 - - - 53 1,198
[&):lk 77 5 (1) 282,617 - - - - - 282,617
R b K [3) A R 3,903 215 - - - - 4,118
AT RATHR = & - - - - - 11,397 11,397
SRR R - - - - 363 3,635 3,998
AFEERITR 4 - - - - 4,747 4,751
&t 466,382 22,827 3,485 5,696 1,442,324 148,831 2,089,545
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+13

2020%12831H

U R AT LA 2 55 42,302 - 2,104 - 1,301,930 - 1,346,336
SR RS 51,320 - 21,529 391 - - 783,240
NIEH 204,763 712 = 2,343 = 99 207,917
RIS = 52 - - - 782 834
(1) 521,223 9,498 34,394 - - - 565,115
FRE LR L ER - - - - - - -
EFEIT R R E At - - - = - . -
AEEEIHY = - - - - 15026 06
&it 819,608 10,262 58,027 2,734 1,301,930 1,927 2,194,488
{7 20194128310

BUR RO BRFAS 35 50,420 - - - 1,440,001 2,996 1,493,417
SR ERSE 34,931 349 3,300 - - 10,762 49,342
Ak 67,507 10,327 151 116 - 118,825 191,926
RS 419 23 - - - 1,366 1,808
SRIZe=1C)] 282,609 - - - - - 282,609
TFIE A X B b A5 3R 3,895 215 - - - - 4,110
BRI - - - - - 2,087 2,087
&it 439,781 10,914 3,451 116 1,440,001 131,036 2,025,299

(1) BFRTANFRSNRUFEEARE.
(2) RFRBUTFOEB AN RS ORTASETEBAREBGNM, WS,
(3) RIFRHMEMMERFBFEREADRA L. BEEHRES . FEEEHY. BLRITRAEY~RMNEETE.

(9) ERMEFREFHERIH
BB RLSNOE SR

PEARRT. CERIMBERMRT.

FEH

2020%12H31H
FRPRETHR
HRELRT
iR

i R
FNEE SR
RHMEBAT
iR R S

R EARA
RibSRA
ait
2019%12831H
R R TR
HRELRT
A

GEES IS
FNEESBAT
RSt SRR
iR
A7
et @B

&it

131,351 = = 131,351
= 341,853 = 341,853

= 106,536 = 106,536

15,774 18,136 3,827 37,737

= 586,273 2,039 588,312

199,313 263,847 451,333 914,493
1,175,433 636 96,931 1,273,000
127,302 386,651 146,153 660,106
1,937 2,007 6,156 10,100
1,651,110 1,705,939 706,439 4,063,488
189,234 - - 189,234
- 522,571 - 522,571

- 189,000 - 189,000

588 17,673 3,112 21,378

- 718,122 2,907 721,029
222,860 97,626 505,030 825,416
1,293,947 1,288 106,109 1,401,344
183,956 252,497 79,278 515,731
1,423 2,604 3,690 7,717
1,892,008 1,801,281 700,126 4,393,415
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17

2020412831H

TR R AR AT R

T R AL FR I

wHEES

TTESMEE

ENRESFE

XU ERAEF

AR E

HGRAIEHE

Hith & m R =

&it

20194128310

5 R RAR T ERIR

TR FRIT

FHEES

TTEERA

INBRESRIER

XS UERAT

EEe

H AR

Rt A

&it

3. AN
HIHRGSIERETHNE (FIR, CE. BREMRIESNE ) ORF
THTERITEAMEN R R EREORG. FERTEOFHR
BEBOERTKA S BKAOFE. CERK.
FERAFTHRREENEFL BRI ARNTHRREREER, %
SIRG. OEHIE. BEENAERSHZSNERS LSRN
Rk, BEHHERREHEAEDTESNEEN, TTURKAKE
AR
FERARRESSREFRER S BNORKRRAKEETHRR.
REEBTRANS EERATH AL, B EHSTLNHTEAR
B ISIR  BRRE AN K M08 A .
% B0 A S5R T A R4
FERAHEENFTHAREEEET X5 KD 5RTKAR.
XHHALIE NS BT R E R T EE T L E B
SHEMTEMBRLT. RAKSARIENEXSENMEE, &K
INFBERIAR SRR RAEHLEZTEL.
5 0 B AR AT IS B 73 KB Eh LB S ER B AL 5% % FR BR7E 4% 1 £
REEEZ ST REMYE. 2 RREBRBANEELTHH
Rk, FEAEERAETBZWSOTHNG  UEREBERTAS
AEEIRIRALIAO I, Heh AR A R R A R R
12, SRR EREALERRERRE.
TR E ARG RS
FHRGBLRAEE. FEES. B, BODH. SRS
R R AT E4
ZHMKA
WRBWA, AEARBHOBIES . LR, SRR
BT R SRR .

130,837 = = 130,837
= 364,480 = 364,480

= 106,536 = 106,536

15,774 17,854 3,827 37,455

= 581,625 = 581,625

14,516 258,327 631,622 899,465
1,175,433 616 92,634 1,268,683
120,123 385,194 134,033 639,350
1,937 1,275 1,611 4,823
1,458,620 1,710,907 863,727 4,033,254
188,783 - - 188,783

- 688,936 - 688,936

- 199,012 = 199,012

588 17,663 3,112 21,363

- 718,122 - 718,122
222,789 83,718 494,362 800,869
1,293,843 699 100,196 1,394,738
180,304 251,669 50,665 482,638
1,423 1,358 1,471 4,252
1,887,730 1,961,177 649,806 4,498,713

AEAZERTHREHETINEEF. UFEXRESERFRRERX
RE. NEEERATISKAEEXTZRARBOIRG . 8. &
EHRE.

RITIKA

MHRITKA, RTEEBIMCENGE . FERE OGRS, &
EEEDHRERR. H, REEEHEIHEEMR. KPLTE
AREREEETRKAASRENEITERER ; WS LRBERE
O, SURMEDNT. MO S 75 %3 R XU FC 2 XU 3476 A8 R
. it 2.

B X = XL R KBS BB M A ATIE R, ¥ L3(1)F F K K 3(2)
LXK (BIFRITWAFZ B o

(1) FERRE

RATWP R R RIEF EKF. BREMEZRREFTNENSH
RATIK A BAK S EF M EEZIRK R
FEAETERER ST S ENZIRNEFEEMARRT
EHBERNEW. PERARRITHARDTEERTMELTME, RF
ERNEBRBHLRENEETHBERRAEKF. —RHS, F—D
. EEBBRMEREFNNRARNFIZEEE.

RITKPFH XN EEETEZMNRBENEFNERDBERNF TR
UHEENEM, FEEMROST. KB F2F BB
EE, BUEHAERTAREMLRINTRSHE TERTRITKSF
RRLER. THWF ORI RKS T 2B &M F R GRS
#ro HmMERRHRO2 T BTHHRSTHITER.
EENEENEXNRLTE, FEAEHTENXEENHRO. XH
S, ITHERBF EER (ERER ) TR R SIS B EXSF
BB,
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EEMGRODHT
ZERAEXEETNEMIPAPREENE, FEASMERE~RERAGHNEREH A5 UIKEMEFIRWT

FEE

2020%12R31H

SR

P& R H AP RIRTHRIA 127,762 - - - - 3,592 131,354
TFHE AL FRIR 156,761 158,772 126 - - 26,194 341,853
FHAS 99,684 6,792 - - - 60 106,536
FTESBRRT - - - - - 37,737 37,737
INRESRAET 587,394 265 - - - 653 588,312
BB ERANEER 5,225,663 4,564,712 375,742 450,321 1,980,561 43,363 12,640,362
RH M LA 145,342 81,660 57,403 12,540 81 758,677 1,055,703
AR E 24,230 139,180 705,620 292,535 92,321 19,114 1,273,000
HABGEAUR R 279,971 157,869 141,264 73,511 2,462 5,029 660,106
Htpi s TERR = = - - - 4,810 4,810
Hith 1,069 33 - - - 8,998 10,100
ERAFE 6,647,876 5,109,283 1,280,155 828,907 2,075,425 908,227 16,849,873
SREME

[l B2 B Ath & R AR 75 BRI 715,714 2,142,346 100 - - 21,112 2,879,272
B BT E At & RS 3R 196,180 295,126 3,720 913 - 3,113 499,052
wARE 85,861 6,834 - - - 169 92,864
RHMERAGR - - - - - 2,051 2,051
TSR R - - - - - 26,843 26,843
REEMEERFE R 124,615 8 - - - 102 124,725
TR 1,063,736 80,886 12,850 1,169 5,793 3,104 1,167,538
ERTHRFBIES 1,009,402 1,219,377 4,137,682 3,510,988 633,675 210,968 10,722,092
Hith 177 67 77 21 - 22,398 22,740
SRARET 3,195,685 3,744,644 4,154,429 3,513,091 639,468 289,860 15,537,177
MEEHFENROEI 3,452,191 1,364,639 (2,874,274) (2,684,184) 1,435,957 618,367 1,312,696
AEH

2019%12831H

SRET

& R IF R R RIRITIRIR 185,309 - - - - 3,928 189,237
TFHUE AL TR 497,466 7,147 105 - - 17,853 522,571
FERS 187,731 1,146 - - - 123 189,000
ST SR - - - - - 21,373 21,373
ENBRE SR 718,799 1,037 - - - 1,193 721,029
R FRAETR 2,152,297 3,128,631 810,926 1,038,259 4,560,362 22,858 11,713,333
RHHEEREF 46,327 50,699 34,104 48,075 1,741 779,542 960,488
AR R 12,523 206,442 748,113 412,971 - 21,295 1,401,344
H A RAE 2 105,852 188,966 141,252 71,425 3,561 4,675 515,731
Htpism TERR - - - - - 5,115 5,115
Hth 1,294 - - - - 6,423 7,717
SRBEZET 3,907,598 3,584,068 1,734,500 1,570,730 4,565,664 884,378 16,246,938
SRGR :

&) b Rz H Ath < AL 77 AR IR 120,884 3,165 3,003,004 - - 16,164 3,143,217
16 U A EL fth & RAAAL 50 182,238 245,097 18,227 8,799 - 4,398 458,759
HFARS 44,276 27,363 - - - 447 72,086
RS H LR AR 28,350 6,522 - - - 316 35,188
HTESRA R - - - - - 27,593 27,593
FHHEIM SR BEFZHK 112,539 - - - - 69 112,608
% W 75 58 1,180,384 74,763 58,260 3,170 7,196 47,623 1,371,396
ERITRFIES 1,027,118 1,084,070 3,596,784 3,259,571 621,761 196,478 9,735,782
Hith 2,150 1,247 972 1,271 526 34,598 40,764
ERMAKET 2,697,939 1,392,227 6,677,247 3,272,811 629,483 327,686 14,997,393

FEREFENRAEIT 1,209,659 2,191,841 (4,942,747) (1,702,081) 3,936,181 556,692 1,249,545
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2020412H31H
EREEF

WM& R 17 MR RARITIRIN 127,248 - - - - 3,592 130,840
F I E L3RI 186,794 151,575 - - - 26,111 364,480
wEHES 99,684 6,792 - - - 60 106,536
TESRE - - - - - 37,455 37,455
EIANRESHE 581,460 - - - - 165 581,625
P9 e eilE 5,152,543 4,519,759 358,372 378,740 2,066,413 42,468 12,513,295
RS U LA 140,342 77,933 56,143 8,337 = 622,556 905,311
[ER €S 23,939 138,165 703,287 292,338 92,321 18,633 1,268,683
HAGRAUR R 279,627 156,075 129,145 68,348 1,704 4,451 639,350
Hithiz TRRE - - - - - 1,516 1,516
Hith - - - - - 4,823 4,823
SRHEF~E 6,591,637 5,050,299 1,246,947 742,763 2,160,438 761,830 16,553,914
SRALE :

8 b B HoAth & RN 77 R IR 715,714 2,143,346 100 - - 21,112 2,880,272
B AT AL EL b & BAAUAE 3R 113,523 176,988 718 - = 1,988 293,217
wATRS 83,865 6,834 - - - 163 90,862
HTESRA - - - - - 25,473 25,473
B el 107,100 - - - - 74 107,174
g 1,151,452 94,084 12,850 1,169 5,793 3,104 1,268,452
BRITHESIES 1,006,278 1,197,720 4,102,958 3,510,212 633,675 210,504 10,661,347
Hith - - - - - 3,343 3,343
EMAKET 3,177,932 3,618,972 4,116,626 3,511,381 639,468 265,761 15,330,140
MEREFENROEI 3,413,705 1,431,327 (2,869,679) (2,768,618) 1,520,970 496,069 1,223,774
&iT

2019%12831H
SREEF

WM& R A7 WP RARITERIN
TERE) AL FRIR

FHAEE

T SRE
INBRESRBE

R ANEIR
ZHUERMA
BAIRH

HAb AR R

HfhARa TRRH

Hith

ERE~ET

ERIGAER -

[ Ml B E Ath & R ATLAG 77 TR TR
6 B AT A0 EL b & RAANAD B 7R
FARE

R oM LA R
TSR AR

R M ERBE =K
TR
ERITHESIES

Hith

ERARET
MEEFENROGIT

184,858 - - - - 3,928 188,786
671,042 - - - - 17,894 688,936
187,731 11,146 - - - 135 199,012
- - - - - 21,363 21,363

717,857 N = = - 265 718,122
2,046,152 3,136,620 805,427 1,034,463 4,556,819 21,012 11,600,493
38,567 43,173 29,543 32,452 1,741 663,091 808,567
12,359 204,092 744,602 412,808 - 20,877 1,394,738
105,216 180,987 121,345 67,551 3,561 3,978 482,638

- - - - - 1,025 1,025

- - - - - 4,252 4,252
3,963,782 3,676,018 1,700,917 1,647,274 4,562,121 757,820 16,107,932
120,890 3,165 3,003,004 - - 16,164 3,143,223
122,594 167,899 - 767 - 3,207 284,467
44,276 27,363 - - - 447 72,086
28,340 6,522 - - - 294 35,156

- - - - - 26,826 26,826

103,330 - - - - 58 103,388
1,398,924 81,446 58,260 3,170 7,196 47,665 1,596,661
1,024,036 1,025,737 3,542,887 3,255,817 621,761 195,744 9,665,982
= 46 643 770 - 5,096 6,555
2,842,390 1,302,178 6,604,794 3,260,524 628,957 295,501 14,934,344
1,121,392 2,273,840 (4,908,877) (1,713,250) 3,933,164 462,319 1,173,688
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FRF WA R H 4R S W (BURE D4

TRIR T EAXRSERMARNFT LA TEICONMEQKBERT, EFREPRAEANERE=SNRARNENS, IRK12DARF L%
WARH LR S WS AT =4 B ERB . ZAMRRMEPRRAF XY LAARBEZS, RRMELFRLTmHEMA ZEFRENER.

AEH 20204 20194F
BEERATH | ERSEA  RbsakE ARSEA sk
EF100MNE R 35,324 (9,274) 18,804 (8,898)
TBE100NE A (35,324) 10,230 (18,804) 9,351
X5

W RE DTN

EFH100MN RS 35,237 (8,644) 18,339 (8,679)
TBE100NE A (35,237) 9,003 (18,339) 9,128

M EEFRANZIMREE —EN X BN PARBENIRR —FAR TN EREENNERE T~ REMARA=EOF BRI ZATRIR
PABANESRASRARNEMRIEAR, REFFTH. BEXRRESRITEENPRNERUEREN.
HEMGEWHENFZMZEETE—ENXLNNIPEREENEMERRRETEGE LR RNMEZDIZ.

FERNAZBREARERAEANESEARA XN ERENER, F EAZMITESKRERFEER. B, LRMRBHEMATNENE
AENE, ERESMUTRSEBERERAEARNAERERRT, FRFRAFMEMSESKENGEITE. BZZNHRERERRDBENEXE
e BER AN XU B IREFN

(2) CERE
RERFIBITICEBF A RCERE, ZRREEMEMSKRNASRE.

FEAPKBAUSZSRARTLS, HINVEET. BT, BOMEMNGFIINHLSES, AEANCENREIEEREET. AEACHBLETETIAR
AR ETTHM A ITI . 2020FE, ARPMETCEFHEART0.45137t/13E5T ( 2019FERBEARTO.1135T/157T )o
FERAFEBIINCHO . CREEED TR WS EaRZSH R RV UNRTEETNRM, FRUEBL ENFER R AGRD LR
ZHETARTILENKRER.

FEAZTMCEREHONH, UERDHEFHNARFEARTKENMEZIRAT ¢

3N

2020412831H

ERE :

MR FFH P RBITHIN 127,728 3,626 - 131,354
FE LRI 237,505 79,859 24,489 341,853
HHRE 62,087 36,262 8,187 106,536
TTEERE 31,570 3,827 2,340 37,737
ENRESRE 588,312 - = 588,312
RGN ERR 11,350,895 1,104,430 185,037 12,640,362
RS MEERA 1,040,834 13,852 1,017 1,055,703
BRIR R 1,179,534 93,466 = 1,273,000
E b HEAUR % 556,607 90,620 12,879 660,106
HipAzm T RS 1,516 - 3,294 4,810
Hith 7,618 2,214 268 10,100
SRETET 15,184,206 1,428,156 237,511 16,849,873
SRAME

Bk R E fth & RN 75 TR IR 2,666,954 196,208 16,110 2,879,272
B BTN At & R 15 3R 185,773 304,794 8,485 499,052
WARE 64,889 13,973 14,002 92,864
R oML ALK 2,050 1 - 2,051
PSR 21,598 4,926 319 26,843
REEM SRR 124,725 - - 124,725
R TFER 957,551 145,061 64,926 1,167,538
ERITHEFILES 10,502,630 132,048 87,414 10,722,092
Hith 22,210 169 361 22,740
SMARE 14,548,380 797,180 191,617 15,537,177
RN E KR 635,826 630,976 45,894 1,312,696
CRFETE(SRIAXEH) 162,399 (79,380) (32,862) 50,157

EHRE 3,231,391 222,557 34,810 3,488,758
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3Nl

2019%12H31H

EREEFE

ME R A7 IR RIRAT IR
FRE LRI

HHES

T ER A
INBESRE
RIMERAEER
RH M LA

BAIRH

b HAURHE
HEfbARE T AR

Eith

EREFEIT

ERIGAER -

&) b R ELAth S BAAAD TF LRI
6 B Y A0 EL fh SRR fE X
FARE

e Jideatiftiy
TSRS

SR Bl M ERB =

TR 7R

ERTHESIES

HAth

EERGEHEET

RN E KR
CERTETA(BRIBXERM)
BRI

ART EnifART  Rttf#MiFARS Ait
185,257 3,979 1 189,237
405,677 97,661 19,283 522,571

50,411 128,286 10,303 189,000

16,790 2,908 1,675 21,373
721,029 - - 721,029

10,289,425 1,247,685 176,223 11,713,333
930,564 28,771 1,153 960,488
1,299,117 101,311 916 1,401,344
391,439 104,295 19,997 515,731
1,025 - 4,000 5,115
6,807 539 371 7,717
14,297,541 1,715,435 233,962 16,246,938
2,918,059 206,014 19,144 3,143,217
120,244 322,759 15,756 458,759

- 41,702 30,384 72,086

35,188 - - 35,188

283,609 3,692 292 27,593
112,608 - - 112,608

1,140,367 169,428 61,601 1,371,396
9,527,039 138,657 70,086 9,735,782
36,217 4,029 518 40,764
13,918,331 886,281 197,781 14,997,393
384,210 829,154 36,181 1,249,645
98,341 (50,873) (22,952) 24,516
3,219,741 240,811 38,084 3,498,636
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2020512H31H

EREEF
MERIFMPRBITHRIA
ERE) AL FRIR

HHHEE

TS RREE
FINRESRE

P8 e CIIE TN

XM ERAE>

AR

E AR HE

HfpANas TRRE

HAth

EEREFEIT

EREGH

&) b R EAth £ BAAAD 7RI
6 AT AL EL b SRR fE X
HARE

R 5 SRR

frEER AR

SR B M SR B
UL

ERITRSIES

Hith

ERBAHEEST

FATE KT FE
CRTETA(ARIBXEM)
B

127,248 3,692 = 130,840
294,785 45,781 23,914 364,480
62,087 36,262 8,187 106,536
31,570 3,645 2,340 37,455
581,625 = = 581,625
11,228,429 1,100,036 184,830 12,513,295
905,311 = = 905,311
1,176,176 92,507 = 1,268,683
535,851 90,620 12,879 639,350
1,516 = = 1,516
4,258 302 263 4,823
14,948,856 1,372,645 232,413 16,553,914
2,667,954 196,208 16,110 2,880,272
41,022 245,518 6,677 293,217
63,083 18,777 14,002 90,862
21,598 3,556 319 25,473
107,174 = = 107,174
1,040,760 161,252 66,440 1,268,452
10,490,764 89,230 81,353 10,661,347
2,870 163 310 3,343
14,435,225 709,704 185,211 15,330,140
513,631 662,941 47,202 1,223,774
162,399 (120,256) (32,862) 9,281
3,248,147 229,081 34,810 3,512,038
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1T
AR EniFART  Hftth#irARD &it
20194128310
SRET
M R 75 W R RIRIT IR 184,858 3,927 1 188,786
FHE L3RR 595,261 77,315 16,360 688,936
FEES 60,423 128,286 10,303 199,012
FTESRE 16,790 2,898 1,675 21,363
EINRES B 718,122 - - 718,122
BRI 10,182,667 1,241,685 176,141 11,600,493
RSB 808,567 - - 808,567
AR R 1,294,895 99,843 - 1,394,738
E AR 358,346 104,295 19,997 482,638
HipAlzs TEEH 1,025 - - 1,025
Hith 3,572 380 300 4,252
SRMBEFEIT 14,224,526 1,658,629 224,777 16,107,932
SRGLE :
8k B HoAth & RRANLAG 77 BRI 2,918,064 206,015 19,144 3,143,223
B B AT AL ELAth £ BAAARE 38 - 270,031 14,436 284,467
KARSE - 41,702 30,384 72,086
RHMERAR 35,156 - - 35,156
FTESRAR 23,609 2,925 292 26,826
SRHEMB SR BEZR 103,388 - - 103,388
TR 75 5% 1,350,893 183,080 62,688 1,596,661
ERTRFIES 9,499,637 99,979 66,366 9,665,982
Hit 6,130 167 258 6,555
SRAGRET 13,936,877 803,899 193,568 14,934,344
FRNIE LT 287,649 854,730 31,209 1,173,588
CREETIR(BRIEXESH ) 98,341 (83,142) (22,952) (7,753)
EHHRE 3,238,741 247,614 38,084 3,524,439
MBARDNEMIDAGCEEZN1 %, SAEAEMGEREEIMAEX, IRAFENEZNZIROT
FEH X5
. eE o | 20208 20108
ETRMARTLCRE)
1% 6,310 8,292 6,629 8,547
TEE1% (6,310) (8,292) (6,629) (8,547)
SICCRTD R A ENEmE, XERizARACHNRENESR, WELZRHBMESB2RNMENCHEEERIR]. NELARRNME
HARERUTEX : BIEREEHE
- RERRERABEAEBASETATHOMNEW ; - NEZEHHRESR, FERERRNDEFHKE;
- CERESNNEFITANENN ; - BBRBEFARAMMERO;
- BEBEMEXSINAEFRASZTLTHOHRTHEFTES - BEGSINHANEREMRL
- CEESNHHNENEI. - ERHRSRETR.
4. EIERE AERREEBEELETH LLITHHENAXEITERE UM TR

I, ERBERRAECRERORDI. o, REFLER, 18
H—WAWOALE, MEMER, FFLENWERE, TRAR
AEE. EARRUNTTRANASRK, KEARSTEEMR
BB R A

EHERT, AEEFRNNES A 2 HIERAT ROEPIEF R
pERLMEDAL, BERGERNARERINENAL B

FHURGEIEAERREBEEN, BEERNUSERFRSE
LU AF KR A B BESORR. AR TR
FEBATEEEMA. BRAMNE IR T A RBRERERRAS
HER.
FEARY - BEADEEERFENER ENARSHRINE
FEEBTNGS . EANRAURN 214%, BRI RED : A : -
RIS, MRS AR BRI EFFABOEH. BH, BAHEBFBTEEIN, FERARE)
e HENRAEHTERXLGES, BREARENEFEAERLA
20205, ATHSEBETLITERBEEHEMBE K. RERRESH REXARFEWLSILELEK,
WESH, BERGOREKBAIRELSRENES. REEERE .
' ' B8 T B
BHHE, BATEBETETS LUERERRTHENTRES LA ﬂ&ﬁﬁ N
oy FEATHFARDEIR, WREADEIEHRST. R, BER. 5
1A 55 B o
R R A 22:;2132 NEBETRBESEEATIHNEERTESE
EFNBARER N BB RIS ES R 0% 5 BXHES S
FEAEKRSXAENSERNER, EHaHEBER. BT . = o AR

QEHIER, LUASIRABRAAAE B EOKBREES,
BEH. EERS. KRR BIERREGNSAHNTLLR s S

LROFTER. BREAELEFHHRASHREEERARR. HLES TR
BRFAGRIPHERAINSRABEEHEAETEZHNRRERR IR, IEAERASEEESEEACELIBE D, BL, &
HMENGERNEE B, BT USABRHTHOHRNAE S NEEA B ES N G A EF LT HEETHORDES. F2020E12831
3, REARBFEFMNAGIBENTERER2AULH. RELENL H, AERAKPR(MPEE—FE8—F L ) CETERIISSHE
JUREsREWE, ERNhEFEFEREONL. REABNER HAARBS78H 12T, EMKHBRES (AERLREMERILY
A Z = AR RHESEEEZN. BERETR. BEFNREMCSRIMNEZR. SEEMNS R RMEK

B ) EMEUTAARD,284127T,
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FERAFTESRTAEMNFTN 2 ALENTESRTIERMASEASRSHIIRUT. AEANXLSHT AR

T,
HHUNEREE TRPHAINITEBEEENER.
AEH] 20204£12H31H
o R mme e mew me e e e

EFTESRER
M K75 B RIRITFRIA - 131,280 74 - - - = = 131,354
[ ENE s 19,531 112,324 4,700 46,095 162,616 107 = = 345,373
wHAS - - 88,849 10,927 6,817 = = = 106,593
ENBRE SR - 28 587,095 - 1,357 - - - 588,480
b3 G 108,577 - 48,622 241,040 1,937,245 5,223,086 4,355,824 6,339,519 18,253,913
R HMEEREF 119,655 1,729 22,765 124,329 89,089 98,282 140,257 465,253 1,061,359
AR R 513 - - 30,722 177,634 821,837 321,563 101,849 1,454,118
HAb AU R - - 210,317 56,655 167,260 186,799 86,006 2,560 709,597
Hithilzs TERHE 4,810 - - - - - - = 4,810
Hith 1,469 4,172 21 514 324 3,561 = 39 10,100
EFTESRBTRT 254,555 249,533 962,443 510,282 2,542,342 6,333,672 4,903,650 6,909,220 22,665,697
EFTESRAR
&) b B HoAth & REAAG 77 R IR - 64,174 119,813 553,160 2,171,115 103 - - 2,908,365
16 BURF A EL th € BAANAG 3R - - 28,571 133,341 263,294 70,935 12,130 13,361 521,632
FARSE - - 5,440 80,015 4172 124 3,487 762 94,000
R HH LR AR 2,051 - - - - - - = 2,051
FHEE SRR - - 119,765 5,027 8 - = = 124,800
R 7758 - 975,631 25,084 56,560 106,430 22,311 2,709 6,880 1,195,605
ERTREBIES - - 227,486 505,963 1,382,932 5,503,307 4,202,351 1,074,640 12,896,679
HAth 2 20,806 167 243 1,086 1,309 740 10 24,363
EFTESRMARER 2,053 1,060,611 526,326 1,334,309 3,929,037 5,598,089 4,221,417 1,095,653 17,767,495
Sk~ 252,502 (811,078) 436,117 (824,027)  (1,386,695) 735,583 682,233 5,813,567 4,898,202
FESRTAENER
BARAHNITESRTA - - 219 111 (276) 320 596 468 1,438
REMAENTESRNTIA

MERAN - - 193,503 326,440 625,961 19,079 88 - 1,165,071

MERH - - (194,106) (329,500) (609,906) (17,060) (85) - (1,150,657)
FTEESRTANERET - - (384) (2,949) 15,779 2,339 599 468 15,852
AEH 2019412H31H

T i RS 1MAW  1E3MA  oE1AA 1Z6E  SE0E  10EMLE ait

EFTESRER
M K75 B RIRITFRIA - 189,194 43 - - - - - 189,237
[ N Ees] 17,894 501,985 989 93 1,514 109 - - 502,584
wEHES - - 169,568 18,433 1,157 - - - 189,158
ENBRE SR B 926 - 718,804 397 1,056 - - - 721,183
-3 G 123,403 - 102,781 133,653 1,328,622 3,947,210 4,008,531 6,620,790 16,259,990
RHMEEREF 127,059 3,564 6,132 26,385 59,324 46,038 56,358 658,076 982,936
AR R 1,500 - 445 19,629 150,321 912,960 638,369 106,887 1,830,111
HAh AR R 150 - 39,347 44,626 207,685 188,649 110,053 3,870 594,380
Hithalzs TERH 5115 - - - - - - - 5,115
Hith 4,049 1,740 - 574 2,204 380 14 20 8,981
EFTESRBTRT 280,096 696,483 1,038,109 243,790 1,746,883 5,095,346 4,813,325 7,389,643 21,303,675
EFTESRAER
&) b B HoAth & REANAG 77 R IR 5,365 44,018 24,154 53,350 4,595 3,011,735 - - 3,143,217
16 U A EL At € BAANAG 5 3R - 489 22,695 144,364 123,760 162,152 17,160 - 470,620
FARE - - 24,001 20,220 24,319 774 3,612 806 78,732
RS ER AR 32 - 15,667 13,009 6,655 - - - 35,363
SHEME SRR - - 74,152 38,596 - - - - 112,748
% I 77 3% - 1,116,174 53,867 32,072 101,679 59,613 3,258 7,573 1,374,236
ERTREBIES - - 218,849 272,435 1,291,988 5,456,634 3,864,780 1,165,766 12,270,452
Hith 3,224 21,352 145 797 10,679 7,379 4,299 105 47,980
EFTESR A REHR 8,621 1,182,033 433,530 574,843 1,568,675 8,698,287 3,893,109 1,174,250 17,528,348
Sk 271,475 (485,550) 604,579 (331,053) 183,208  (3,602,941) 920,216 6,215,393 3,775,327
FTESRTAENER
REMAHNTESRNIA - - 29 33 (47) 390 461 491 1,357
BREMAENTESRNIA

MWERN - - 260,986 452,846 552,483 97,222 791 1 1,364,329

MEREH - - (260,919) (456,122) (555,321) (99,157) (821) (1) (1,872,341)
FTESMTANESRET - - 96 (3,243) (2,885) (1,545) 431 491 (6,655)
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*iF 2020%128318
T Y

EFTESRART
& R 77 B RARITFRIA - 130,840 - - - - - - 130,840
(2GR E s 10,273 156,208 = 45,657 155,623 = = = 367,761
wFHRE - - 88,849 10,927 6,817 - - - 106,593
EIANRESHBEF - - 581,774 - - - - - 581,774
P9 e iIE 106,377 - 46,205 225,655 1,907,584 5,125,716 4,354,543 6,335,747 18,101,827
RS HERAR 5,277 = 22,565 124,224 86,401 94,606 126,380 465,152 924,605
[ER €S 127 - - 30,495 177,041 819,060 321,094 101,849 1,449,666
E A AR BY - - 210,317 55,548 166,597 164,155 72,567 2,031 671,215
Hitiz TRERE 1,516 - - - - - - - 1,516
Hith = 1,970 21 514 278 2,001 = 39 4,823
ETESRAT B 123,570 289,018 949,731 493,020 2,500,341 6,205,538 4,874,584 6,904,818 22,340,620
EFTE SRR R
&) b B HoAth & REANAG 77 BUER IR - 65,174 119,813 553,160 2,171,115 103 - - 2,909,365
6 B AT AL ELAth £ BAAARE 38 - - 12 87,309 159,087 40,207 10,600 = 297,215
FAEE = = 5,136 78,314 4,172 124 3,487 762 91,995
SHEME AR - - 102,192 5,027 - - - - 107,219
TR 75 5% - 1,059,268 25,345 60,377 119,628 22,311 2,709 6,881 1,296,519
ERITREIES - - 225,835 503,274 1,361,211 5,465,722 4,201,603 1,074,640 12,832,285
Hit - 67 167 144 1,016 1,223 719 6 3,342
ETESRARENE - 1,124,509 478,500 1,287,605 3,816,229 5,529,690 4,219,118 1,082,289 17,537,940
3kt 123,570 (835,491) 471,231 (794,585)  (1,315,888) 675,848 655,466 5,822,529 4,802,680
FTEESRMTANSR
BANAHNTESRMTIAR - - 21 133 139 1,138 611 469 2,511
REMSAHNTESRIA

WEARN - - 191,819 325,490 622,547 18,145 88 - 1,158,089

MER - - (192,433) (328,562) (606,506) (16,135) (85) - (1,143,721)
FTESRTAMSRET - - (593) (2,939) 16,180 3,148 614 469 16,879
1T 2019412831H

% S WEEE  MBR 1E30A GE14A 1Z5®  5E10& 10EBLE ai

EFTESRET
MR 77 W AR RIRIT IR - 188,786 - - - - - - 188,786
FRE IR 17,894 671,042 - - - - - - 688,936
wEHE - - 169,568 18,433 11,498 - - - 199,499
EIANRESHA - - 718,250 - - - - - 718,250
P35 Gl 118,610 - 96,671 122,720 1,297,622 3,860,989 4,023,895 6,615,745 16,136,252
B ERE~ 5,256 3,249 7,254 23,893 51,385 40,759 40,793 658,074 830,663
AR A - - 466 19,448 148,014 908,896 637,962 106,887 1,821,673
H AR B - - 39,275 43,968 199,012 165,083 105,776 3,743 556,857
Hitpiz TERH 1,025 - - - - - - - 1,025
Hith - 1,844 - 574 1,612 188 14 20 4,252
TESHETLST 142,785 864,921 1,031,484 229,036 1,709,143 4,975,915 4,808,440 7,384,469 21,146,193
EFTE SRR
[5) b R ELAth € BE A T AR IR 5,365 44,024 24,154 53,350 4,595 3,011,735 - - 3,143,223
6 AT AL ELAth & BRI E 38 - - 6,034 91,275 43,372 141,349 11,652 - 293,682
wATRE - - 24,001 20,220 24,319 774 3,612 806 78,732
RHMHEmMAR - - 15,667 13,009 6,655 - - - 35,331
SHEME &R K - - 65,186 38,333 - - - - 103,519
T - 1,328,968 55,405 36,460 108,453 59,613 3,258 7,573 1,599,730
BRITHESIES - - 218,316 269,601 1,280,582 5,402,063 3,860,819 1,165,766 12,197,147
Hitt - 138 76 49 4,246 1,281 768 5 6,555
EFTESRMAREHR 5,365 1,373,130 408,839 522,289 1,472,222 8,616,815 3,880,109 1,174,150 17,452,919
Sk~ 137,420 (508,209) 622,645 (293,253) 236,921 (3,640,900) 928,331 6,210,319 3,693,274
FTESRTANER
REMAENTESRNIA - - 40 58 75 888 508 491 2,060
RERAENTESRNIA

MERN - - 260,958 452,817 551,953 92,423 791 1 1,358,943

NEHH - - (260,886) (456,091) (554,771) (94,324) (821) (1) (1,366,894)

TESRTANERET - - 112 (3,216) (2,743) (1,013) 478 491 (5,891)
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FEE

2020%12A31H

R 8,612 35,461 186,918 223,425 212,993 2,787,475 3,454,884
FFHRRERZIBR 232 398 2,275 14,621 = = 17,526
RITRFCE 2,125 1,194 6,287 - - - 9,606
FFRERIE 467 2,317 3,892 66 - - 6,742
&it 11,436 39,370 199,372 238,112 212,993 2,787,475 3,488,758
20194128318

B 5,720 4,882 146,992 225,119 217,651 2,843,664 3,444,028
FFERE R BR 1,215 4,463 7,597 22,359 - - 35,634
RITEFLCE 2,596 1,540 7,557 - - - 11,693
FHERIE 1,240 2,778 2,813 450 - - 7,281
&it 10,771 13,663 164,959 247,928 217,651 2,843,664 3,498,636
X5

2020%12A31H

R 8,611 35,461 186,918 223,425 212,993 2,804,475 3,471,883
FFHRE K IBIR 232 398 2,275 20,902 = = 23,807
RITAGLCE 2,125 1,194 6,287 - - - 9,606
FFHEBIE 467 2,317 3,802 66 - - 6,742
Ait 11,435 39,370 199,372 244,393 212,993 2,804,475 3,512,038
2019%12831H

BRI 5,720 4,882 147,063 225,119 217,651 2,862,664 3,463,099
FFERE R IBR 1,215 4,463 7,597 29,091 - - 42,366
RITEFLCE 2,596 1,540 7,557 - - - 11,693
FFHERIE 1,240 2,778 2,813 450 - - 7,281
&it 10,771 13,663 165,030 254,660 217,651 2,862,664 3,524,439

5. SMAFMEMAROAAMNE
SMIAARNMENBETERBRATARAFEERTE LASHEORN. YT ANERTE LRRRNET, FERBHERARBESHT

BNRARMNE. RERRKEEAREMZEETAVNINTZEE, BEHRT

2 5EFEENIRFES

ok
CI

AEAYMDAE-BANERIETIZQFEISMRSNIESRES, XPEREFEERDHHPHRNMTE (REFE ).

WIRMAER BERE, BAKAMRBUOGERREZEEERTH
ENMERR, F5AMANSRIAENEFELRE -,

FEAMAAF_EANERTETIEGRFIESFRKRE. TE£8YD. BHEAUARNETEAEZHNITALSBRENRREAEY = RERNFER™
Fo ARTRENAANERRDIRAEGEILETERFTELATNMELERHE, IDESFNARNERRZBBENGELERBE. TEELUIXA
FMAERENDRR - GIRRER LT AT HETHE. MEEXGESEYATIZTNE.
FEAMAPNEZERNERTIEIENAEAFENRLER ETRMNERATESRTIENKN, ERRERBERRBELLNE. BRHMHE
ERATEQENSRFTINE. FHE THRATE. ERRARNENTERBTHHEFEEARMPATNESY, RESBIEAEIHY
FHERRE. MARFHRARA. KEERE RHEHFTN. BEXR. DHTEATEEE.
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(1) B2smfETENESHIA
FEAUARNETENERTAR=RRIIRWT :
3Nl

2020%12R31H

ERBEE
ST SRR
CRHTETR - 27,053 - 27,053
FMEFETR - 10,684 - 10,684
V-3 i - - 42,964 42,964
SRR
ARG ENFENEREFREMUARNMETEEEETHITA
LR N SRR
"% 173 71,903 4,389 76,465
[ENIZE) 50 206,096 = 206,146
BREREESRE 2,834 234 10,738 13,806
AT RITHIERM = & 50 1,614 7,407 9,071
MET R 8 7,011 739,790 746,809
ARG - 420 - 420
BEUAASRMET B EETHIT AL PREN SRR
=% - 2,361 - 2,361
B EEITR - 625 - 625
HAHAUR R
"% 11,152 288,388 436 299,976
ENZE- - 359,115 - 359,115
ARG - - 1,015 1,015
Hitzm TERE 3,294 - 1,516 4,810
Ait 17,561 975,504 808,255 1,801,320
SRR
RHMEEmAR (38) (2,013) - (2,051)
- (16,924) = (16,924)
MERHTETR - (9,919) - (9,919)
Ait (38) (28,856) - (28,894)
AEH
E—BR $IBER $B=BR &ait
20194128318
SRE
FTHE SRR
CRFTETR - 11,028 - 11,028
MERHTETR - 10,345 - 10,345
BRI - - 38,291 38,291
SRR
AXZENHFENEHEZREMUA RNMETEBETHITA
LRGBS RE
B% 282 68,763 3,159 72,204
[ENIZEE) - 47,556 - 47,556
ERESRT 3,061 245 7,854 11,160
11T L TR &R 26 804 10,567 11,397
METH 2,642 3,943 770,273 776,858
R EEITR - 688 - 688
EEUAASRNMET 2 EETNITALSPRBEN SRR
% - 29,731 - 29,731
[ENIZEE) - 4,685 - 4,685
FRE W K & b 15 3R - 4,118 - 4,118
A GBI - 2,091 - 2,091
HAHAUR R
% 7,602 275,918 - 283,520
ENZE- - 230,329 - 230,329
ARG - - 1,882 1,882
Hitzm TRERE 4,090 - 1,025 5115
At 17,703 690,244 833,051 1,540,998
SRS R
RHMERA G - (35,188) - (35,188)
FTELRAR
CRHTETR - (17,938) - (17,938)
MERHTETR - (9,655) - (9,655)

ait - (62,781) - (62,781)
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20205128318

ERMET
TTE SRR
CETETR - 26,725 - 26,725
MERHTETR - 10,730 - 10,730
B ET R HER - - 42,964 42,964
SRR
AXZENBFEENEHETREMUARNMETEBETHITA
LR B NS RA =
"% - 68,020 2,998 71,018
ENZE- - 206,096 - 206,096
WA - 7,011 618,240 625,251
BEUARNMETBEETMIT AL PRENOSRBE-
"% - 2,321 - 2,321
BRIz} - - - -
R E b K &) b A 3R - - - -
A EEITR - 625 - 625
HARRAURE
"% - 279,317 - 279,317
BRIz} - 359,018 - 359,018
B EEITR - - 1,015 1,015
HipAz TEE - - 1,516 1,516
&it - 959,863 666,733 1,626,596
ERA%K
RHHEERMAR - - - -
TTHESRAR
CRHTETR - (16,888) - (16,888)
MEHFETR = (8,585) - (8,585)
Ait - (25,473) - (25,473)
X5
HE—BR BIER $H=ZBR &ait
2019412831H
SRBET
TTHE SR
CRHTETR - 11,028 - 11,028
MEHFTETR - 10,335 - 10,335
P2 Gl - - 38,291 38,291
S
AEZENHFENSREZREMUA RNMETHEBETETA
LR BN SRR
"% - 55,341 4,473 59,814
BNz - 47,556 - 47,556
NI ITH - 3,943 656,700 660,643
EEMUARMET 2B EETHNIT AL PRENSRE
"% - 29,681 - 29,681
BNz - 4,676 - 4,676
R E L K @ A 3R - 4,110 - 4,110
R EERIR - 2,087 - 2,087
E AR
5% - 252,309 - 252,309
BNz - 230,329 - 230,329
HipAzs TEEH - - 1,025 1,025
At - 651,395 700,489 1,351,884
SRR
ZHHERAR - (35,156) - (35,156)
FTESRAR
CRTETR - (17,872) - (17,872)
MEHFTETR - (8,954) - (8,954)
&it - (61,982) - (61,982

2020 EM20190FE, AEAE—BRANE_BRRAERMIBEZEALERER.
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AEALRE=ZEREMITEZHNNT :

FEH SRET
o sHREBR RSHSMAT O AMEREE  RERETARE  SMAFE
202018 1H 38,291 791,853 1,882 1,025 833,051
B - (22,111) - = (22,111)
0 3,988 25,228 - 500 29,716
%8 - (49,741) (879) - (50,620)
MNEZREREE - (1,224) 1,145 - (79)
AT
28 685 19,059 ) ©) 19,731
Hitvm & 28 - (740) (693) = (1,433)
2020128318 42,964 762,324 1,451 1,516 808,255
FREOEF/GEHEP :
TEAB IR PR (%K) 685 17,679 (4) (©) 18,351
ARG E K - (740) (693) - (1,433)
FEH SREF
o seemEBR XBESREF  RGGRER  RGAEIRER  SEARAR
20191810 30,392 820,772 - 533 851,697
] - (14,127) - - (14,127)
#0 7,083 45,456 1,985 502 55,026
f=1c - (36,293) - - (36,293)
NE=ZRREE - (1,502) - - (1,502)
BERET
e zs 816 (22,204) (103) - (21,491)
Hipra e - (249) - (10) (259)
2019128318 38,291 791,853 1,882 1,025 833,051
FHAENEE/REHES :
TTARBRPHUEE (RK) 816 (18,797) (103) - (13,084)
AR RS W - (249) - (10) (259)
KT ERE=RBRXERIAZHNT :
&4 SMAT
o sHeREBR O RBESREF  KGGRER  RGAEIRER  SEARAR
2020 1B 1H 38,291 661,173 = 1,025 700,489
0 3,988 3,919 1,000 500 9,407
&8 - (44,663) - - (44,663)
MEHIT
e zs 685 809 ©) ©) 1,476
Hi 4z & iz - - 24 - 24
20204128318 42,964 621,238 1,015 1,516 666,733
FRENES=/RED :
AR SR FHOWER (HRK) 685 (745) 9 ) (78)
WWARMGRE WS - - 24 - 24
P SRE~
o sEeBRER XSEERAS  RRREIRRR  eREFA
20191818 30,392 706,485 533 737,410
Ed] - (138) - (138)
0 7,083 786 502 8,371
EC - (35,032) - (35,032)
MNEZBEREEH - - - -
WEEI
P 816 (10,928) - (10,112)
Hitg & ez - - (10) (10)
2019 12H31H 38,291 661,173 1,025 700,489
FHAEOET/REP :
TR R P AR (HRK) 816 (1,627) - (811)
AR MR E KR - - (10) (10)
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(2 EUAARMETENEHTR

FEAFURAARNMETBHNEREFMNARK, RARNEGITET FHITTHRTENRE ARNERREZUSAEZER.

() DMEREMPRBITRM. FRELKTM, FHAES. IAREESRES. BUEBERHRT. FREHER. FARE. RLHEBSRE
SR B A0 HAth 6345 R — R B 3B A9 At Ry WA R A SR

HFULeREFReMARNEBEABIE—FURN, BSUTHHNERLSEREN, HKENERLERARNE.

(i) BRAURHE

EHFHIESRBERRARNEUTRENTZRNAEM. WTFELTHIEFRE, WERFNERZEFRARKKENSRETIZELOUESFRE A

MBI ERARE -

(i) RAMEIRFNEK

AT FSAERAOAXIERBEFEAARRTEENXFEHBIARMAE, HKANEREARNENSEERIN. BEFRERHARMELL

MEREMIVERE, MIMEKLEBSZEHROF RYPBRITIMBIIMIT T X

(v) BEMEERER. BLHFRRER

BEMEEAER. BLFANERORAANEURSREWMIVEARE, WINELER 5125 RS EHAR R EPRIE AT =

EROEW) P ARUA RMETTERESRE SN AGROKENEZERE R RNE.

v) BRGTHRSIES

BHENARNEUTZHRNANEMASELUSHTANDTZROFE. FTLEREHZRNDEUSRIETZROOES, HARNEUSZ

535 ORI R A PR TL AT A SERR I 38 < 0 B O I &R B MG TVER E

TRIVRT ERTRBSIESOIKE MEURBR A RNE :

AEEH 2020£12831H 2019%12831RH

. mEmm oanE sEew s
ERITHRBILES 10,722,092 10,854,183 9,735,782 9,928,156
AT
ERTHREBIES 10,661,347 10,791,934 9,665,982 9,863,809

6. REXER
RERAFTRAABENNEAAR I BT REEPN N MEEN 2, HANFER :
- HREAEHAZLEMREHRITHEENMEENRAEX ;
- RIIAERABEELECRNUEEBEENREERERDR
- REEENEAEMUZFIELRE.
FERAEREETEERZASMNBRIES], URBRRESHBENE, INEREANRERINLERZANERBER. AMTESERRRES LR
FIERMNERER. F2020F128310, AEARARTANART17,192.79127T, —RERLZFRNART14,129.52127T, O—REKRBDEF A
RM14,118.38127T, BAZRREEN12.08%, —RARAFEERN.E9%, BHO—REATREBERNI88%. AITHRALZHANARTI6,840.96127T, #%
OD—BEABFN—REALDFNART13,873.06127T, BAREEN11.83%, RO~ REAREEN—RERATZERHNI.72%.

+=. EFRRRABSEM

FEARATEEERF AGERBEER.

+0. MERRZHE

RITHRTREHAMFZIRET 202156 F23HEL R ITEB S,
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES

i

Board of Supervisors

£

Board of Directors

ERIER

Audit Department

BREEE

Senior Management

\ \ \ \ \
/, = R o)
VLYNES BURMRZE e
re . Ml H =\ =21
(RENAE) (REE(E) K2R A 55 S/ SRR
. N ) A Business Development -
Executive Office Policy Research Department Planning Department Department Rural Vitalization Department
(CPC Committee Office) (CPC Committee Publicity Department)
/ / / /
S P =n ey 17— 1T — T =
IR B ALRER Ec1o_;‘1—oirr|;c A;tliEity Ec?n—oirrlic_ActiEity Ecl)jr\—#—ic_AcEtliEity
Credit Review Department Inclusive Finance Department Department | Department I Department I
S S S S v,
\ \ \ \ \
NP HRIRED REMMTIEASNANAZE k3= M s
(BEARH) (ERRHRRNAE) ey %’?C’f;ﬁ 52 % opee:
Human Resources Department Office of the Steering Group for CPC Department of Party, Trade Union and Youth CDB Headauarters General Office
(CPC Committee Organisation Department) Disciplinary Inspection (CPC Ethics Office) Aftars (CPC Committee United Front Department) ol
> / J J J
FESRFE Epreris= A &
Housing Program Finance CDB Global Finance
S ‘ /
\ \ \ \
NG = — 2 A ] = = = — =
JRp— U B RS A EERAE—H EERAE
T ey s — International Fi L\D rment International Loan International Business International Business
9 P (r\]nteer?r?altiog:al g:gceemtﬁ;aorfrf]isg) Management Department Department | Department Il
y, 2 J J J J
\ \ \ \ \
b=t Xy REDT AL T LIFa 5T AREDT
Beijing Branch Tianjin Branch Hebei Branch Shanxi Branch Inner Mongolia Branch
S S S S
\ \ \ \ \
M AT AL T TRAT BT BEST
Suzhou Branch Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
/ / / / /
\ \ \ \ \
AT I HRA1T AN AT BT BEST
Hu’nan Branch Guangdong Branch Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch
/ / /
\ \ \ \
BT BB TENMT AR 1T
Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch Tibet Branch
/ / /
\ \ \ \ \
FHINT FFE R SEHTRME R BARKNAREL PAIANETAEERAL
H Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
long Kong Branch . : . ol . 4
in Cairo ) in Moscow ) in Rio de Janeiro ) in Caracas
s f— = a = =T =]
FEIERAE EFSHERSILNT EFISRHERAT BEREMEERHERAT

Group Subsidiaries

CDB Capital Co., Ltd.

CDB Securities Co., Ltd.

CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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AESHMERS

KR SEHERE
Committee on Related-Party
Transaction Control

L RAKBEEERS

HITERS NEEEZERS
Audit Committee Risk Management Committee

Committee on Human Resources

Committee on Strategic Development
and Remuneration

and Investment Management

BEECHAE

Board of Directors Office

Min5REH EEEHER =& BEE XU B TR EL
Market Development & Equity Legal and Compliance Finance & Accounting Treasury & Financial Risk Management
Investment Department Department Department Market Department Department
v Vv v v v
7l g SRR BB B SRR HEEIEH
Economic Activity Loan Management Strategic Client Information Technology 0 ;tions D
Department IV Department Department Department p p
A A A / J
\ \ \ |
- i FTHA s
BRI T2 TAESD (“—H—5R" QIFTR R ) (FFRIMESRZMR) Pkl
Retired Staff Department Financial Research Institute CDB Party School Procurement Center
(Innovation and Development Center for BRI) (CDB Institute of Development Finance)
v, S v /
\
FREfE=2B
International Business
Department Ill
v,
\ \ \ \ \ \
LT 21T RIEDT BT BRIAT EBT AT
Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch Heilongjiang Branch Shanghai Branch Jiangsu Branch
v v v v v
\ \ \ \ \
Era1T IEDT AR AT R AT AL 1T
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch He'nan Branch Hubei Branch
v v v v
\ \ \ \ \
BRAT )11 5347 RMAAT =EDT BREE 1T HR 21T
Chongging Branch Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch Gansu Branch
v v v J v
\ \ \
fERERRL EEZE FTHETIE AR R R AL RREEARERAL FEME A FRLL Bk
Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
in London in Vientiane in Astana in Minsk in Jakarta in Sydney
> INS > INS o N
PERRESHRAT EFZREEBRAT T AR E AR E ERREN SR

China-Africa Development Fund

CDB Development Fund

Note: As at the publication date of the annual report.
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BEIJING BRANCH

ok A RH A K E XTI A# 1585 ¥ K ESE
Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

31 (Tel):(010) 63223100

1&H(Fax):(010) 66412282

B4R (Zip): 100031

REMMT

TIANJIN BRANCH

Mok KR X EAKEIRISINNE LR OAE26ZE
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Centre A, 9 Binshui
Road, Hexi District, Tianjin

#81E(Tel):(022) 85681234

£ E (Fax):(022) 88355858

B4R (Zip):300061

AT

HEBEI BRANCH

it ARETAEAEISHE HBE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road,
Shijiazhuang

E31E(Tel):(0311) 85288100

f&H(Fax):(0311) 85288112

B4R (Zip):060051

WE31T

SHANXI BRANCH

Mk KRET/NE XK KAE327S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
317 (Tel):(0351) 4937222

1&H(Fax):(0351) 4937224

B4R (Zip):030006

AREIT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

ok RS T RER B AH165

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
E83E(Tel):(0471) 3310014

£ & (Fax):(0471) 3310021

B4R (Zip):010098

TFaT

LIAONING BRANCH

ik SRR L X B E A #1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
E117E (Tel):(024) 22952975

1& H(Fax):(024) 22953371

HB4R(Zip): 110014

KEMT

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KIEHPURARK15-17SEREMAE25ZE
Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

EiE(Tel):(0411) 82810918

1&H(Fax):(0411) 82633839

R 4R (Zip): 116001

BEMDT

JILIN BRANCH

ik KED R AKI99S

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
B335 (Tel):(0431) 85279600
1&H(Fax):(0431) 85279700

k4R (Zip): 130022

BRIIST

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik IR AL X BT ZB&277 5

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
B83%(Tel):(0451) 53907900

£ H(Fax):(0451) 53907808

B4R (Zip): 150028

lobi=5 )

SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik EiETIHARE68S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
E83E(Tel):(021) 20266688

f£ E (Fax):(021) 58883659

B4R (Zip):200120

IHMT

JIANGSU BRANCH

ek BRMIIARREK2325

Add: 232 Jiangdongzhong Road, Nanjing
E317E (Tel):(025) 83276222

& H(Fax):(025) 83276204

B4R (Zip):210019

M T

SUZHOU BRANCH

bk M Tk X REMET2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
E8iE(Tel):(0512) 67887142

f£E(Fax):(0512) 67887114

B4R (Zip):215123

LT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

Sk N LT X IE2 BE695 3144

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou

31E(Tel):(0571) 81686131

£ E (Fax):(0571) 89778068

B4R (Zip):310020

TIRAT

NINGBO BRANCH

ik TR M B ERIEETTS

Add: 577 Haiyan Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
31E(Tel):(0574) 83872888

& & (Fax):(0574) 83872100

B4R (Zip):315040

AT

ANHUI BRANCH

Mok ST B L XELL K99S5

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
B1iE(Tel):(0551) 62867889

1& H(Fax):(0551) 62875868

R 4R (Zip):230071

BEST

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BN B KBREEBHREK127TS

Add: 127 Degui Road, Wenquan Street, Gulou District,
Fuzhou

B335 (Tel):(0591) 88569100/87856844

1& H(Fax):(0591) 87856408

B4R (Zip):350003

ENST

XIAMEN BRANCH

Hohk - EIIHRAXETIE100S AW WAL (EIM
B 35-40F

Add: 35/F-40/F, Forture Centre, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

B335 (Tel):(0592) 2978826

1& H(Fax):(0592) 2393111

HR4R (Zip):361001

IHEDMT

JIANGXI BRANCH

ik BEWAAMHT X FMPKREI11005

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honggutan New
District, Nanchang

E31E(Tel):(0791) 86592323

1&HE(Fax):(0791) 86592333

R4 (Zip):330038
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LR SHT

SHANDONG BRANCH

ik KR H A 15116665 AL F 0D

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Center, 11666 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

E31E(Tel):(0531) 81928100

1£H(Fax):(0531) 81928282

B4R (Zip):260014

ERT

QINGDAO BRANCH

Mol FEEHABEEISSRKBAEITE

Add: 17/F, Liantong Building, 15A Donghaixi Road,
Qingdao

E33E(Tel):(0532) 81978277

£ E (Fax):(0532) 81978288

B4R (Zip):26607 1

AEAT

HE’NAN BRANCH

ik : KM T EIKEE2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
£33 (Tel):(0371) 66000888

£ H (Fax):(0371) 66000777

B4R (Zip):450008

LT

HUBEI BRANCH

ek FINHR 8 K RIEAEI08S

Add: 308 Youyi Avenue, Wuchang District, Wuhan
B35 (Tel):(027) 86759777

1& H(Fax):(027) 86759666

R 4R (Zip):430062

BT

HU’NAN BRANCH

Mt AOPH RO K MTHEE ZR118SHTRE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

E11E(Tel):(0731) 84906658

1& K (Fax):(0731) 84906699

B4R (Zip):410002

I"HR34T

GUANGDONG BRANCH

M SNH R IR EHAEF00S 2 —E BRI HARBA
Add: 23A, Tower A of R&F Yingtai,Plaza, 100 West
Huangpu Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
E33E(Tel):(020) 38633017

& & (Fax):(020) 38633000

B4R (Zip):510627

AT

SHENZHEN BRANCH

ik YRR X @ = 820035 ER &R PO KE06
E. 18Z. 192, 28-332

Add: 6/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial Center,
2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
E31E(Tel):(0755) 25985666

1& H(Fax):(0755) 25987800

184w (Zip):518038

a7

GUANGXI BRANCH

it BT REKE1495
Add: 149 Minzu Street, Nanning
BiE(Tel):(0771) 8018114
1&H(Fax):(0771) 8018510

B4R (Zip):530028

BEST

HAINAN BRANCH

ik BOBFRXKIREE1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
317 (Tel):(0898) 68551901

1% H(Fax):(0898) 68551933

B4R (Zip):570311
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BRAMT

CHONGQING BRANCH

ik ERTIIR ERE1S

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongaing
815 (Tel):(023) 67858000

£ & (Fax):(023) 67858114

B4R (Zip):400023

)l 347

SICHUAN BRANCH

ik AT MK RREI205SERFRIRITRE
Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

81 (Tel):(028) 86029637

& H(Fax):(028) 86029617

B4R (Zip):610041

"MST

GUIZHOU BRANCH

it : REATH R K66 S L ER HERE#10-212
Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan West
Road, Guiyang

815 (Tel):(0851) 88651588

1& H(Fax):(0851) 88651605

B4R (Zip):550003

LRSI

YUNNAN BRANCH

ok BAAT T 1REE176S

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
E8iE(Tel):(0871) 63634094
1&H(Fax):(0871) 63634001

1R 4%(Zip):650228

BREE T

SHAANXI BRANCH

i AR T e —E2SERARRTRE

Add: China Development Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
Oneg, Xi'an

#33%(Tel):(029) 87660578

1& H (Fax):(029) 87660581

1R 4%(Zip): 710075

HR2T

GANSU BRANCH

ik ZMHE 817285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
81 (Tel):(0931) 8866628

£ E (Fax):(0931) 8866237

1R 4%(Zip): 730030

WEMMT

XINJIANG BRANCH

ik BEARFH LIS ERARRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
31 (Tel):(0991) 2335001

& B (Fax):(0991) 2335002

HR 4R (Zip):830002

BEMMT

QINGHAI BRANCH
ik T RS
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
8% (Tel):(0971) 6161887
£ E (Fax):(0971) 6161900
#R4R(Zip):810001

TEHMT

NINGXIA BRANCH

ik SRITEREFREILEHTS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
E31E(Tel):(0951) 5695900

1&H (Fax):(0951) 5695813

B4R (Zip): 750004

BT

TIBET BRANCH

ik AIEET )\ — R 285 A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
81 (Tel):(0891) 6623972

£ H(Fax):(0891) 6623818

B4R (Zip):850000

BENT

HONG KONG BRANCH

ik FERIEEE SERS AP O—EI33%

Add: 33/F One International Finance Centre, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

81 (Tel):(00852) 28016218

£ H(Fax):(00852) 25304083

FEHRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

ok - RRFF BB FER T 1847415 (A) 851, 28T
Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18,Maadi,
Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

3% (Tel):(002-02) 27507406

EHrRMLRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW
otk T AR EIR T E RIS X AE1S
Add: 1 Novatorov St., Moscow 119421, Russian
Federation

81 (Tel):(007-495) 9894612

& H(Fax):(007-495) 9894611

BYHRRARRLE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE
JANEIRO

it ERBLARA AT HROX RN 2R AE9I55S10E
Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central
District, Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

81 (Tel):(0055-21) 981796921

NRIANErAR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik EARRMNAINETHH SBEEPERIZEM
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela

eBRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
ik HECH D ARE4S

Add: 4 Lombard Street, London, EC3V 9HD, UK
315 (Tel):(0044) 2079338702

GEL e

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
ik ERARTREEGEFLX

Add: Saysettha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital of
Lao PDR.

317 (Tel):(00856)-20-56791136

P HTIE AR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA
ik BEERANERRAR T S HF R AE165218
Add: 21/F, 16 Dostyk street, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

AR R AE R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
ik B S T R IR R REAHTT0S
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus
815 (Tel):(00375) 444559461

A FRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

Stk EDEE R P WHENNIA K o T H Sopo Del K BARE22 2
Add: 22/F, Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

81E(Tel):(0062) 02150806518

ERARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

otk SRAR LR AR ENB R IER E S ERE49E
Add: 49/F, Governor Phillip Tower, 1 Farrer Place,
Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia

835 (Tel):(0061) 402278978

EFEMARIELE

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

Hodk: AR H A K S RAS7TSRERRSMAOI10E
Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Centre, 7
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

E81E(Tel):(010) 88308477

1& H(Fax):(010) 66553276

B4R (Zip): 100033

EFESRBERAS

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

Mok LR AEBX BAIIIIRE29S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
81E(Tel):(010) 88300999

R4 (Zip): 100037

EREMESRHBBRAT

CDB FINANCIAL LEASING CO., LTD.

ek SRYI T AR H X 38R = K2003 S ERE P OKE
Add: CDB Financial Center, 2003 Fuzhong Third Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen

81 (Tel):(0755) 23980999

& B (Fax):(0755) 23980900

B4R (Zip):518026

PIELREESHERAT

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

Mok LRI AP EXITHARE28SHRE R P ORE
10-11 28

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Centre, 28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
E81E(Tel):(010) 59892900

1& H(Fax):(010) 59566969

B4R (Zip): 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of China Development Bank

(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 196, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
] Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts;
. Consolidation of structured entities.
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Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gross loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB13,038.66 billion with a credit loss allowance of RMB441.26
billion. The exposure of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts was
RMB3,488.76 billion, for which a provision of RMB15.71 billion was recognized.
The credit impairment losses on loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts recognized in the
Group's consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB1.70 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, as of 31 December 2020 represented management’s best estimate of
expected credit loss (‘ECL") at that date under International Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments ECL model.

Management assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applied a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their ECL. Management assessed the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information and using the risk
parameter model that incorporates key parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default and discount rates.

The measurement models for ECL involved significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk characteristics,
selection of appropriate model and determination of relevant key measurement
parameters;

(2) Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”),
default or credit-impaired;

(8) Adoption of economic indicators, economic scenarios and their weights for
forward-looking measurement;

(4) The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established governance process and controls over the measurement of
ECL.

The Group developed complex models, employed numerous parameters and
data inputs, and applied significant management judgments and assumptions
in measuring the ECL, and the amounts of ECL and provisions estimated are
significant. These reasons resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit
matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(13)(f), Note 4(1), Note 14, Note 21,
Note 36 and Note 49(2) to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the measurement of ECL for the loans and
advances, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which comprised:

(1) Internal controls over ECL models, including the selection, approval and
application of methodologies of models, and the ongoing monitoring and
optimization of such models;

(2) Internal controls related to the review and approval of significant management
judgments and assumptions of the Group, including portfolio segmentation,
model selections, parameters determination, the criteria for SICR, the
definition of default and credit-impaired, the use of forward-looking scenarios;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs used by
the models;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows and calculations of
present values of such cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL measurement.
The substantive procedures we performed include:

(1) We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed the
reasonableness of the portfolio segmentation, model selection, key
parameters estimation, significant judgements and assumptions in relation to
the models. We examined the ECL calculation engines on a sample basis, to
validate whether or not the ECL calculation engines reflect management’s
modelling methodologies.

(2) We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-financial
information, relevant external evidence and other factors of the borrowers, to
assess the appropriateness of management’s identification of SICR, defaults
and credit-impaired loans.

(8) For forward-looking scenarios, we reviewed the basis management used
for determining the economic indicators, number of scenarios and relative
weightings, assessed the reasonableness of forecasted economic indicators,
economic scenarios and relevant weightings.

(4) We examined major data inputs to the ECL models for selected samples,
including historical data and data at the measurement date, to assess their
accuracy and completeness. We also tested the major data transfers between
the ECL calculation engines and relevant information systems, to verify their
accuracy and completeness.

(5) For loans and advances in Stage 3, we tested on a sample basis on the credit
loss allowance computed by management based on estimated future cash
flows and discount rates with reference to financial information of borrowers
and guarantors, the latest collateral valuations, and other information including
forward-looking factors, etc.

Consolidation of structured entities

Structured entities primarily included asset-backed securities, assets management
plans, funds and wealth management products that were issued, initiated,
managed or invested by the Group. As at 31 December 2020, total assets of
the consolidated structured entities and unconsolidated structured entities,
issued, initiated and managed by the Group, amounted to RMB29.98 billion and
RMB172.62 billion, respectively. In addition, as at 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group which were
issued, initiated and managed by other institutions included in the consolidated
statement of financial position amounted to RMB26.35 billion.

The Group evaluated the following aspects to determine whether the above

structured entities need to be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements:

. its power over these structured entities;

. its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these structured
entities; and

. its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from
these structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by management in assessing whether the
Group had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such
structured entities resulted in this matter being identified as a key area of audit
focus.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(4), Note 4(2) and Note 44 to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

For different types of structured entities, we performed the following tests:

(1) Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the Group's assessment of whether it
controls a structured entity;

(2) Assessed the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group’s power over the structured
entities through review of related contracts and agreements;

(8) Performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service provider,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support
provided to the structured entities; and

(4) Assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of the Group's decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its
role as the assets manager or service provider, the Group's exposure to
variability of returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and the
rights held by other parties in the structured entities.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Group’s 2020 Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

] Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zhu Jiandi.

BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, the People's Republic of China

23 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Notes [ a0 2019

Interest income 7 607,531 630,661
Interest expense 7 (453,846) (456,712)
Net interest income 7 168,685 173,949
Fee and commission income 8 3,376 7,304
Fee and commission expense 8 (950) (1,127)
Net fee and commission income 8 2,426 6,177
Net trading and foreign exchange (loss)/gain 9 (6,390) 14,686
Net gain on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 171 1,654
Net gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost 125 176
Dividend income 10 11,367 14,033
Net gain on investment securities 1 33 23
Other income, net 12 3,125 6,252
Operating income 164,542 216,850
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 82 4
Operating expenses 13 (16,659) (17,650)
Credit impairment losses 14 (4,321) (52,033)
Other impairment losses on assets (1,597) (1,619)
Profit before income tax 142,047 145,552
Income tax expense 15 (28,231) (27,041)
Profit for the year 118,816 118,511

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 117,376 117,102
Non-controlling interests 1,440 1,409
118,816 118,511

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

o 2019

Profit for the year 118,816 118,511
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation 3 27)
Net (loss)/gain on investments in equity instruments through other comprehensive income (280) 576
Subtotal 277) 549
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (2,936) 704
Net (loss)/gain of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (805) 1,313
Others (497) (196)
Subtotal (4,238) 1,821
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (4,515) 2,370
Total comprehensive income for the year 114,301 120,881
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 113,463 119,536
Non-controlling interests 838 1,345
114,301 120,881

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Notes | a0 2019

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 131,354 189,237
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 341,853 522,571
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18 106,536 189,000
Derivative financial assets 19 37,737 21,373
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 588,312 721,029
Loans and advances to customers 21 12,640,362 11,713,333

Financial Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 1,055,703 960,488
Debt instruments at amortized cost 23 1,273,000 1,401,344
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24 664,916 520,846
Investments in associates and joint ventures 25 518 500
Property and equipment 26 94,521 91,629
Deferred tax assets 27 124,221 135,911
Other assets 28 44,642 37,414
Total assets 17,108,675 16,504,575
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 2,879,272 3,143,217
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 499,052 458,759
Placements from banks 31 92,864 72,086
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 32 2,051 35,188
Derivative financial liabilities 19 26,843 27,593
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 124,725 112,608
Due to customers 34 1,167,538 1,371,396
Debt securities issued 35 10,722,092 9,735,782
Current tax liabilities 2,922 34,161
Deferred tax liabilities 27 4,695 2,248
Other liabilities 36 100,929 117,802
Total liabilities 15,622,983 15,110,840
Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 181,677 181,993
Investment revaluation reserve 39 (14,755) (13,716)
Surplus reserve 40 185,631 165,399
General reserve 40 248,966 238,344
Currency translation reserve (1,684) 874
Retained earnings 41 434,686 376,035
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,455,769 1,370,177
Non-controlling interests 42 24,823 23,558
Total equity 1,480,592 1,393,735
Total liabilities and equity 17,103,575 16,504,575

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Huan Ouyang Weimin He Xingxiang Wu Jiang
Chairman President Executive Vice President, Head of Finance
in charge of the finance function
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense for debt securities issued
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions
Interest income for investment securities
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers
Net (gain)/loss on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
Net gain on investment securities
Net gain on disposal of property and equipment, intangible assets and other long-term assets
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Dividend income

Subtotal

Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:

Net decrease in balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Net increase in loans and advances to customers
Net decrease/(increase) in placements with banks and other financial institutions
Net decrease/(increase) in other operating assets
Net decrease in due to customers and deposits from banks and other financial institutions
Net increase in placements from banks
Net increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
Net decrease in other operating liabilities
Subtotal
Income tax paid
Net cash outflows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal/redemption of debt instruments at amortized cost
and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Cash received from returns on investment securities
Cash received from other investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates

Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for purchase of debt instruments at amortized cost and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Net cash inflows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debt securities issued
Cash received from borrowings from governments and other institutions
Cash received from other financing activities
Transactions with non-controlling interests

Cash paid for repayments of debt securities issued and borrowings from
governments and other institutions

Cash payment for interest on debt securities issued and borrowings from
governments and other institutions

Dividends paid
Net cash inflows from financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Net cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

43(1)

Year ended 31 December

2019
142,047 145,552
5,918 53,652
6,008 5,717
343,151 329,622
11,248 14,429
(64,973) (67,925)
(368) (425)
(18,529) 4,862
(33) (29)
(585) (761)
30,503 (9,689)
(207) (309)
459,180 474,702
187,356 140,258
(4,071) 3,612
(46,269) 121,591
(1,011,563) (543,606)
6,269 (9,614)
50,850 (58,548)
(437,972) (384,994)
22,550 9,980
12,084 46,338
(51,918) (52,491)
(1,272,684) (727,474)
(39,629) (36,932)
(853,133) (289,704)
805,212 357,686
67,521 68,209
5,939 12,141
= 18
(17,572) (21,588)
(914,834) (305,598)
(53,734) 110,868
2,472,703 1,963,893
115,616 151,589
2,246 -
480 (402)
(1,588,066) (1,487,480)
(337,453) (326,776)
(27,871) (20,654)
637,655 280,170
(9,377) 4,582
(278,589) 105,916
1,137,595 1,031,679
859,006 1,137,595
542,212 594,428
(107,671) (119,824)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State Council of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), China Development Bank was converted
into a joint stock corporation on 11 December 2008, established jointly by the
Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”) and Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Huijin”), and
renamed as China Development Bank Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (the former “China Banking Regulatory Commission, CBRC” and “China
Insurance Regulatory Commission, CIRC”, the “CBIRC”) and after completing the
review by and registration of corporate changes with the State Administration of
Business and Commerce, China Development Bank Corporation changed its name
to China Development Bank, and changed its form of organization from a joint stock
corporation to a limited liability company. After these changes, the Bank operates
under business license No. 911100000000184548 issued by Beijing Administration
of Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and financial institution license No.
GO0001H111000001 issued by the CBIRC on 13 June 2017. The registration of
corporate changes does not affect the rights and obligations of the Bank. After the
changes, the Bank assumes all the assets, creditor’s rights, debts and businesses of
the former China Development Bank Corporation.

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align their business
focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic development strategies
by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank for medium and long-term
financing and comprehensive financial services, so as to raise and channel economic
resources in support of the following areas:

Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic industries,
pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional development;

- Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation and
upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student loans,
and inclusive finance;

- National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture, and
people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative, industrial
capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure connectivity,
energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going Global”;

- Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic and financial
reforms; and

- Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development strategies
and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries registered
in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”. Branches and
subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are referred to as the “Overseas
Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2020 relevant to and adopted by the Group

The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2020:

(1) IFRS 3 Amendments

2) IAS 1 and IAS 8 Amendments

3 IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Amendments
(4) IFRS 16 Amendments

(1) IFRS 3 Amendments: Definition of a Business

IFRS 3 Amendments clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of
a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities and
assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create output. A business can exist without including all the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and substantive processes together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

(2) 1AS 1 and IAS 8 Amendments: Definition of Material

The amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of materiality.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users of general purpose financial statements based on those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality depends on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.

Definition of a Business
Definition of Material
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

(8) IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Amendments: Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 modify some specific
hedge accounting requirements. During the period of uncertainty arising
from phasing-out of interest-rate benchmarks with an alternative nearly
risk-free interest rate (“RFR”), the entities that apply these hedge accounting
requirements can assume that the interest-rate benchmarks on which the
hedged cash flows and cash flows of the hedging instrument are based are not
altered as a result of interest-rate benchmark reform.

(4) IFRS 16 Amendments: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Effective 1 June 2020, IFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient
for lessees accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and satisfy the qualifying criteria. Rent concessions
that satisfy the criteria may be accounted for in accordance with the practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not assess whether the rent
concession meets the definition of a lease modification. Lessees apply other
requirements in IFRS 16 in accounting for the concession. The Group has
adopted the amendments from 1 January 2020.

The adoption of the above standards and amendments does not have any
significant impact on the operating results, financial position and comprehensive
income of the Group.

2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

effective dates in 2020

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

January 2021

January 2022

January 2022

January 2022

January 2023

January 2023

January 2023

(1) IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

(2 Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

3) Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
(4) Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

5) Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

(6) Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

(7) IFRS 17 and Amendments Insurance Contracts

®) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle (issued in May 2020)

Effective date has been deferred indefinitely

1 January 2022
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(1) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
the accounting issues that arise when financial instruments that reference
Interbank Offered Rates (‘IBOR”) transition to nearly risk-free rates (“RFRs”).
The amendments include a practical expedient for modifications, which permits
contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the IBOR reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate. The
amendments also permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation under both IFRS 9 and IAS
39 without the hedging relationship being discontinued. In addition, while
IFRS 9 and IAS 39 require that a risk component (or a designated portion) is
“separately identifiable” to be eligible for hedge accounting, the amendments
provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of
a risk component. Disclose information about new risks arising from the reform
and how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark rates is required by
the amendments.

(2) Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework

IFRS 3 Amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS
3 to avoid the issue of potential “day 2” gain or loss arising for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred
separately. The exception requires entities to apply the criteria in IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine
whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date. At the same time,
the amendments add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

(3) Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

IAS 16 Amendments prohibit entities from deducting from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds of the sale of items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing
those items, in profit or loss.

(4) Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

IAS 37 Amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when
assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments
apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and
an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

(5) Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

IAS 1 Amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments clarify what is meant by a right to defer
settlement that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period,
classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its
deferral right, and only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself
an equity instrument, would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.

(6) Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

IAS 8 Amendments introduce a new definition of “accounting estimates”.
The amendments are designed to clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors.

(7) IFRS 17 and Amendments: Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 17 amendments replaced IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts. The standard provides a general model for insurance
contracts and two additional approaches: the variable fee approach and the
premium allocation approach. IFRS 17 and amendments cover the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and apply to
all types of insurance contracts.

(8) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between the
requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture.

(9) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

The 2018-2020 cycle of annual improvements make minor amendments to
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards,
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the illustrative examples
accompanying IFRS 16 Leases.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations will have
no material impact on the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Accounting period

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or in some
circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Bank and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date the Bank gain
control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary. The
Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including those controlled
through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar
rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such
as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Bank
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gain on transactions are
eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized loss is also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred assets.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Bank.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e., recognized in the consolidated
income statement). When the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

At the acquisition date, irrespective of non-controlling interests, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized
at their fair values; except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes and IAS 19 — Employee
Benefits, respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the
consideration transferred, the fair value of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) and (i) the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities and contingent liabilities incurred or assumed.

Non-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are accounted for at either fair value or the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognized immediately
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of loss of
an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further loss. Additional loss is
recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

The Group periodically assesses whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the
investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or former joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS
9. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or the joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest
in the associate or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate or the joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or the joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income by that associate or the joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued, excepted
for equity instrument designated as fair value through other comprehensive.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and loss resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

Interest income

(a)
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI") financial assets, the
Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead of
its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit
loss in estimated future cash flows.

- Financial assets that are not ‘POCI’ but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3’), for which interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e., net of the
expected credit loss provision).

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e., its
amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortized cost of a
financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit loss (‘ECL”")
and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points
paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate.

Fee and commission income

(b)

Fee and commission income is recognized when the service is provided.

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for those
designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are recognized
within “Interest expense” in the consolidated income statement using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions

(a)
The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (“RMB”). ltems
included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s Overseas Operations
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates. The presentation currency of the Group and the Bank is
RMB.

Functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

(b)
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gain and loss resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
are analyzed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carrying
amount. Translation differences related to changes in the amortized cost are
recognized in the consolidated income statement, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in
foreign currencies are translated using the foreign exchange rates at the date of
the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as FVTOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(c) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from RMB are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial
position; except the retained earnings, other items in equity holders’ equity
are translated at the rate prevailing at the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when the items occurred, or a rate that approximates the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Taxation

Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax.

(a) Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
except when they related to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(10) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits
include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group
recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those services as
a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as expenses in the
consolidated income statement. Short-term employee benefits include salaries,
bonuses, staff welfare, medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees and staff
education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for basic
pensions and unemployment insurance related to government mandated
social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme established. The group
operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period in which the
related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank’s head office and domestic branches (“Domestic
Institutions”) participate in an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the
“Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions with reference to
employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in the consolidated
income statement when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011. The
entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such as age,
years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. Differences arising from changes in
assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of early
retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance with
termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is recognized for
the early retirement benefit payments from the date of early retirement to the
normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition as termination benefit
is met with a corresponding charge in the consolidated income statement.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present
value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated income statement
when incurred.

(11)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets, which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other financial institutions and other
short-term and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal
market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market)
at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market
prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair value is
determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing model and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.



For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data.

(13) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

()  Amortized cost (“AC”). Financial assets at amortized cost primarily include
balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost, debt instruments at amortized cost and other receivables.

(i)  FVTOCI. Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income include debt securities, and equity instruments
designated as fair value through other comprehensive income which are
not held for trading purpose.

(iiiy  Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). Financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss primarily include held-for-trading financial
assets, loan and advances to customers measured at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments other than designated at FVTOCI, debt
investments that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI.

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect
the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these
is applicable (e.g., financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the
financial assets are classified as part of other business model and measured
at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model
for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these
assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported
to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how
managers are compensated.

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows
or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the
financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”). In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e.,
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic
lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk
or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments are
described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial
liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as government and corporate
bonds. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one of
the following three measurement categories:

(i) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not designated
at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost.

(i) FVTOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at FVTOCI.

(iiiy  FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if doing so
significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and liabilities
being measured on different bases.
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Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the
issuer’'s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual
obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets.
Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except
where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at FVTOCI. The Group’s policy is to designate
equity investments as FVTOCI when those investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment returns.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets,
it shall reclassify all affected financial assets, and apply the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group does not restate
any previously recognized gain, loss (including impairment gains or losses)
or interest. Reclassification date is the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in business model that results in the Group reclassifying
financial assets.

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost,
except for financial liabilities at FVTPL, which is applied to derivatives, financial
liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition.

(d) Initial recognition and measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial liability
at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental
and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability as
measured at FVTPL: (i) it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an accounting mismatch);
(i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the group is provided internally on that basis to the entity’s key
management personnel.

Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not
qualify for derecognition whereby a financial liability is recognized for the
consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognizes any expense incurred on the financial liability.

(e) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on the categories:
Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured at initial recognition: (i) minus the principal repayments; (ii)
plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount; (iii) for
financial assets, adjusted for any credit loss allowance. Interest income and
interest expense from these financial assets is included in “Interest income” and
“Interest expense” using the effective interest rate method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities, periodic
re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rates of
interest alters the effective interest rate. If a floating-rate financial asset or a
floating-rate financial liability is recognized initially at an amount equal to the
principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the future interest
payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the asset
or the liability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, it shall recalculate
the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability as the present
value of the revised estimated future cash flows, and the carrying amount
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognized
in profit or loss as income or expense.
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Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gain or loss, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gain and loss on the instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “interest income” using the effective
interest rate method.

Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than to
generate investment returns are designated as FVTOCI. When this election is
used, fair value gain and loss is recognized in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when representing
a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established, and it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group, and
the amounts of the dividends can be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in
profit or loss and presented in the income statement within “Net trading and
foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it arises, unless it arises from
debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for
trading, in which case they are presented separated in “Net gain/(loss) on
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

Equity instruments

Gain and loss on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the “Net trading
and foreign exchange gain” in the income statement of.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability, which is determined as the amount that is not attributable to changes
in market conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the
remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which
case the gain or loss attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
are also presented in profit or loss. The gain and loss from financial liabilities
including the effects of credit risk variance should be recognized in current
profit and loss by the Group.

When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to retained earnings.

(f) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with
its debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI and with
exposure arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

()  an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i) the time value of money; and

(i) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For financial instruments whose credit loss allowance are measured using
the ECL model, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-stage impairment
model to calculate their credit loss and recognize their ECL, as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the financial asset is included in Stage 1 and have its
ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial
instrument for the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial recognition
but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial instrument
is included in Stage 2 and have its ECL measured at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

Stage 3: If the financial instruments is credit-impaired, the financial instrument

is included in Stage 3 and have its ECL measured at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI. The credit impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, and it
should not be presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a reduction of the carrying amount of the financial asset.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial instrument
other than POCI at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
credit risk on the financial instruments has increased significantly since initial
recognition is no longer met, the Group measures the credit loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit loss at the current reporting
date and the amount of expected credit loss reversal is recognized in profit or
loss. For POCI, at the reporting date, the Group only recognize the cumulative
changes in lifetime expected credit loss since initial recognition as credit loss
allowance for POCI financial assets.

When a financial asset is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

(g) Contractual modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash
flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses whether
or not the new terms are substantially different to the original terms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for credit loss
allowance calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized is deemed to be
credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognized as
gain or loss on derecognition of debt instrument at amortized cost.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross carrying
amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognizes
a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI financial assets).

(h) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognizes an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or
loss.

Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities (“ABS”) to investors. The
Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these ABS. As the
asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services including collecting
payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining account records related to
the assets pool, providing service reports and other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly be used
for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche ABS, and then
to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group derecognizes or partially
derecognizes the transferred financial assets according to the extent of transfer
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred financial assets.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration
paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated income statement.



() Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a current legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group has an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
Otherwise, financial assets and financial liabilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortization of guarantee fees recognized in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy, and the impairment allowance determined by the expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantee is
taken to the income statement.

The credit loss allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group is
measured by ECL. The Group has not provided any commitment to provide
loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by
delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the credit loss
allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that include both
a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot separately identify
the expected credit loss on the undrawn commitment component from those
on the loan component, the expected credit loss on the undrawn commitment
are recognized together with the credit loss allowance for the loan. To the
extent that the combined expected credit loss exceeds the gross carrying
amount of the loan, the expected credit loss is recognized as a provision.

(14)Financial assets held under resale agreements and

financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined price at
a future date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements are transactions where the Group sells financial assets which will
be repurchased at a predetermined price at a future date under repurchase
agreements.

Both financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements of the Group are in the form of pledged repo.
The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts held under resale
or sold under repurchase agreements in the statement of financial position.
Assets held under resale agreements are not recognized. Assets sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognized in the statement of financial
position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that
between the sale and repurchase consideration, is amortized over the period of
the respective transaction using the effective interest method and is included in
interest income and interest expenses respectively.

(15) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contract which contains a host that is
a non-financial assets, are treated as separate derivatives when their
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the hybrid contracts
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are separately
accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group choose to designate the hybrid
contract at fair value through profit or loss.

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting to
account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria. The
Group’s hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.
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At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as its
risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of the hedged item.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of the
derivatives, which are hedged for the risk exposure from fair value change of
non-trading equity investment designated as at FVTOCI, are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment
to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used is amortized to profit or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedged
item is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying value adjustment is recognized
in profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognized hedged
item. When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a
financial asset or a financial liability, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period during which the
hedged forecast transaction affect profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

- When the hedged cash flow affects profit or loss, the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognized directly in other comprehensive
income is recycled in the corresponding income or expense line of the
income statement. When the hedging relationship ceases to meet the
qualifying criteria after taking into account any rebalancing of the hedging
relationship, including the hedging instrument has expired or has been
sold, terminated or exercised, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
other comprehensive income at that time remains in other comprehensive
income until the hedged forecast transaction ultimately occurs.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred immediately to profit or
loss.

(16) Equity instruments issued by the group

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of proceeds received, net
of direct issuance costs.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group’s property and equipment comprise buildings, office and machinery
equipment, motor vehicles and vessels, aircrafts and construction in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the
cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office and machinery equipment 3-25 years 0%-5% 3.80%-33.33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircrafts 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gain and loss on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.
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(18) Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value of assets not retained
plus related costs, and subsequently measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each reporting period.
When the fair value, less costs to sell, is lower than a foreclosed asset’'s
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which the item is disposed.

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means. In principle,
foreclosed assets should not be transferred for own use, but, in the event that
they are needed for the Group’s own business or management purposes, they
are transferred at their net carrying amounts and managed as newly acquired
property and equipment.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost. Subsequent
expenditures incurred for the investment property are included in the cost of the
investment property if it is probable that economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditures can be measured
reliably. Other subsequent expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation and
amortization are recognized the same way as property and equipment and land
use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the
Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying
amount and related expenses, in profit or loss.

(20) Leases

(a) Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses
whether, throughout the period of use, customer has both of the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

(b) As Lessee
Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for
a lease, that was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease, for
example, adding or terminating the right to use one or more underlying assets,
or extending or shortening the contractual lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

(i) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to
use one or more underlying assets; and

(i) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the
effective date of the lease modification the Group remeasures the lease liability
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. The
revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate implicit in the lease for
the remainder of the lease term, or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at
the effective date of the modification, if the interest rate implicit in the lease
cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

()  decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that decrease
the scope or term of the lease, and recognising the gain or loss relating to
the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss; or

(i) making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all other
lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the lease,
has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contains any purchase
option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of the individual
underlying asset is not more than RMB50,000 when it is new as a lease of
low-value assets. The Group chooses not to recognize the right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, and
the rental expenses are recognized as “Operating expenses” in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over each period of the lease term.

(c) As Lessor

At the inception date, a lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes finance lease
receivable and derecognizes the assets under finance leases. The Group
presents lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the
lease for the initial measurement. The net investment in the lease is the present
value of the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the unreceived lease
payments receivable at the commencement date, which is discounted by the
interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Group calculates and recognizes the interest income in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognizes such
interest income in profit or loss.

(d) Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to
calculate the present value of lease payment. The economic circumstance
and the observable interest rate set the foundation for each institution of
the Group in determining the incremental borrowing rate. On this basis, the
applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the adjustment of
the reference interest rate, which is determined according to the situation of the
institution and the underlying asset, the lease term, the amount of lease liability
and other specific conditions of the lease.

(e) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly include buildings, vehicles and
other right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use
asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

() the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the
lease less any lease incentives received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis subsequently
by the Group. If the Group is reasonably certain that the ownership of the
underlying asset will be transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term,
the Group depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or
the end of the lease term.

The Group remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of the changed
lease payments and adjusts the carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets
accordingly. When the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero, and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability,
the Group recognizes the remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.

(f) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate of lessee as the discount rate. The Group calculates
the interest expenses of lease liabilities in each period during the lease term
using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognizes such interest
expenses in profit or loss. Variable lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i) there
is a change in the in-substance fixed payments; (i) there is a change in the
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; (iii) there is
a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate
used to determine those payments; or (iv) there is a change in the assessments
of options to purchase the underlying asset, extend or terminate the lease, or
the circumstances of the actual exercise of these options.

(21) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other intangible assets.
Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which generally range from 1
to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and

amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group has
no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.



(22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment loss and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Cash-generating unit
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit, and then to the other assets of
the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the cash-generating unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognized directly in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of gain or
loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

financial instruments and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as a liability
in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by those charged with governance.

(25)Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

(26) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies, other
institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for its services
provided under the custody agreements and does not have any interest in the
economic risks and rewards related to assets under custody. Therefore, assets
under custody are not recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers. Under
the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants loans to borrowers,
as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its customers who are the
lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans. The Group is responsible
for the arrangement and collection of the entrusted loans and receives a
commission for the services rendered. As the Group does not assume the
economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans and the funding for the
corresponding entrusted funds, they are not recognized as assets or liabilities
of the Group.

(27) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognized, but disclosed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3,
management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The estimates and related assumptions
are based on historical experience and other relevant factors including on the basis
of reasonable expectations for future events.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty that
the management has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements in the next twelve months.

(1) Measurement of credit impairment losses

For financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, and financial guarantee contracts
and loan commitments, the Group assesses the credit loss allowance and
provisions in light of forward-looking information.

Expected credit losses refer to the weighted average of the credit loss of
financial instruments weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss refers to the
difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under the contract
and all expected cash flows discounted by the Group at the original effective
interest rate, that is, the present value of total cash shortage. Among them,
POCI financial assets should be discounted at the credit-adjusted actual
interest rate of the financial assets.

The expected credit losses (“ECL”) model involves periodic review of key
definitions, parameters, and assumptions, such as estimates of future
macroeconomic conditions and the borrower’s credit behavior (e.g., the
possibility of customer default and corresponding loss). A number of significant
judgements are required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring
expected credit losses, such as:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Criteria for determining whether there was a significant increase in credit
risk, or a default or impairment loss was incurred as well as definition of
default and credit impairment;

- Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the application
of economic scenarios and weightings;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in

measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 49 (2) Credit risk.

(2) Consolidation of structured entities

-

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured entities,
the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group controls and
should consolidate these structured entities. When performing this assessment,
the Group assesses the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of
the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group’s power over the structured
entities, performs analysis and tests on the variable returns from the structured
entities, including but not limited to commission income and asset management
fees earned as the asset manager or service provider, the retention of residual
income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured
entities. The Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent
through analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for its role as asset
manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns from
its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by other parties
in the structured entities.

(3) Fair value of financial instruments

-~

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset value,
comparable companies approach, and other valuation techniques commonly
adopted by market participants. To the extent practical, the Group uses only
observable market data, however areas such as credit risk of the Group and
the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate,
liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to comparable companies and
their performance indicators may not be observable and require management
to make estimates and apply judgements. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.

(4

=

De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In the normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets
through various types of transactions including, among others, regular way
sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether
it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or partial
de-recognition.
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Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured entities

indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine whether the value.

Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with

such transfers to determine:

- whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from
the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass through” of those

cash flows to independent third parties.

—  the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial assets are transferred.

5. TAXATION

appropriate discount discounting rates. In assessing the present value of future
cash flows of subsidiaries, significant judgements are exercised over the related
income, operating expenses and discounting rate to calculate the present

The Group’s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Corporate income tax

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group in Mainland China is
25%. Taxation on overseas institutions is charged at the relevant local rates.

accordance with relevant state regulations.

—  Where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of
the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes Value added tax (“VAT”)

whether it has relinquished its controls over these financial assets and if
the Group has continuing involvement in these transferred financial assets.

(5) Income Tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax effect is
uncertain. The Group makes estimates and judgement for items of uncertainty,
taking into account existing taxation legislation and past practice of relevant tax
authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income tax

in the period in which such a determination is made.

(6) Impairment of non-financial assets

at 6%.

The pre-tax deduction of corporate income tax shall be implemented in

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit business,
fee income on financial services and income from trading of financial products

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for

Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other Services”

(Cai Shui [2016] No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding Issues concerning
Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management Products” (Cai Shui [2017]

No.2) and “Circular on the Relevant Issues concerning Value-added Tax Levied

on Asset Management Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No. 56), managers of asset

management products shall pay VAT at 3% for taxable activities undertaken

after 1 January 2018.

Non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to determine whether the carrying City construction tax

amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets. If any such indication

exists, an impairment loss is provided.

In assessing the present value of goodwill generated from the acquisition of Education surcharge

subsidiaries, the Group estimates the present value of future cash flows at Education surcharge is calculated as 3% to 5% of VAT.

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2020 were as follows:

Place of

Name of entity incorporation

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China
CDB Development Fund Mainland China
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China

Percentage of

Registered capital sy et and

City construction tax is calculated as 1% to 7% of VAT.

Principal business

(in millions) I S

RMB71,392 100% directly held Equity investment

RMBS0.000 100% directly held ivestment management and acvisoy

RMB32,548  84.99% indirectly held Fund investment & management

RMB12,642 64.40% directly held Leasing
RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting

GBP1,584 100% directly held

Investment holding

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries, and there was no
restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities.

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2019
Interest income
Loans and advances to customers 525,361 525,835
Debt investment securities (1) 64,973 67,925
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 8,031 13,386
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 9,163 23,514
Others 3 1
Subtotal 607,531 630,661
Interest expense
Debt securities issued (343,151) (829,622)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (87,895) (99,115)
Due to customers (9,673) (11,316)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (11,248) (14,429)
Others (1,879) (2,230)
Subtotal (453,846) (456,712)
Net interest income 153,685 173,949
Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 368 425

(1) Interest income of debt investment securities includes interest income of debt instruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income.
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8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 1,629 2,849
Loan arrangement fee 519 2,324
Credit commitment fee 156 1,656
Consultancy and advisory fee 323 146
Brokerage fee 68 63
Others 781 366
Subtotal 3,376 7,304
Fee and commission expense (950) (1,127)
Net fee and commission income 2,426 6,177

9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSS)/GAIN

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (52,080) 14,5138
Net gain on trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 28,230 3,408
Net gain/(loss) on foreign exchange derivatives 17,291 (3,445)
Net gain on interest rate derivatives 169 210
Total (6,390) 14,686

10.DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 11,367 13,881
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated) = 152
Total 11,367 14,033

11.NET GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net gain on disposal of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 33 23

12.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 4,627 4,597
Others (1,502) 1,655
Total 3,125 6,252

13.0PERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Staff costs 7,109 7,276
Taxes and surcharges 4,384 4,835
General operating and administrative expenses 3,228 3,702
Depreciation and amortization 1,938 1,837

Total 16,659 17,650
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14.CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 1,442 48,021
Debt instruments at amortized cost 815 1,247
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 558 32
Loan commitments 951 505
Financial guarantee contracts (691) 746
Others 1,246 1,482
Total 4,321 52,033

15.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current tax 8,428 36,932
Deferred tax (Note 27) 14,803 (9,891)
Total 23,231 27,041

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 142,047 145,562
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 35,512 36,388
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (299) (236)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (18,738) (13,881)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 330 262
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 1,420 4,508
Income tax expense 23,231 27,041

16.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 3 3
Balances with central banks 131,351 189,234
Total 131,354 189,237

17.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 276,557 465,924
Other domestic financial institutions 10,075 11,092
Overseas banks 53,509 43,302
Subtotal 340,141 520,318
Accrued interests 1,719 2,308
Total 341,860 522,626
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (7) (55)
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 341,853 522,571

As at 31 December 2020, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB11,636 million (31 December 2019: RMB11,939
million), which were mainly security deposits pledge with clearing houses.

18.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 64,940 73,100
Other domestic financial institutions 1,000 500
Overseas banks 40,550 115,283
Subtotal 106,490 188,883
Accrued interests 60 123
Total 106,550 189,006
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (14) (6)

Placements with banks and other financial institutions, net 106,536 189,000
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19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do
not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly.

The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments outstanding at
the balance sheet date.

31 December 2020

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 981,097 26,726 (16,846)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 5,161 327 (78)
Subtotal 27,053 (16,924)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 831,536 10,446 (9,681)

Interest rate options 7,434 238 (238)
Subtotal 10,684 (9,919)
Total 37,737 (26,843)

31 December 2019

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 1,295,976 10,879 (17,876)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 44,125 149 (62)
Subtotal 11,028 (17,938)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 1,601,063 10,202 (9,512)

Interest rate options 8,911 143 (143)
Subtotal 10,345 (9,655)
Total 21,373 (27,593)

(2) Hedge accounting

The Group’s hedging instruments included in the above derivative financial instruments are set out below:

31 December 2020

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 10,831 1,617 -

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 29,506 - (1,352)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 6,666 45 -
Total 1,562 (1,352)

31 December 2019

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 13,478 880 (48)

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 24,825 32 (702)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 4,425 - (51)

Total 912 (801)




164 | NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits issued by the
Group as presented in “Due to Customers” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s fair value changes on hedge instruments and the net gain or loss of hedged items arising from hedging risks, as well as the hedging ineffectiveness portion
recognized from changes in fair value gain or loss are not material.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks, with the hedged items being borrowings from other
banks for the Group’s leasing business. The Group also uses cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate
risks and exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being the bonds issued by the Group’s subsidiary CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging were
insignificant.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 586,804 718,262
Others 3,710 4,578
Subtotal 590,514 722,840
Accrued interests 171 267
Total 590,685 728,107
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
Stage 1 2) 5)
Stage 2 - (76)
Stage 3 (2,371) (1,997)
Subtotal (2,373) (2,078)
Financial assets held under resale agreements, net 588,312 721,029

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (6) Collateral.

21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(1) The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 12,597,398 11,675,042
At fair value through profit or loss (b) 42,964 38,291
Loans and advances to customers, net 12,640,362 11,713,333

(@) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost is as follows:

As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 12,834,470 12,011,204
Finance lease receivables and others 178,991 151,829
Subtotal 183,008,461 12,163,033
Accrued interests 30,195 29,101
Total 13,038,656 12,192,134
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (124,211) (187,602)

Stage 2 (244,654) (231,113)

Stage 3 (72,393) (98,377)
Subtotal (441,258) (517,092)
Loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost, net 12,597,398 11,675,042

(b) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As at 31 December

Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 41,463 37,475
Fair value change 1,501 816
Total 42,964 38,291

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 48 (6) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.
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(2) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

As at 31 December 2020

Gross loans and advances 11,593,194 1,329,834 115,628 13,038,656
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (124,211) (244,654) (72,393) (441,258)
Loans and advances to customers, net 11,468,983 1,085,180 43,235 12,597,398

As at 31 December 2019

Gross loans and advances 10,875,433 1,189,566 127,135 12,192,134
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (517,092)
Loans and advances to customers, net 10,687,831 968,453 28,758 11,675,042

(3) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2020 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 7,299 (7,299) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (35,195) 39,323 (4,128) =
Transfers to Stage 3 - (18,708) 18,708 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 19,510 914 - 20,424
Remeasurement (a) (39,940) 9,512 34,558 4,130
Repayment and transfer out (13,577) (4,111) (5,424) (23,112)
Write-off - - (64,554) (64,554)
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (368) (368)
Foreign exchange differences (1,488) (6,090) (4,776) (12,354)
As a 31 December 2020 124,211 244,654 72,393 441,258

As at 1 January 2019 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 17,151 (17,151) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (24,510) 29,814 (5,304) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (10,133) 10,133 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 35,209 13 - 35,222
Remeasurement (a) (27,592) 18,692 45,101 36,201
Repayment and transfer out (15,891) (6,184) (1,327) (23,402)
Write-off - - (43,325) (43,325)
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (425) (425)
Foreign exchange differences 1,783 (1,304) 2,091 2,570
As at 31 December 2019 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092

(@) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of Probability of Defaults (PDs), Loss Given Defaults (LGDs) and Exposure at
Defaults (EADs); transfers between Stage 1 and Stage 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the
period, and the consequent “set up” (or “set down”) between 12-month and lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

(i) In 2020 major changes in the principal of loans and advances to customers that have a greater impact on the Group’s credit loss allowance include:
As at 1 January 2020, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 accounted for 89% of total beginning balance of loans and advances to

customers. The changes of the Group’s ECL of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 were mainly driven by a net increase of nearly 6% in the corresponding
gross amount;

As at 1 January 2020, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 2 accounted for 10% of total beginning balance of loans and advances to
customers. Approximately 2% of the beginning balance of Stage 1 transferred to Stage 2 in 2020;

As at 1 January 2020, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 3 accounted for 1% of total beginning balance of loans and advances to
customers. Approximately 3% of the beginning balance of Stage 2 transferred to Stage 3 in 2020. Such increase was offset by the decrease resulting from write-
offs and recovery of approximately 55% of the beginning balance of Stage 3 loans and advances to customers.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of the loans of which credit loss allowances were transferred from Stage 3 to Stage 2, and from
Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, which due to the modification of contractual cash flows but not resulting in derecognition were not significant.
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(4) Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by installment, if
any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.

As at 31 December 2020

Unsecured loans 5,415 12,248 527 391 18,581
Guaranteed loans 5,504 1,739 235 174 7,652
Loans secured by collateral 16,973 32,162 26,258 7,215 82,608
Pledged loans 799 7,097 8,417 100 16,413
Total 28,691 53,246 35,437 7,880 125,254

As at 31 December 2019

Unsecured loans 7,331 596 1,714 1,455 11,096
Guaranteed loans 5,333 6,334 14,709 - 26,376
Loans secured by collateral 21,729 23,362 138,578 1,255 59,924
Pledged loans 6,761 15,391 12,731 3,038 37,921
Total 41,154 45,683 42,732 5,748 135,317

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss

Government and quasi-government bonds 15,321 11,705
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 41,685 29,027
Corporate bonds 19,443 31,419
Asset-backed securities 16 53
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 206,146 47,556
Asset management plans 420 688
Stock and fund investments 13,806 11,160
Wealth management products issued by other banks 9,071 11,397
Other equity investments 746,809 776,858
Subtotal 1,062,717 919,863

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

Government and quasi-government bonds - 6,136
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 40 785
Corporate bonds 2,321 22,391
Asset-backed securities = 419
Inter-bank certificates of deposit = 4,685
Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions = 4,118
Asset management plans 625 2,091
Subtotal 2,986 40,625
Total 1,055,703 960,488

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss primarily include investments in debt securities and funds invested in bonds and deposits with banks and other
financial institutions with funds from investors of guaranteed wealth management products, which issued by the Group before 2020.

23.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 1,157,272 1,274,134
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 1,108 1,247
Corporate bonds 97,621 104,404
Investments in trust plans and others 6,428 8,213
Subtotal 1,262,424 1,387,998
Accrued interests 18,671 20,934
Total 1,281,095 1,408,932

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (5,216) (5,196)
Stage 2 6) (1)
Stage 3 (2,874) (2,391)
Subtotal (8,095) (7,688)

Debt instruments at amortized cost, net 1,273,000 1,401,344
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(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

Year ended 31 December 2020

Gross debt instrument investments at amortized cost 1,277,550 13 3,632 1,281,095
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (5,216) (5) (2,874) (8,095)
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost, net 1,272,334 8 658 1,273,000

Year ended 31 December 2019

Gross debt instrument investments at amortized cost 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (5,196) (1) (2,391) (7,588)
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost, net 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, transfer among stages of the Group’s debt instruments at amortized cost was not significant.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2020 5,196 1 2,391 7,588
Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 2

Stage 2 to Stage 3 = (1) 1 =
Originated or purchased financial assets 5 = 270 275
Remeasurement (a) 361 5] 238 604
Repayments or transfer out (47) = (17) (64)
Foreign exchange differences (298) - (10) (308)
As at 31 December 2020 5,216 5 2,874 8,095

As at 1 January 2019 5,086 110 1,075 6,271
Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 2 (10) - 10 -
Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (110) 110 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 25 1 - 26
Remeasurement (a) 88 - 1,198 1,286
Repayments or transfer out (61) - (4) (65)
Foreign exchange differences 68 - 2 70
As at 31 December 2019 5,196 1 2,391 7,588

(@) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to stage-transfer.
24 . FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Government and quasi-government bonds 158,269 182,772
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 27,520 21,902
Corporate bonds 109,004 73,583
Asset-backed securities 351 631
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 359,046 230,329
Asset management plans 1,013 1,879
Subtotal 655,203 511,096
Accrued interests 4,903 4,635
Total 660,106 515,731

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Listed equity 3,310 4,090
Unlisted equity 1,500 1,025
Total 4,810 5,115
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, total 664,916 520,846

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of non-trading equity instruments at FVTOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in fair value of
such instruments will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.
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(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

Year ended 31 December 2020

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 658,928

1,178 660,106

Allowance for impairment losses (74)

(726) (800)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 515,530

161 40 515,731

Allowance for impairment losses (165)

(1) (243) (409)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the transfer among stages of the Group’s debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income was not

significant.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2020 165 1 243 409
Originated or purchased financial assets 25 - - 25
Remeasurement (a) (3) - 726 723
Repayment and transfer out (112) (1) (243) (356)
Foreign exchange difference (1) - - (1)
As at 31 December 2020 74 — 726 800

As at 1 January 2019 224 3 150 377
Originated or purchased financial assets 145 76 222
Remeasurement (a) 21) - 17 (4)
Repayment and transfer out (183) 3) - (186)
As at 31 December 2019 165 1 243 409

(@)
25.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to stage-transfer.

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Allowance for impairment losses

Net

Movements of investments in associates and joint ventures are set out below:

1,046 1,028
(528) (528)
518 500

Year ended 31 December

1 January
Additions
Deductions

31 December

Information of principal associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

CDB Jintai Capital Investment Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB1,250
Beijing Guowan Real Estate Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB500
Weiguang Huitong Tourism Industry Development Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB400
Nanjing Guoying Zhongxi Construction and Development Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB200

500 2,214
141 130
(123) (1,316)
518 1,028

40% indirectly held  Investment management and advisory

50% indirectly held Real Estate Development
44% indirectly held  Investment management and advisory

50% indirectly held Real Estate Development
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26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December

Cost (a) 119,486 112,798
Accumulated depreciation (a) (22,723) (20,378)
Allowance for impairment losses (a) (2,865) (1,509)
Fixed asset held for disposal 623 618
Total 94,521 91,529

(@) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of property and equipment are consisted of the following:

Cost

As at 1 January 2020 21,698 3,570 9,620 75,887 2,023 112,798
Additions 130 58 6,172 9,626 118 16,104
Transfer in/(out) 648 117 - - (765) -
Deductions (129) (167) (902) (8,209) (9) (9,416)
As at 31 December 2020 22,347 3,578 14,890 77,304 1,367 119,486

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2020 (5,726) (2,408) (551) (11,693) - (20,378)
Charge for the year (856) (306) (508) (3,377) - (5,047)
Deductions 18 115 49 2,520 = 2,702
As at 31 December 2020 (6,564) (2,599) (1,010) (12,550) = (22,723)
Allowance for impairment losses

As at 1 January 2020 (94) (210) (250) 912) (43) (1,509)
Charge for the year - (84) - (1,455) - (1,539)
Deductions 28 = 10 140 5 183
As at 31 December 2020 (66) (294) (240) (2,227) (38) (2,865)
Net book value

As at 31 December 2020 15,717 685 13,640 62,527 1,329 93,898
Cost

As at 1 January 2019 22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769

Acquisitions of a subsidiary 130 218 11 - - 359

Additions 131 1,976 5,657 11,979 582 20,225

Transfer in/(out) 189 231 - - (420) -
Deductions (981) (6,411) 619) (5,892) (652) (14,555)
As at 31 December 2019 21,698 3,570 9,620 75,887 2,023 112,798

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2019 (5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) - (19,956)
Acquisitions of a subsidiary (19) (214) (10) - - (243)
Charge for the year (870) (490) (286) (3,177) - (4,823)
Deductions 258 792 185 3,409 - 4,644

As at 31 December 2019 (5,726) (2,408) (551) (11,693) - (20,378)
Allowance for impairment losses

As at 1 January 2019 - - - (487) - (487)
Charge for the year (94) (210) (250) (462) (43) (1,059)
Deductions - - - 37 - 37

As at 31 December 2019 (94) (210) (250) (912) (43) (1,509)

Net book value

As at 31 December 2019 15,878 962 8,819 63,282 1,980 90,911
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27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 124,221 135,911
Deferred tax liabilities (4,695) (2,248)
Net 119,526 133,663

(1) Movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 133,663 124,418
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) (14,803) 9,891
Charged to other comprehensive income 671 (632)
Others (5) (14)
As at 31 December 119,526 133,663

(2) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are attributable
to the following items:

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 454,822 118,706 485,884 121,471
Fair value changes of financial instruments 69,236 17,309 68,096 16,942
Provisions 15,691 3,898 15,206 3,801
Others 1,697 388 840 246
Subtotal 541,346 135,301 570,026 142,460
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of financial instruments (59,959) (14,990) (31,535) (7,883)
Others (6,217) (785) (6,459) (914)
Subtotal (66,176) (15,775) (37,994) (8,797)
Net 475,170 119,526 532,032 133,663

28.0THER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Investment property 3,751 3,691
Interest receivable (1) 2,843 957
Right-of-use assets 2,576 3,076
Prepayment to vendors 2,087 15,056
Held for sale assets 1,860 -
Deposits with securities exchange 939 1,205
Intangible assets 762 671
Long-term deferred expenses 761 668
Goodwill (2) 709 724
Others 29,821 11,902
Total 46,109 37,950
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Interest receivable (165) (192)

Others (1,402) (344)
Subtotal (1,567) (536)

Other assets, net 44,542 37,414
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(1) As at 31 December 2020, the Group included the interests on financial instruments, accrued using the effective interest rate method, in the carrying amounts of the
corresponding financial instruments are recorded the interests on related financial instruments that had become due and receivable but not yet been received at the
balance sheet date in interest receivable under other assets.

(2) Goodwill

As at 31 December

Gross amount 1,243 1,258
Allowance for impairment losses (534) (534)
Net balances 709 724

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related cash-generating units. Based on the result of
the impairment testing, RMB534 million impairment losses on goodwill were recognized as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB534 million).

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 2,751,749 3,018,842
Other domestic financial institutions 82,977 69,878
Overseas banks 39,357 46,640
Overseas other financial institutions 1,237 2,492
Subtotal 2,875,320 3,137,852
Accrued interests 3,952 5,365
Total 2,879,272 3,143,217

30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 420,198 381,487
Overseas banks and other financial institutions 56,879 53,275
Foreign governments 18,862 19,599
Subtotal 495,939 454,361
Accrued interests 3,113 4,398
Total 499,052 458,759

31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 74,597 14,999
Overseas banks 18,098 56,639
Subtotal 92,695 71,638
Accrued interests 169 448
Total 92,864 72,086

32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly comprise of the borrowing with conversion options from non-
financial enterprises. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial liabilities measured at fair value though profit or loss mainly comprise of the liabilities to investors and the
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management products issued and managed by the Group.

33.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 124,623 112,539
Subtotal 124,623 112,539
Accrued interests 102 69
Total 124,725 112,608

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (6) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.
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34.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 905,818 1,112,648
Term deposits 113,117 99,757
Pledged deposits 3,110 3,651
Certificates of deposit 143,251 152,711
Subtotal 1,165,296 1,368,767
Accrued interests 2,242 2,629
Total 1,167,538 1,371,396

35.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions (1) 10,361,137 9,438,439
Subordinated bonds issued 2) 35,010 35,009
Tier-two capital bonds issued 3) 114,389 59,856
Asset-backed securities issued (4) 588 6,021
Subtotal 10,511,124 9,539,325
Accrued interests 210,968 196,457
Total 10,722,092 9,735,782

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.

(1) Debt securities issued by financial institutions

As at 31 December 2020

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2020 2021-2065 1.11-5.90 8,896,855
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2020 2021-2037 2.96-4.62 1,231,702
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2020 2023-2032 3.03-4.50 12,300
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2016-2020 2021-2037 0.00-4.00 170,100
Bonds issued by the Bank 10,310,957
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2020 2021-2027 1.21-4.25 44,275
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2017-2018 2021-2023 4.35-4.70 8,488
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2019 2021-2022 2.94-3.65 713
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (3,296)
Debt securities issued by the Group 10,361,137

As at 31 December 2019

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2019 2020-2065 1.93-5.90 7,913,690
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2018 2020-2037 2.96-4.62 1,295,155
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2024-2032 4.20-4.50 5,791
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2015-2019 2020-2037 0.00-4.00 165,736
Bonds issued by the Bank 9,380,372
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2019 2020-2027 2.25-4.25 42,062
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2015-2018 2020-2023 4.35-5.10 16,947
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2019 2021-2022 2.94-3.65 739
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (1,681)

Debt securities issued by the Group 9,438,439
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(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2020

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
RMB subordinated bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2016 2021 3.58 5,000
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 35,010

As at 31 December 2019

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
RMB subordinated bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 35,009

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its redemption
option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the bonds.

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2020

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2016-2020 2026-2030 3.65-4.45 109,876
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,513
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 114,389

As at 31 December 2019

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2016-2018 2026-2028 3.65-4.45 59,856

The Group issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates in year 2016, 2018 and 2020. The Group has an option to redeem part or all of the bond at
face value upon the closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subject to
regulatory approval. If the Group did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds when
regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.
(4) Asset-backed securities issued

The Group consolidated certain special purpose trusts established in relation with its assets securitization business when the Group determined it has control over these
special purpose trusts (Note 44 (2)).

As at 31 December 2020, total book value of unexpired asset-backed securities issued by these consolidated special purpose trusts held by third party investors were
RMB588 million, with remaining maturities ranging from one to two years, and coupon rates ranging from 3.30% to 3.95% (As at 31 December 2019: book value of
RMB6,021 million with remaining maturities ranging from one month to seven years and coupon rates ranging from 2% to 5.7%).

36.0THER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Deferred government subsidies for education loans 28,968 25,345
Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 16,368 36,631
Provision for loss on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 15,710 15,450
VAT and other taxes payable 9,818 9,768
Security deposits for leasing 7,591 7,194
Amounts received in advance 7,468 9,826
Accrued staff cost 3,050 2,408
Maintenance deposits from lessees 2,462 2,629
Leases liabilities 1,245 1,700
Held for sale liabilities 1,157 -
Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor 586 700
Payables for security brokerage service 78 1,566
Others 6,428 4,685

Total 100,929 117,802
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37.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019

MOF 153,908 36.54
Huijin 146,092 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.59
Total 421,248 100.00

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there was no change in the Bank’s equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.

38.CAPITAL RESERVE

As at 1 January 2020 182,650 (657) 181,993
Reductions - (316) (316)
As at 31 December 2020 182,650 (973) 181,677

As at 1 January 2019 182,650 (541) 182,109
Reductions - (116) (116)
As at 31 December 2019 182,650 (657) 181,993

(1) Others include remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as cash flow hedges.

39.INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

As at 1 January 2020 (11,409) (2,307) (18,716)

Amount of loss of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI recognized
directly in other comprehensive income

— Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI (1,414) 354 (1,060)

— Net gain on investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI

reclassified to profit or loss on disposal Ues ) ez
— Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 280 (111) 169
Amount of loss of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI recognized
directly in other comprehensive income
— Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVTOCI (664) 384 (280)
As at 31 December 2020 (13,031) (1,724) (14,755)

As at 1 January 2019 (13,930) (1,632) (15,562)

Amount of loss of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI recognized
directly in other comprehensive income

— Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 1,629 (407) 1,222
— Net loss on investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI
o . . 33 8) 25
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
— Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 29 6) 23
Amount of gain of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI recognized
directly in other comprehensive income
— Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVTOCI 830 (254) 576

As at 31 December 2019 (11,409) (2,307) (13,716)
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40.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAP, to statutory surplus
reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank’s share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to statutory surplus
reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated loss of the Bank or to increase the Bank’s share capital upon
approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after such capitalization. In addition, the Bank

appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

The Bank (a)
Subsidiaries (b)

As at 31 December

Total

244,206 233,994
4,760 4,350
248,966 238,344

(@) Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012, the Bank is
required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than 1.5% of the outstanding

balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

(b) Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its profit for the year as general

reserves.

41.RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 1 January 376,035 319,068
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 117,376 117,102
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (1) (9,084) (11,148)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve (2) (i) (11,148) (10,936)
Appropriation to general reserve (2) (i) (10,622) (10,711)
Dividends (2)(ii) (27,871) (27,340)
As at 31 December 434,686 376,035

(1) Profit appropriation for 2020

The Bank appropriated RMB9,084 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2020. Other proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the

year ended 31 December 2020 is pending for approval by the Board of Directors.

o

2) Profit appropriation for 2019

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 28 December 2020, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019 was

approved as following:

(i)  An appropriation of RMB11,148 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2020.

(i) An appropriation of RMB10,212 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

(iii) A cash dividend of RMB27,871 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019 which has been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2020. As ended 31 December 2020, the cash dividend has been paid.

(3) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, retained earnings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank’s subsidiaries that attributable to the Bank amounting RMB4,658

million and RMB2,292 million.

42.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. 12,147 11,200
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. 9,480 9,138
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. 3,196 3,220
Total 24,823 23,558
43.CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:
As at 31 December
Balance with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 189,932 232,814
Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:
Financial assets held under resale agreements 581,865 718,262
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 87,209 173,356
Investments in government bonds — 13,163
Total 859,006 1,137,595
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44.STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Principal-guaranteed wealth management products issued and managed by the Group

The Group issued and managed principal-guaranteed wealth management products. Investments made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to the
investors are presented as financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.

(2) Other consolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

e

Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed by the
Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able to use its power to affect
the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities. Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities referred to in (1) and (2) above totaled RMB29,979 million (31 December 2019:
RMB113,451 million).
Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products, asset-backed
securities, assets management plans and funds. The Group has no plans to provide financial or other support to these unconsolidated structured entities.

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB172,623 million (31
December 2019: RMB179,612 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s share in these structured entities amounted to RMB5,325 million (31 December 2019:
RMB4,260 million). These amounts represented the Group’s maximum exposure to these structured entities.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the types of return that the Group obtained from these structured entities included fee income, interest income and investment
income, and the return totaled RMB1,818 million (2019: RMB1,407 million).

(4) Other unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group

The Group classifies its interest held in other structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2020, the information on the amount of total assets of these
unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available from the public domain. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, interest held by the Group in structured entities
issued by other entities are as follows:

As at 31 December

e 2019

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 26,252 28,466
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 99 216
Total 26,351 28,682

45.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group assessed
among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets and whether it has
relinquished its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Note 3 (13) (h) and Note 4 (4).

As at 31 December 2020, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB2,057 million (31 December

2019: RMB11,412 million), among which:

RMB1,886 million was in respect of loans transferred that the Group retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and therefore has not
been derecognized in the consolidated financial statements (31 December 2019: RMB10,905 million).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the group had no continuing involvement in these assets.

RMB171 million was in respect of loans transferred that qualified for full derecognition (31 December 2019: RMB507 million). Carrying amount/maximum exposure to loss
was RMB16 million (31 December 2019: RMB25 million).

46.SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the Group’s
management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office level. Income and
expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group’s main operating segments are set
out below:

(1) Banking operations

(2

@3

This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending, deposits, agency

services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services. Debt issuance is the major source of funding
to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations primarily include money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond investments, customer-based
interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.

-

Equity investment

This segment consists of equity investment activities.

=

Leasing operations

This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which the Group acts as a lessor.
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(4) Securities operations

This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.

2020
Interest income 597,630 864 9,476 1,250 (1,689) 607,531
Interest expense (446,125) (2,285) (6,981) (673) 2,218 (453,846)
Net interest income 151,505 (1,421) 2,495 577 529 153,685
Include: Net interest income from customers 150,605 (83) 2,652 511 - 168,685
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 900 (1,338) (157) 66 529 =
Net fee and commission income 1,517 427 (81) 567 (4) 2,426
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 1,458 428 (16) 56 1 2,426
Inter-segment net fee and commission 59 (1) (65) 12 %) -
Other income, net (1) (13,189) 17,631 5,340 602 (1,871) 8,513

Operating expenses and credit impairment and

other impairment losses on assets (EHC2) (1,352) (7 (1,565) 22 (22381
Profit before income tax 123,101 15,285 4,584 181 (1,104) 142,047
As at 31 December 2020
Total assets 16,769,136 202,153 303,330 44,074 (215,118) 17,108,675
Total liabilities 15,320,537 75,477 276,700 28,115 (77,846) 15,622,983
Other information:

Depreciation and amortization 1,722 259 4,134 78 (185) 6,008
Capital expenditure 602 15 16,931 24 - 17,672
Credit Impairment losses 2,174 516 708 1,025 (102) 4,321
Other impairment losses on assets 23 - 1,574 - - 1,597
Credit commitments 3,512,038 244 - - (23,524) 3,488,758
Banking invesli?nlgz Leasing Securities ar?::fi?r:ii::::g: Total
2019
Interest income 622,722 1,007 8,761 1,159 (2,988) 630,661
Interest expense (449,335) (2,441) (7,167) (753) 2,984 (456,712)
Net interest income 173,387 (1,434) 1,594 406 (4) 173,949
Include: Net interest income from customers 172,122 (139) 1,851 115 - 173,949
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,265 (1,295) (257) 291 4) -
Net fee and commission income 5,411 282 (54) 581 (43) 6,177
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 5,378 282 (10) 532 (5) 6,177
Inter-segment net fee and commission 33 - (44) 49 38) -
Other income, net (1) 20,238 11,636 5,522 670 (1,338) 36,728
Operating expenses and credit impairment and (62,252) (3.029) (3,068) (2,288) (665) (71,302)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 136,784 7,455 3,994 (631) (2,050) 145,552
As at 31 December 2019
Total assets 17,469,060 186,551 261,301 37,583 (1,449,920) 16,504,575
Total liabilities 15,243,915 78,681 235,631 21,522 (468,909) 15,110,840
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,626 271 3,738 82 - 5,717
Capital expenditure 523 637 20,365 63 - 21,588
Credit Impairment losses 47,160 1,921 1,087 1,634 231 52,033
Other impairment losses on assets - 135 951 - 533 1,619
Credit commitments 3,624,439 244 - - (26,047) 3,498,636

(1)  Other income includes net trading and foreign exchange gain/(loss), net gain on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, net gain on
derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost, dividend income, net gain on investment securities, other income and share of profit of associates and joint
ventures.
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47.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of transactions with
the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 74,432 85,399
Interest rate range (%) 1.99-4.68 2.31-4.68

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,429 2,683
Net trading gain 94 96
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. Its principal activities are equity investments as
authorized by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the obligations as an investor of
the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 4,099 4,859
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 42,539 22,196
Interest rate range (%) 2.15-5.15 2.85-5.15

Year ended at 31 December

Interest income 1,106 565

Net trading gain 173 142

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under normal
commercial terms.

3

—
-~

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood’)

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. Its principal activities are domestic and overseas investments in
project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment management.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, Buttonwood owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank.
Transactions with Buttonwood and transactions with entities controlled or joint controlled by Buttonwood are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business
under normal commercial terms.

4) Transaction with subsidiaries

Outstanding balances of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s statement of financial position are as follows:

—_
faa)

As at 31 December

Assets

Derivative financial assets 46 22
Loans and advances to customers 43,232 41,946
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 40 71
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income - 404
Property and equipment 787 787
Other assets 1,214 1,066
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,000 6
Derivative financial liabilities - 1
Due to customers 100,914 225,265
Debt securities issued 3,139 1,004
Other liabilities 676 750

As at 31 December 2020, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to subsidiaries were RMB23,525 million (31
December 2019: RMB26,047 million).
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Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Net trading and foreign exchange gain (31) (71)
Interest income 1,657 1,639
Interest expense (915) (639)
Fee and commission income 66 45
Fee and commission expense (8) (10)
Dividend income 2,075 726

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

(5) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The Group’s
transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were not significant.

(6) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material transactions with key management personnel.

(7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from the obligation for
defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.

48.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(1) Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals, management of the
Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating result of the Group.

(2) Credit commitments

As at 31 December

Loan commitments 3,454,884 3,444,028
Letters of guarantee issued 17,626 35,634
Bank acceptance 9,606 11,693
Letters of credit issued 6,742 7,281
Total 3,488,758 3,498,636

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB96,099 million (31 December 2019: RMB20,856
million), with the remainder of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.

(3) Capital commitments

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

— equity instruments 38,365 49,207
— property and equipment 53,133 61,545
Total 91,498 110,752

The Group’s capital commitments of property and equipment are mainly purchased fixed assets for lease. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s capital commitments of
purchased fixed assets for lease were RMB52,333 million (31 December 2019: RMB61,151 million).

(4) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following non-cancellable finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Contractual amount 29,046 31,170

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's finance lease commitments were all within one year.

(5) Underwriting obligations

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no outstanding securities underwriting obligations.
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(6) Collateral

49.

)
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(a) Assets pledged

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

Bonds

As at 31 December 2020, the principal of financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB124,623 million (31 December
2019: RMB112,539 million) as set out in Note 33 financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements. All repurchase agreements were due within 5 years
from the effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables and leased assets under operating
lease, where the Group was a lessor, were pledged as collateral for borrowings
from other banks. As at 31 December 2020, carrying amounts of these
collateral amounted to RMB34,001 million (31 December 2019: RMB26,286
million).

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of
financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20). The Group did not hold any
collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group
analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports on these financial risks or the
combinations of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a
core characteristic of a financial undertaking, and business operations cannot
be carried out without being exposed to operating risks. The Group’s aim is,
therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns, and
minimize the potential adverse effects these risks may have on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate
debts with different maturities, and earns spread income by investing these
funds in medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors,
basic industries and pillar industries. In China, the benchmark deposit and
lending interest rates are set by the People’s Bank of China, the central bank.
The PBOC established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby
financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk,
commercial and market factors. The Group seeks to increase its profitability
by minimizing the funding costs as it issues different types of bonds, where
feasible under market conditions, to meet its asset and liability management
needs and funding needs.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions including,
among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate swaps, interest rate
floor options, for risk management purposes as well as to meet the needs of its
customers.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in its risk
management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation of the
risk limits in reliance of reliable and timely information from its information
systems, as part of its efforts to identify and analyze risks. The Group regularly
reviews and continues to make improvement to its risk management policies
and systems to reflect changes in markets and products, and incorporate best
practices. The most important types of financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the potential
loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group’s business,
management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances,
and investment activities including debt instruments and derivatives. Off-
balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts, also expose the Group to credit risk.

In accordance with the CBIRC’s regulatory guidelines on the internal credit
rating approach, and in light of its unique business features, the Group has
established its credit rating framework, including credit rating methodologies,
procedures, control and management, data collection and IT infrastructure. It
is a two-dimensional risk rating framework that incorporates both customer
credit ratings for their probabilities of default and the facility credit ratings for
estimated loss given default when the customers become default. To ensure
the accuracy and comprehensiveness of the ratings, the Group has also
established internal guidelines and criteria for country rating, sovereign rating,
regional rating and industry rating.

As at 31 December

128,994

2019
117,344

(a) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures on the
entire credit process, including credit due diligence and loan applications,
credit review and approval, loan disbursement, post-lending monitoring and
non-performing loan management. By applying strict and standardized credit
operational procedures, the Group strives to strengthen its end-to-end credit
management for pre-lending due diligence, credit rating, review and approval,
disbursement review and approval, and post-lending monitoring, improve the
mitigating effectiveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal of
non-performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management systems,
as part of its efforts to comprehensively enhance its credit risk management
capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when it comes to the
conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that it cannot
reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of the financial asset. Indicators
that it has become impossible to reasonably expect to recover a financial
asset, in whole or in part, include: (1) enforcement has been completed; and
(2) the Group has no other recovery alternative but to foreclose and dispose of
the collateral, and does not expect the value of the collateral to fully cover the
principal and interest of the financial asset.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit assets, the Group is also
exposed to credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and it manages its
risk exposures on its treasury operations by carefully screening counterparties
with acceptable credit quality, balancing credit risk and investment returns,
adopting rating-based underwriting by comprehensively considering the
internal and external credit rating information, and reviewing and adjusting
credit limits in a timely manner through limit management systems. In addition,
the Group also provides off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial
guarantee services to customers, which may expose the Group to the risk of
having to make payments on behalf of customers in case they default, where
the risk approximates that of a loan. For these operations, the Group adopts
risk control procedures and policies similar to those applicable to the credit
business to minimize their credit risk.

(b) Credit risk limit control and risk mitigation policy

The Group has adopted a series of credit risk mitigation policies and measures,
including the requirement for collateral, the most widely used and traditional
measure. The Group has developed operational guidelines for the acceptability
of specific assets pledged as collateral and their capability to mitigate credit
risk, and regularly reviews the assessment results of the collateral.

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as toll
collection rights, real estate, land use rights, equity securities, cash deposits
and equipment, collateral held for financial assets other than loans and
advances to customers are dependent on the nature of the financial instrument.
Debt instruments are generally unsecured, but for asset-backed securities
and other similar instruments, they are generally secured by pools of financial
assets. As at 31 December 2020, the Group held no significant foreclosed
assets.

(c) Credit ratings

The Group uses internal client credit ratings to reflect the probability of default
(PD) assessments of individual counterparties, and employs different internal
rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrower information and
specific loan information (e.g., the borrower’s revenue and the industry/sector
it operates in) is incorporated into the rating models, and also includes external
data of the borrower as supplementary information. In addition, the models
also fully consider the expert judgments of credit and risk management officers,
thus enabling the credit ratings to capture factors that may not have been
considered by other sources.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The Group applies ECL models to calculate the credit loss allowance for its
debt financial instruments carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI, as well as
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The method applied by
the Group in assessing the expected credit loss of its financial assets is a risk
parameters model.

For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of expected
credit loss, the group uses a “3-Stage” model to measure the credit loss
allowance and ECL:



Stage 1: A financial instrument whose credit risk has not increased significantly
since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition, but
it is not considered as a financial instrument with credit impairment.

Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred.

A Stage 1 financial instrument credit loss allowance is measured at an amount
equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument in the next 12
months. Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall have their credit loss
allowances measured at an amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of
the financial instrument expected to arise over its remaining duration.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex models and assumptions in calculating the expected credit loss. These
models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic conditions and
the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of default by customers and
the corresponding loss). In assessing the expected credit risks in accordance
with accounting standards, the Group uses judgments, assumptions and
estimates where appropriate, including:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics;

- Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters;

- Determination of the criteria for SICR;
- Definition of default and credit impairment;

- Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios;

—  The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis, a grouping
of exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that
risk exposures within a group are homogeneous. In performing this grouping,
the Group uses information such as the type of borrower, industry, usage, and
type of collateral to ensure the reasonableness of its credit risk grouping.

Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and whether
a financial asset has become credit-impaired, the Group recognizes an
impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss for the next 12
months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key parameters of ECL
measurement include possibility of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and
exposure at default (EAD). The Group establishes its PD, LGD and EAD based
on the internal rating system currently used for risk management purposes. In
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Group performs quantitative
analyses of historical statistics (such as counterparty ratings, guarantee
methods and collateral types, repayment methods, etc.) and forward-looking
information.

The parameters are defined as follows :

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation,
either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime
PD) of the obligation. The definition of default refers to the failure to pay the
debt as agreed in the contract or other violations of the debt contract that have
a significant impact on the normal debt repayment.

LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the
time of default (EAD).

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time of
default.

The group uses an internal credit rating to track the default probability
assessment results of a single counterparty and adopts different internal rating
models for different types of counterparties. Borrowers and specific loan
information collected at the time of a loan application are incorporated into
the rating model. The group regularly monitors and reviews the assumptions
associated with the calculation of expected credit loss, including the probability
of default and changes in value of the collateral over each period.

In 2020, no significant changes were made to the estimated methodology or
key assumptions.
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Determination of the criteria for SICR

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments
has increased significantly since the initial recognition at each balance sheet
date. For the purpose of staging an assessment of its financial assets, the
Group thoroughly considers various reasonable and supportable criteria that
may reflect whether or not there has been a significant change in their credit
risk. Key factors considered include regulatory and operating environments,
internal and external credit ratings, solvency, viability as a going concern, terms
of loan contracts, repayment behaviors, among others. The Group compares
the risk of default of financial instruments on the reporting date against that on
the initial recognition date in order to determine the changes of default risk.

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to help determine whether
the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition. The criteria include changes in the borrower’s PD, changes
in its credit risk rating and other factors. The Group decided that credit risk
has significantly increased if contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. As of the report date,
low credit risk financial instruments with a high credit rating (internal rating
above admittance threshold) are deemed to have a low credit risk and no
assessment is performed as to whether the credit risk on the report date has
significantly increased compared with the initial recognition.

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has provided credit
facilities for temporary deferral in principal repayment and interest payment
to some of the borrowers affected by the epidemic in accordance with the
government’s regulations. For above credit facilities, the Group insists on
substantial risk judgment, and comprehensively considers the changes of
the borrower’s operating ability, solvency and epidemic situation, so as to
assess whether the credit risk of related financial instruments has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Definition of default and credit impairment

The criteria used by the Group to determine whether a credit impairment occurs
under IFRS 9 is consistent with the internal credit risk management objectives.
In assessing whether a borrower has become credit-impaired, the Group mainly
considers the following quantitative and qualitative factors:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation to
interest or principal payment, or the borrower is overdue for more than 90
days in any principal, advances, interest or investment in corporate bonds
due to the Group;

- The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties;

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that
reflects the incurred credit loss.

The credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking information. Through
the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies the key economic indicators
that affect the credit risk and ECL of various business types, including
macroeconomic index, Enterprise prospect index and Real estate index, etc.
The impact of these economic indicators on the PDs and the LGDs varies from
one type of business to another. The Group comprehensively considers internal
and external data, expert forecasts and statistical analyses to determine the
relationships between these economic indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The
Group assesses and forecasts these economic indicators at least on an annual
basis, calculates the best estimates for the future, and regularly reviews the
assessment results.

Based on statistical analyses and expert judgements, the Group determines
the weightings of the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic
scenario and the corresponding macro-economic forecast under each scenario.
The group’s multi-scenario economic forecasts include the most likely base
scenario and a number of possible scenarios that reflect positive or negative
trends in the economy. The group assesses and determines the weighting of
each scenario. The weighting of base scenario is greater than the aggregated
weightings of the rest scenarios. The Group uses the weighted 12-month
ECL (Stage 1) or weighted lifetime ECL (Stage 2 and Stage 3) to measure
relevant impairment allowances. These weighted credit losses are calculated by
multiplying the expected credit loss under each scenario by the corresponding
scenario weighting.
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ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial statements reflect the effect of a range of possible economic outcomes, and the weighted amount of the expected
credit loss recognized in the financial statements is generally higher than that calculated by using only the benchmark scenario. In 2020, the Group has taken into
account different macroeconomic scenarios, combined with the impact of factors such as the Covid-19 epidemic on economic development trends, and made forward-
looking forecasts of macroeconomic indicators. Including: quarter-on-quarter GDP growth, used to estimate ECL, ranges from 8.0% to 9.0% in the neutral scenario for
2021.

Assuming that the core macroeconomic forward-looking indicator would increase or decrease by 10%, the impact to the balance of credit loss allowance as at 31
December 2020 would be less than 5%.

At 31 December 2020, the Group concluded that three scenarios are appropriate, being the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic scenario. As at 31
December 2020, the incremental impact to the credit loss allowance of using the probability-weighted ECL against the base scenario was less than 5%.

Scenario weightings

Scenario weighting is one of the important methods of sensitivity analysis. The decremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase of probability-
weighting of the optimistic scenario and a 10% decrease of the probability-weighting of the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using aforesaid
three scenarios. The incremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase on probability-weighting of the pessimistic scenario and a 10% decrease on
probability-weighted of the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using aforesaid three scenarios.

The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost in Stage 3
At each measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of each future period related to credit-impaired financial assets. The cash flows are discounted
and aggregated to determine the present value of the assets’ future cash flows.

(e) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks 131,351 189,234
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 341,853 522,571
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 106,536 189,000
Derivative financial assets 37,737 21,373
Financial assets held under resale agreements 588,312 721,029
Loans and advances to customers 12,640,362 11,713,333
Financial Investments
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 912,140 784,791
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 2,353 40,625
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,273,000 1,401,344
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 660,106 515,731
Others 10,100 7,717
Subtotal 16,703,850 16,106,748
Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments
Loan commitments 3,454,884 3,444,028
Letters of guarantee issued 17,526 35,634
Bank acceptance 9,606 11,693
Letters of credit issued 6,742 7,281
Subtotal 3,488,758 3,498,636
Total 20,192,608 19,605,384

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are based on carrying

amounts of these assets.

(f) Credit commitments and provision

Change in provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 1 January 2020 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 4,407 (4,407) - =
Transfers to Stage 2 (441) 441 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - 97) 97 -
Remeasurement (a) (7,440) 8,849 (832) 577
Charge for the year 1,123 3,947 - 5,070
Reverse (1,862) (2,997) (101) (4,960)
Foreign exchange differences (53) (374) - (427)
As at 31 December 2020 2,596 12,564 550 15,710
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As at 1 January 2019 9,246 4,139 814 14,199
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 2,072 (2,072) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (1,263) 1,263 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (62) 62 -
Remeasurement (a) (4,590) 5,811 587 1,808
Charge for the year 3,671 - 649 4,320
Reverse (2,291) (1,964) (733) (4,988)
Foreign exchange differences 17 87 7 111
As at 31 December 2019 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450

(@) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of PDs, LGDs and EADs; transfer between Stage 1 and Stage 2 or 3 due to loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the period, and the consequent “set up” (or
“set down”) between 12-month and lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

(@) The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss

The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances to customers into “Low Risk”, “Medium Risk”, “High Risk”.

— “Low Risk” exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of default and/or low levels of expected loss.

— “Medium Risk” exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, with low default risk.

— “High Risk” exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater concern.

The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss, unless otherwise stated, Stage 1 represents a 12-month
expected credit loss, and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expected credit loss.

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 11,570,166 - - 11,570,166
Medium Risk - 1,322,929 - 1,322,929
High Risk = = 115,366 115,366
Total 11,570,166 1,322,929 115,366 13,008,461
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (124,211) (244,654) (72,393) (441,258)
Net 11,445,955 1,078,275 42,973 12,567,203

Credit Grade

Low Risk 10,846,396 - - 10,846,396
Medium Risk - 1,189,509 - 1,189,509
High Risk - - 127,128 127,128
Total 10,846,396 1,189,509 127,128 12,163,033
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (517,092)
Net 10,658,794 958,396 28,751 11,645,941

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,277,650 = = 1,277,550
Medium Risk = 13 = 13
High Risk - - 3,632 3,632
Total 1,277,550 13 3,632 1,281,095
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (5,216) (5) (2,874) (8,095)

Net 1,272,334 8 658 1,273,000
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,404,909 - - 1,404,909
Medium Risk 499 354 - 853
High Risk - - 3,170 3,170
Total 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (5,196) (1) (2,391) (7,588)
Net 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Credit Grade

Low Risk 658,928 - - 658,928
Medium Risk = = = =
High Risk = = 1,178 1,178
Total 658,928 - 1,178 660,106
Expected credit loss on assets (74) - (726) (800)

Credit Grade

Low Risk 515,530 - - 515,530
Medium Risk - 161 - 161
High Risk - - 40 40
Total 515,530 161 40 515,731
Expected credit loss on assets (165) (1) (243) (409)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,376,927 = = 3,376,927
Medium Risk - 109,564 - 109,564
High Risk = = 2,267 2,267
Total 3,376,927 109,564 2,267 3,488,758

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,417,498 - - 3,417,498

Medium Risk - 77,383 - 77,383

High Risk - - 3,755 3,755

Total 3,417,498 77,383 3,755 3,498,636
Provision

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,486 - - 3,486
Medium Risk = 12,564 = 12,664
High Risk - - 550 550
Total 3,486 12,564 550 16,600

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7,752 - - 7,752
Medium Risk - 7,202 - 7,202
High Risk - - 1,386 1,386
Total 7,752 7,202 1,386 16,340
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Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession of collateral
to mitigate potential credit loss. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential loss are shown below:

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 115,628 (72,393) 43,235 65,638
Debt instruments at amortized cost 3,632 (2,874) 658 =
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,178 (726) 1,178 -
Total 120,338 (75,993) 45,071 65,638

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 127,135 (98,377) 28,758 39,054
Debt instruments at amortized cost 3,170 (2,391) 779 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 40 (243) 40 -
Total 130,345 (101,011) 29,577 39,054

The fair value of collateral presented in the table above is up to the book value of the credit risk exposure. As at 31 December 2020, the quality of the Group’s collateral
or credit enhancement did not change significantly compared to prior year.

(h) Loans and advances to customers

The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

Unsecured loans 696,201 850,506 1,843,022 3,389,729
Guaranteed loans 117,532 221,455 590,933 929,920
Loans secured by collateral 69,370 134,830 1,379,521 1,683,721
Pledged loans 20,188 44,281 7,082,085 7,146,554
Total 903,291 1,251,072 10,895,561 13,049,924

Unsecured loans 484,556 137,119 2,122,101 2,743,776
Guaranteed loans 152,140 77,990 1,165,449 1,395,579
Loans secured by collateral 72,049 118,270 979,286 1,169,605
Pledged loans 57,070 99,142 6,735,336 6,891,548
Total 765,815 432,521 11,002,172 12,200,508

Loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Loans and advances to customers

Urban renewal 3,092,802 24 3,112,777 26
Road transportation 2,695,315 21 2,006,160 16
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 1,086,599 8 1,097,145 9
Water conservation, environmental protection and public utilities 1,034,051 8 900,250 7
Railway transportation 901,978 7 1,017,961 8
Manufacturing industry 781,640 6 643,131 5
Urban public transportation 737,599 6 742,430 6
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 692,729 5 745,918 6
Financial industry 429,914 3 345,691 3
Other transportation 329,675 8 359,156 3
Mining industry 304,316 2 263,893 2
Education 189,082 1 154,947 1
Telecommunication and other information transmission services 70,094 1 96,875 1
Others 704,130 5 714,174 7

13,049,924 100 12,200,508 100

Contractual modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the terms of loans and advances provided to customers due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position
which resulted in the borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations, with a view to maximising recovery. Such restructuring activities include extended payment
term arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness, etc. Restructuring measures are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management,
indicate that payment will most likely continue. These measures are kept under continuous review. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total restructured loans
amounted to RMB23,789 million (31 December 2019: RMB26,146 million).
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(i) Investment in debt instruments

Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi governments 42,468 - 2,104 - 1,307,063 - 1,351,635
Financial institutions 52,457 966 21,529 2,514 - - 77,466
Corporates 213,954 5,064 = 4,759 = 2,821 226,598
Asset-backed securities 217 229 = = = 16 462
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (1) 521,222 9,498 34,394 - - 148 565,262

Wealth management products issued by

other banks N N N . N S S
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 2,426 2,426
Asset management plans - - - - - 1,466 1,466
Total 830,318 15,757 58,027 7,273 1,307,063 15,948 2,234,386

As at 31 December 2019
Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 52,538 - - - 1,441,961 2,693 1,497,092

Financial institutions 36,292 584 3,090 3,162 - 10,161 53,289

Corporates 90,160 21,751 395 2,634 - 116,245 231,085
Asset-backed securities 868 277 - - - 53 1,198
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (1) 282,617 - - - - - 282,617
R — - — - e
szta:]tsrT)::z;Sement products issued by B _ B _ _ 11397 11,397
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - 363 3,635 3,998
Asset management plans 4 - - - - 4,747 4,751
Total 466,382 22,827 3,485 5,696 1,442,324 148,831 2,089,545

(1) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.
(2)  Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBOC, Huijin and policy banks of China.

(3) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset management plans,
and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.

() Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers by nature of counterparties:

31 December 2020

Balances with central banks 131,351 = = 131,351
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 341,853 = 341,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 106,536 - 106,536
Derivative financial assets 15,774 18,136 3,827 37,737
Financial assets held under resale agreements = 586,273 2,039 588,312
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 199,313 263,847 451,333 914,493
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,175,433 636 96,931 1,273,000
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 127,302 386,651 146,153 660,106
Other financial assets 1,937 2,007 6,156 10,100

Total 1,651,110 1,705,939 706,439 4,063,488




31 December 2019

Balances with central banks

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Other financial assets

Total

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s on and off-balance
sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and stock and commodity prices. The Group’s major
market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in it trading book
and banking book.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to establish an
effective market risk management system, which can fully identify, accurately
measure, continuously monitor and effectively control market risks in trading
and non-trading businesses, and ensure that market risk exposures are
controlled within an acceptable range of the Group, and achieve a balance
between risks and benefits.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors
and its affiliated committees. The Governors on Risk Management supervise
overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports periodically
to ensure that all market risks are effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book

The Group’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and
banking book.

Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held
for trading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and
off-balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the Risk
Management Department and the Business Development Department within
the scope of their respective roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for managing the market risk of the whole bank, and
specifically manages the market risk of the treasury transaction business. The
Business Development Department assumes the responsibility for the overall
asset and liability management as well as management of interest rate risk and
foreign exchange risk in the banking book, and the periodical preparation of
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk reports related to banking book.

Market risk measurement and management approaches

Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value
revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.
Trading book

The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading book
through exposure limit control, stop-loss limit control and sensitivity limit
control.
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189,234 - - 189,234
- 522,571 - 522,571

- 189,000 - 189,000

588 17,673 3,112 21,373

- 718,122 2,907 721,029
222,860 97,626 505,030 825,416
1,293,947 1,288 106,109 1,401,344
183,956 252,497 79,278 515,731
1,423 2,604 3,690 7,717
1,892,008 1,801,281 700,126 4,393,415

The Group establishes appropriate risk limits considering various risk factors
of market risk, business complexity and other factors. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for the identification, measurement, monitoring and
reporting of risk exposures from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity analysis
for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement results to Risk
Management Committee by means of market value revaluation, duration
analysis, etc. The Business Development Department is responsible for the
accurate and timely identification and measurement of interest rate risk and
foreign exchange risk using gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis
and other methods.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, please
refer to Note 49 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 49 (3) (b) foreign exchange
rate risk (including trading book and banking book).

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable
movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the macro-
economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBOC. The PBOC
established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial
institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk, commercial
and market factors. In general, the interest rates of interest-bearing assets
and liabilities with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the same
direction.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based on
assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and economic
value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis and net interest income
simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses
hedging instruments to mitigate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest
rate risk of trading book is mainly managed and monitored by using interest
rate limits, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-to-market
and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly
measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the
sensitivity of projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest
net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).
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Repricing gap analysis
The table below summarizes the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 127,762 - - - - 3,592 131,354
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 166,761 168,772 126 - - 26,194 341,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 99,684 6,792 = = = 60 106,536
Derivative financial assets = = = = = 37,737 37,737
Financial assets held under resale agreements 587,394 265 - - - 653 588,312
Loans and advances to customers 5,225,663 4,564,712 375,742 450,321 1,980,561 43,363 12,640,362

Financial assets measured at fair value through

y 145,342 81,660 57,403 12,640 81 758,677 1,055,703
profit or loss
Include: Trading assets and other financial assets
mandatorily classified at fair value 144,441 81,339 55,965 12,365 81 758,565 1,052,766
through profit or loss
/-'/nanga/ assets at fa/r value through 07 307 1,438 175 _ 112 2947
profit or loss (Designated)
Debt instruments at amortized cost 24,230 139,180 705,620 292,535 92,321 19,114 1,273,000
Financial assets at fai value through otfer 279,971 167,869 141,264 73,511 2,462 9,839 664,916
comprehensive income
Other financial assets 1,069 33 = = = 8,998 10,100
Total financial assets 6,647,876 5,109,283 1,280,155 828,907 2,075,425 908,227 16,849,873
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 715,714 2,142,346 100 - - 21,112 2,879,272
Borrowings from Governments and 196,180 295,126 3,720 913 = 3,113 499,052
financial institutions
Placements from banks 85,861 6,834 = = = 169 92,864
F|nanqal liabilities measured at fair value through _ B B B B 2,051 2,051
profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities = = = = = 26,843 26,843
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 124,615 8 - - - 102 124,725
Due to customers 1,063,736 80,886 12,850 1,169 5,793 3,104 1,167,538
Debt securities issued 1,009,402 1,219,377 4,137,682 3,610,988 633,675 210,968 10,722,092
Other financial liabilities 177 67 77 21 = 22,398 22,740
Total financial liabilities 3,195,685 3,744,644 4,154,429 3,513,091 639,468 289,860 15,537,177

Net interest repricing gap 3,452,191 1,364,639 (2,874,274) (2,684,184) 1,435,957 618,367 1,312,696
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31 December 2019 Within 3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10 Non-lnterfast Total
months months years years years bearing

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 185,309 - - - - 3,928 189,237
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 497,466 7,147 1056 - - 17,853 522,571
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 187,731 1,146 - - - 123 189,000
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 21,373 21,373
Financial assets held under resale agreements 718,799 1,037 - - - 1,193 721,029
Loans and advances to customers 2,162,297 3,128,631 810,926 1,038,259 4,560,362 22,858 11,713,333

Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss 46,327 50,699 34,104 48,075 1,741 779,542 960,488

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets
mandatorily classified at fair value through 37,158 41,513 18,246 44,377 523 778,046 919,863
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Designated) 9,169 9,186 15,858 3,698 1,218 1,496 40,625
Debt instruments at amortized cost 12,523 206,442 748,113 412,971 - 21,295 1,401,344
F'”;”ﬂ:g;f;;i:ﬁ;igﬁ“e through other 105,852 188,966 141,252 71,425 3,561 9,790 520,846
Other financial assets 1,294 - - - - 6,423 7,717
Total financial assets 3,907,598 3,584,068 1,734,500 1,570,730 4,565,664 884,378 16,246,938
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 120,884 3,165 3,003,004 - - 16,164 3,143,217
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 182,238 245,097 18,227 8,799 - 4,398 458,759
Placements from banks 44,276 27,363 - - - 447 72,086
Fir;arzzita:)\riz‘iﬂ:ies measured at fair value through 28,350 6,520 B B B 316 35,188
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 27,593 27,593
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 112,539 - - - - 69 112,608
Due to customers 1,180,384 74,763 58,260 3,170 7,196 47,623 1,371,396
Debt securities issued 1,027,118 1,034,070 3,596,784 3,259,571 621,761 196,478 9,735,782
Other financial liabilities 2,150 1,247 972 1,271 526 34,598 40,764
Total financial liabilities 2,697,939 1,392,227 6,677,247 3,272,811 629,483 327,686 14,997,393
Net interest repricing gap 1,209,659 2,191,841 (4,942,747) (1,702,081) 3,936,181 556,692 1,249,545

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on the
Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group’s net positions of interest-bearing
assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount, and does not reflect the
potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Net interest Otll'ner
. comprehensive
income E
income
Increase 100 basis points 35,324 (9,274) 18,804 (8,898)
Decrease 100 basis points (35,324) 10,230 (18,804) 9,351

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities
held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on financial assets at FVTOCI held at the
period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group’s capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore, the above analysis may differ from the actual situation. In
addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other comprehensive income of the
Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the risk management activities to mitigate the
interest rate risk.
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(b) Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The Group’s primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (“EUR”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and, to a much lesser
extent, other currencies. The Group’s foreign currency exposures are mainly concentrated on USD. RMB appreciated by 0.4513 RMB/1 USD during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: depreciation of 0.113 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency exchange
rates, and Earnings at Risk (“EaR”). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign exchange risk to the extent
possible.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group’s assets and liabilities
presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 127,728 3,626 - 131,354
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 237,505 79,859 24,489 341,853
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 62,087 36,262 8,187 106,536
Derivative financial assets 31,570 3,827 2,340 37,737
Financial assets held under resale agreements 588,312 - - 588,312
Loans and advances to customers 11,350,895 1,104,430 185,037 12,640,362
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,040,834 13,852 1,017 1,055,703
Include: Traao;/r;agiravsasligs ;r;guz;tf:n;rr ggfgrc/‘lazo/szssets mandatorily classified 1,037,887 13,852 1,017 1,052,756
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 2,947 - - 2,947
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,179,634 93,466 = 1,273,000
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 558,123 90,620 16,173 664,916
Others 7,618 2,214 268 10,100
Total financial assets 15,184,206 1,428,156 237,511 16,849,873
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,666,954 196,208 16,110 2,879,272
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 185,773 304,794 8,485 499,052
Placements from banks 64,889 13,973 14,002 92,864
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,050 1 - 2,051
Derivative financial liabilities 21,598 4,926 319 26,843
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 124,725 - - 124,725
Due to customers 957,551 145,061 64,926 1,167,538
Debt securities issued 10,502,630 132,048 87,414 10,722,092
Others 22,210 169 361 22,740
Total financial liabilities 14,548,380 797,180 191,617 15,537,177
Net on-balance sheet position 635,826 630,976 45,894 1,312,696
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 162,399 (79,380) (32,862) 50,157

Credit commitments 3,231,391 222,557 34,810 3,488,758
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As at 31 December 2019

usD Others
RMB (RMB (RMB Total
equivalent) equivalent)
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with central banks 185,257 3,979 1 189,237
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 405,677 97,661 19,233 522,571
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 50,411 128,286 10,303 189,000
Derivative financial assets 16,790 2,908 1,675 21,373
Financial assets held under resale agreements 721,029 - - 721,029
Loans and advances to customers 10,289,425 1,247,685 176,223 11,713,333
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 930,564 28,771 1,163 960,488
Include: Traac;/r;;ra‘;saszf ;r;guz;rzrr ;/‘gfgrcg;ssets mandatorily classified 889,939 28,771 1,153 919,863
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 40,625 - - 40,625
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,299,117 101,311 916 1,401,344
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 392,464 104,295 24,087 520,846
Others 6,807 539 371 7,717
Total financial assets 14,297,541 1,715,435 233,962 16,246,938
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,918,059 206,014 19,144 3,143,217
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 120,244 322,759 15,756 458,759
Placements from banks - 41,702 30,384 72,086
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 35,188 - - 35,188
Derivative financial liabilities 23,609 3,692 292 27,593
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 112,608 - - 112,608
Due to customers 1,140,367 169,428 61,601 1,371,396
Debt securities issued 9,527,039 138,657 70,086 9,735,782
Others 36,217 4,029 518 40,764
Total financial liabilities 13,913,331 886,281 197,781 14,997,393
Net on-balance sheet position 384,210 829,154 36,181 1,249,545
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 98,341 (50,873) (22,952) 24,516
Credit commitments 3,219,741 240,811 38,084 3,498,636

Given a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of RMB against other currencies, there is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income. The table
below summarizes the effect of such movement on the Group’s profit before tax in the consolidated income statement:

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

USD against RMB _ Profit before tax

1% appreciation 6,310 8,292
1% depreciation (6,310) (8,292)

In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or loss due possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted and do not
take into account the following:

- changes in the Group’s net position in USD subsequent to the balance sheet date;
—  the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the exchange rate;
- the effect of hedge on the Group’s net position in USD by using certain derivative instruments; and

- the impact on market prices as a result of the movement of exchange rate.

2

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity, however is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase its assets as
needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches include the forecasting and
monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2020, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through issuance of debt securities. In accordance with the approval from the CBIRC, all RMB bonds issued
by the Bank enjoys sovereign debt credit rating, which enables the Bank to continuously raise funds in the domestic markets through issuance of sovereign debt.
Objectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current customer deposit, matured customer term deposits, repayment of debt securities issued,
loan drawdown, fulfil obligations under guarantees and other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and maturities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is an important mission of the Group. It is impracticable
for the Group to be completely matched in such positions since business transactions are often of uncertain terms and of different types. A mismatched position might
enhance profitability, but at the same time carries the risk of loss. The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions within a reasonable range.
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The Business Development Department and Treasury Department are the execution departments for detailed daily management. The Group’s liquidity management
processes include:

- Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Monitoring the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;

- Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and

- Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to finance of new debts in
the market. In addition, experience shows that a certain level of matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will be renewed and not to be withdrawn.
Management maintains an appropriate level of highly liquid assets to address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of the committed funds under letters of guarantees or letters of credit issued. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since some of these commitments will either
expire, be terminated or not meeting requirements for drawdown due to customers’ inability to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments
Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and geographical area.

The Group’s funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a presence and
participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs. The Group issues fixed rate and
floating rate debt securities each year. These debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or the bond holders to redeem them prior to the
bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. As at 31 December 2020, long-term (with a
maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to RMB8.78 trillion, and other long-term debts (include deposits from banks and other
financial institutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and due to customers) amounted to
RMB128.43 billion.

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or gross by their
contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash flows of these financial instruments by the
Group may have different with the table as below:

As at 31 December 2020

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks - 131,280 74 - - - - - 131,354
Diﬁfﬁiﬁlﬁigﬁfnd other 19,531 112,324 4,700 46,005 162,616 107 = = 345,373
e el et - S eacel el s it - - L
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 28 587,095 - 1,357 - - - 588,480
Loans and advances to customers 108,577 = 48,622 241,040 1,937,245 5,223,086 4,355,824 6,339,519 18,253,913
F"Z”f:f‘;Tj?;gigi“ggﬂt oo 119,655 1,729 22,765 124,309 89,089 98,282 140,257 465,253 1,061,359
Debt instruments at amortized cost 513 - - 30,722 177,634 821,837 321,563 101,849 1,454,118
F”:;’?;f;:ifs; :‘Oe;‘i:;‘;:‘vf?;':ﬂg‘;fe 4810 - 210317 56,655 167,260 186,799 86,006 2,560 714,407
Other financial assets 1,469 4,172 21 514 324 3,661 = 39 10,100
Total non-derivative financial assets 254,555 249,533 962,443 510,282 2,542,342 6,333,672 4,908,650 6,909,220 22,665,697
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions - 64,174 119,813 553,160 2,171,115 103 - - 2,908,365
oo om goverments end - - 28,571 133341 263,294 7093 12,130 13361 521,632
Placements from banks = = 5,440 80,015 4172 124 3,487 762 94,000
F\r;;:g;e:'l\zl::&ezrr?;;sured at fair value 2,051 B _ _ N _ _ _ 2,051
Firgznyzg\nzsnstzts sold under repurchase B B 110,765 5007 8 B B B 124,800
Due to customers - 975,631 25,084 56,560 106,430 22,311 2,709 6,880 1,195,605
Debt securities issued - - 227,486 505,963 1,382,932 5,503,307 4,202,351 1,074,640 12,896,679
Other financial liabilities 2 20,806 167 243 1,086 1,309 740 10 24,363
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 2,053 1,060,611 526,326 1,334,309 3,929,037 5,598,089 4,221,417 1,095,653 17,767,495
Net position 252,502 (811,078) 436,117 (824,027) (1,386,695) 735,583 682,233 5,813,567 4,898,202
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow - - 219 111 (276) 320 596 468 1,438
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow - - 193,503 326,440 625,961 19,079 88 - 1,165,071
Total outflow = = (194,106)  (329,500)  (609,906) (17,060) (85) - (1,150,657)

Total derivative cash flows - - (384) (2,949) 15,779 2,339 599 468 15,852
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As at 31 December 2019

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central banks - 189,194 43 - - - - - 189,237
Defﬁ]"a?csla“’"“;:&i:ﬁ:”d other 17,804 501,985 989 9 1514 109 - - 522,584
e il et - - s e 0w - - -t
Financial assets held under resale agreements 926 - 718,804 397 1,056 - - - 721,183
Loans and advances to customers 123,403 - 102,781 133,653 1,328,622 3,947,210 4,008,531 6,620,790 16,259,990
F'r;"f;f'szj:‘;:gi:i“;sm o s 127,059 3,564 6,132 26,385 59,324 46,038 56,358 658,076 982,936
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,500 - 445 19,629 150,321 912,960 638,369 106,887 1,830,111
F";:':;‘zhazfﬁfr ?Oe;f)f;i:;:Z':::;‘;fe 5,265 - 39,347 44,626 207,685 188,649 110,053 3,870 599,495
Other financial assets 4,049 1,740 - 574 2,204 380 14 20 8,981
Total non-derivative financial assets 280,096 696,483 1,038,109 243,790 1,746,883 5,095,346 4,813,325 7,389,643 21,303,675
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 5,365 44,018 24,154 53,350 4,595 3,011,735 - - 3,143,217
B"flr;‘;:'crl‘js‘;;‘:n’z t?g::mmems and - 489 22,695 144,364 123,760 162,152 17,160 - 470,620
Placements from banks - - 24,001 20,220 24,319 74 3,612 806 73,732
o ot o e e % - 15,667 13,009 6,665 - - - 35,363
Fir;agrzi:rlniistzts sold under repurchase B B 74,152 38,59 B B B B 112,748
Due to customers - 1,116,174 53,867 32,072 101,679 59,613 3,258 7,573 1,374,236
Debt securities issued - - 218,849 272,435 1,291,988 5,456,634 3,864,780 1,165,766 12,270,452
Other financial liabilities 3,224 21,352 145 797 10,679 7,379 4,299 105 47,980
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,621 1,182,033 433,530 574,843 1,663,675 8,698,287 3,893,109 1,174,250 17,528,348
Net position 271,475 (485,550) 604,579 (331,053) 183,208 (3,602,941) 920,216 6,215,393 3,775,327
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow - - 29 33 (47) 390 461 491 1,357
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow - - 260,986 452,846 552,483 97,222 791 1 1,364,329
Total outflow - - (260,919) (456,122) (555,321) (99,157) (821) (1) (1,372,341)
Total derivative cash flows - - 96 (3,243) (2,885) (1,545) 431 491 (6,655)

Off-balance sheet items

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity date.

Loan commitments 8,612 35,461 186,918 223,425 212,993 2,787,475 3,454,884
Letters of guarantee issued 232 398 2,275 14,621 - - 17,526
Bank acceptance 2,125 1,194 6,287 - - - 9,606
Letters of credit issued 467 2,317 3,892 66 - - 6,742
Total 11,436 39,370 199,372 238,112 212,993 2,787,475 3,488,758
Loan commitments 5,720 4,882 146,992 225,119 217,651 2,843,664 3,444,028
Letters of guarantee issued 1,215 4,463 7,597 22,359 - - 35,634
Bank acceptance 2,596 1,540 7,657 - - - 11,693
Letters of credit issued 1,240 2,778 2,813 450 - - 7,281

Total 10,771 13,663 164,959 247,928 217,651 2,843,664 3,498,636
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(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market for a financial
instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable market data and relies as little
as possible on the unobservable inputs. The valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants could consider in setting a price,
and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets of principal-guaranteed
wealth management products and the associated liabilities to investors in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management products. Fair value of securities
investments denominated in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debt investments
denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation results published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of derivatives is calculated by applying
discounted cash flow method or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. All significant inputs for the fair valuation of these financial assets and liabilities are observable in the
market.

Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses valuation techniques
to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies’ approach. The fair value of these financial
instruments based on unobservable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, including credit risk of the counterparties,
weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to comparable companies and their performance indicators,
etc.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets

— Exchange rate derivatives - 27,053 - 27,053
— Interest rate derivatives = 10,684 = 10,684
Loans and advances to customers - - 42,964 42,964

Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified
at fair value through profit or loss

- Bonds 173 71,903 4,389 76,465
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit 50 206,096 - 206,146
- Stock and fund 2,834 234 10,738 13,806
— Wealth management products issued by other banks 50 1,614 7,407 9,071
— Equity investments 8 7,011 739,790 746,809
— Asset management plans = 420 = 420

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 2,361 - 2,361
— Asset management plans = 625 = 625

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Bonds 11,152 288,388 436 299,976
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 359,115 - 359,115
— Asset management plans - - 1,015 1,015
— Equity investments 3,294 - 1,516 4,810
Total 17,561 975,504 808,255 1,801,320

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (38) (2,013) - (2,051)
Derivative financial liabilities
— Exchange rate derivatives - (16,924) - (16,924)
— Interest rate derivatives - (9,919) - (9,919)
Total (38) (28,856) - (28,894)
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As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets
Derivative financial assets
— Exchange rate derivatives
— Interest rate derivatives
Loans and advances to customers
Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified
at fair value through profit or loss

- Bonds
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit
— Stock and fund
— Wealth management products issued by other banks
— Equity investments
— Asset management plans
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds

— Inter-bank certificates of deposit

— Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions

— Asset management plans

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

— Bonds
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit
— Asset management plans
— Equity investments
Total
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities
— Exchange rate derivatives
— Interest rate derivatives

Total

- 11,028 - 11,028
- 10,345 - 10,345

- - 38,291 38,291

282 68,763 3,159 72,204

- 47,556 - 47,556
3,061 245 7,854 11,160
26 804 10,567 11,397
2,642 3,043 770,273 776,858
- 688 - 688

- 29,731 - 29,731

- 4,685 - 4,685

- 4,118 - 4,118

- 2,091 - 2,091
7,602 275,918 - 283,520
- 230,329 - 230,329

- - 1,882 1,882
4,090 - 1,025 5,115
17,703 690,244 833,051 1,540,998
- (35,188) - (35,188)

- (17,938) - (17,938)

- (9,655) - (9,655)

- (62,781) - (62,781)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

As at 1 January 2020
Disposals
Additions
Settlements
Transfer out from Level 3
Total loss recognized in
— Profit or loss
— Other comprehensive income
As at 31 December 2020
Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in
— Profit or loss

— Other comprehensive income

Financial assets

38,291 791,853 2,907 833,051
= (22,111) = (22,111)
3,988 25,228 500 29,716
= (49,741) (879) (50,620)
= (1,224) 1,145 (79)

685 19,059 (13) 19,731

- (740) (693) (1,433)
42,964 762,324 2,967 808,255
685 17,679 (13) 18,351

= (740) (693) (1,433)
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Financial assets

As at 1 January 2019 30,392 820,772 533 851,697
Disposals - (14,127) - (14,127)
Additions 7,083 45,456 2,487 55,026
Settlements - (36,293) - (36,293)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (1,502) - (1,502)

Total loss recognized in

— Profit or loss 816 (22,204) (103) (21,491)
— Other comprehensive income - (249) (10) (259)
As at 31 December 2019 38,291 791,853 2,907 833,051

Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in
— Profit or loss 816 (13,797) (103) (13,084)
— Other comprehensive income - (249) (10) (259)

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each
type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

(i)  Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial assets
held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from banks, financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables due in one year within other assets and other liabilities.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate the fair
value.

(i)  Debt investments

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using quoted market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take into
consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market rates which
are based on PBOC'’s established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is estimated using a discounted
cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis
utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value.
(v)  Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar instruments. For
those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments.

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2020

Debt securities issued 10,722,092 10,854,183

As at 31 December 2019

Debt securities issued 9,735,782 9,928,156

(6) Capital management

Capital of the Group uses for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial position. The
purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

—  to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;
—  to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and
—  to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management in accordance with the guidelines established by the Basel
Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBIRC. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with the CBIRC. As of 31
December 2020, the Group had a total capital of RMB1,719,279 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,412,952 million, total Core Tier 1 capital RMB1,411,838 million, capital
adequacy ratio 12.03%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.89%, Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.88%.
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